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COMPANY PROFILE
4 B i 5

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”, Hong Kong stock code: 757), is a leading
supplier of solar energy services. Its products are not only sold to
customers in the upstream and mid-stream industries, but also directly
to end users.

During the year, the Group was mainly engaged in the following
businesses:

(@)  the manufacture of, trading of and provision of processing
services for monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers;

(b)  the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules;
(c)  the construction and operating of photovoltaic power plants; and

(d)  the manufacture and trading of semiconductor, the trading of
monocrystalline silicon solar cells and others.

The Group now focuses on the manufacturing and sales of
downstream photovoltaic modules in the photovoltaic industry, the
major customers of photovoltaic modules are large domestic state-
owned enterprises, multinational corporations and other photovoltaic
end-user customers. This enables the Group to fully demonstrate its
current advantages in the production of such products. Moreover, the
Group is engaged in the installation of photovoltaic systems and the
development, design, construction, operation and maintenance of
photovoltaic generation plants.

Currently, our integrated business model includes the total annual
production capacity of our production bases was 8.2 GW of modules;
whereas, as at 30 December 2022 (being the date of completion of
the Disposal), the total annual production capacity of our production
bases was 7.4 GW of monocrystalline silicon ingot and 7.4 GW of
monocrystalline silicon wafers.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MEH=E

Five-Year Financial Summary hFEMBHME
RMB'000 ARETTL
2021
2018 2019 2020 (Restated)
—E-—F
“E-N\E ZB-NF  —R-EF (E31)
Revenue ON 4,022,452 4,425,552 6,051,956 4,640,843 6,869,362
Gross profit EF 397,550 341,368 585,852 404,997 271,264
Profit/(loss) for the year FEMNE/ (BE) (220,587) (354,358) (196,367) 302,352 1,112,013
Profit/(loss) attributable to FEASDRRENFE,

owners of the parent (&18) (222,402) (355,492) (215,648) 193,222 957,108
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SR EKZF,/ (EiE)

(RMB cents) (ARED) (6.92) (11.07) (6.82) 5.84 28.80
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,811,054 1,606,272 1,743,154 2,166,354 1,004,205
Current assets RBEE 2,754,947 2,822,908 3,858,549 4,124,818 6,732,819
Current liabilities REaRE 3,431,772 3,578,792 4,822,316 4,893,543 6,117,099
Non-current liabilities ErRBERE 326,238 394,822 439,391 725,350 414,491

Net assets EEFE 807,991 455,566 339,996 672,279 1,205,434
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FREBESE

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
GROW TO HERE RIZMWM
ACHIEVE SUCCESS
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Dear honorable shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the
“Board”) of Solargiga Energy Holdings
Limited, | am pleased to present our annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2022.

ERNBTULRR:

BAERRBAERERERARNESZTSEEH -
AEVBRERAEREMEBZE-_E-__F+=4
S+—HLEFEEZEERE -

Over the past year, the global economy has faced multiple challenges #BE—F @ 2HEERREBEHE BKEEF K
in the form of the ongoing pandemic, the Russia-Ukraine war and BIERBEAREZLEE - FLt - KB 7 #
escalating tensions between major world powers. Consequently, we [EETE « B EER LRMNLBNTHEER &
have witnessed weakened supply chains, rising raw material prices and QREH2H@BR L - RIBEE S E S HEIMF)
tight labor markets, culminating in rising inflation around the world. H & - 2HRBERREZENR T - —FHN4.7% L
According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), global inflation ~ F 2| ==& = —F#8.8% - Ith4) » 2B EIL K KT8

L /A

rate is set to rise from 4.7% in 2021 to 8.8% in 2022. Moreover, N - - —FN6.0%NEE S - _F83.4%

—_—

global economic growth is projected to slow from 6.0% in 2021 to F_-ZE-=FM29%.ELB _TT—FUK BT
3.4% in 2022 and 2.9% in 2023. This is the weakest growth profile ~ 2 EE&BBEHEMCOVID- 19X RIT2 RN RITEE
since 2001 except for the global financial crisis and the acute phase ARt ©

of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFREBES

Despite turbulence sweeping the world, the photovoltaic industry has
continued to prosper, and China’s photovoltaic industry has entered a
“golden age” of long-term development, facilitated by favorable
environmental policies from the government. A report by the 20th
National Congress emphasized the need to proactively and steadily
promote carbon peaking and carbon neutrality, hence, strongly
supports the development and utilization of renewable energy,
including photovoltaics, and the acceleration of industry development.
After realizing grid parity, industry development will be expedited,
triggered by explosive growth in demand for photovoltaic power
generation. Already, China has added 87.41GW of new installations
in 2022, a year-on-year increase of 59.3%. Moreover, the total export
volume of photovoltaic products (silicon wafers, solar cells and
modules) in 2022 reached a record high of US$51.25 billion, up
80.3% year-on-year.

The biggest challenge for the industry in 2022 has been the rise in
polysilicon prices, which climbed to more than RMB300 per kilogram
in November 2022. Consequently, the net profits of midstream and
downstream companies were eroded, and most industry players
suffered. Correspondingly, the demand for photovoltaic modules only
improved as silicon wafer prices began to fall in late December.

As one of the leading manufacturers of solar energy monocrystalline
photovoltaic products in China, we have been actively exploring
domestic and foreign markets, as well as expanding production
capacity in locations where the Group can benefit from “low cost”
and “favorable policies”, so as to achieve economies of scale. With
regard to soaring polysilicon prices, we have been tackling this issue
by shifting part of our own production capacity to ODM and OEM
procession production capacity. This has enabled us to both mitigate
the impact of purchasing high-priced raw materials on our
profitability, while allowing our factory to maintain an ideal utilization
rate. As a result of this strategy, the Group’s revenue reached
RMB6,869.4 million, up 48% year-on-year. Also, gross profit was
RMB271.3 million, with a gross profit margin of 3.9%. Furthermore,
module production capacity has been expanded to 8.2GW as
planned.

EREHBEEK  AAREXFEZL  CRARMETIR
BHEOHED T  PREAREZFENT RAZERY
[E2RR]  Z T+ ARMERA  ERBIELZHER
FEMAFR - K AZRFARETBEEIRRFZEAN
A NMREXEHE BERFELHEE  LKRESE
ERBENER BMRRTERER - —T-_—_F
PR RFTIE R ER7 M E R - FLLIER59.3% © it
I ZEZZFRKRERGEER  ABEEM 48
NS aEEH = EH51258FET ALt
#E80.3%

TR CFTEERNSAKEESSEERNE
R ZEZZF+—A ZREEREAZREAT
3007C Ak AR THAEFF BRI ZEZa
REBITHESBERNZRTHE - JBE  BEE+=
AT amAERAREY  HRAGFRKT BN

Eg
=

EBTRBEBAMNABEES X RERRERZ —
BMEERBEAIINTS  TEASEAZHR K
RAIR[MEBBR IO EIERNERE  UERAR
B HHZREERAANBE R —EER
B AR A HENREEKODMEOEM . R TE
B8 RERE AR E - EEBRMBETURERES
BERMEHRMENNTE - XA AEEMN I
RIFBEMNERFERE -@HRNE B SENK
ANEZARMYE,869.45 BT BILIEEAISY - F
B EMAARE2713BE8TL EAXA3.9% -
BEON - AR ERE D R BB R ES2EF L o



Countries around the world have set targets for peak carbon dioxide
emissions and carbon neutrality, and this, coupled with the
development of the solar industry and the promotion of favorable
national policies in recent years, has boosted the demand for
photovoltaic products both domestically and internationally. As one of
the leading manufacturers of solar energy monocrystalline
photovoltaic products in China, we are committed to seizing market
opportunities, actively applying the wealth of experience that we have
amassed, and enhancing and optimizing the Group’s advanced
production technologies and processes, so that our businesses can
realize their tremendous growth potential.

Prospects

According to a forecast by the International Energy Agency (IEA), the
global installed capacity of renewable energy generation will increase
by 2,400 GW from 2022 to 2027, accounting for more than 90% of
the global increase in electricity. Approximately 90% of this energy
will be derived from solar and wind photovoltaic power generation.
Geographically, the United States will increase its installed capacity of
renewable energy by 75%, the majority of which will be from solar
and wind photovoltaic power generation. In Europe, the installed
capacity of renewable energy will increase by 425GW, or nearly 60%,
between 2022 and 2027, and will mainly be driven by the rise in
solar photovoltaics. All of this growth underscores the growing global
demand for photovoltaic energy in the future, regardless of the macro
environment.

With respect to China, the government will continue to encourage the
development of a clean energy industry nationwide, in order to
support and achieve its goals of peaking carbon dioxide emissions by
2030 and achieving carbon neutrality by 2060, aka “3060".
Therefore, the photovoltaic industry in China is set to enjoy a
“golden age” of development.

With respect to the Group, we are fully prepared to enter a new
development cycle, having completed the streamlining of the scope of
our business operations in late 2022. Going forward, our focus will be
on the manufacturing and trading of photovoltaic modules; the
photovoltaic power generation system construction business; and the
semiconductor business, a focus that will also entail the streamlining
of operations and concentrating resources on expanding the scale of
the businesses that we have retained. In addition to reducing costs
and enhancing efficiency, we will seek to increase competitiveness
and promote specialization, so as to reveal the true value of these
businesses.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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It is worth emphasizing that we see tremendous potential in our
retained module business, as well as the photovoltaic power
generation system construction business and semi-conductor business,
which we will seek to fully realize by tapping into China, the world’s
largest producer of solar energy and the dominant player in the
global solar photovoltaic market. As a photovoltaic module producer
since 2009, we have amassed valuable experience and expertise in
advanced technologies and processes in the production of
monocrystalline modules. With our current mainstream P-type
products, next-generation N-type products, and the perovskite
products to be developed in the future, the Group is positioned in
terms of technology. At the same time, we have also further
expanded and strengthened the development and sales of other high-
efficiency and high-end module products. As countries around the
world also accelerate the development of renewable energy, we
expect the Group’s module business to continue to expand owing to
our long operating history and reputation for quality products.

Regarding our photovoltaic power generation system construction
business, it includes traditional distributed power station engineering,
procurement and construction, and the building-applied photovoltaic
("BAPV"), and the building-integrated photovoltaic (“BIPV") business.
Under the “Opinions on Promoting the Green Development of Urban
and Rural Construction”, the Chinese government has not only
vigorously advocated “hitting peak emissions” and “carbon
neutrality”, but also promoted the construction of “green buildings”
and “zero-energy buildings”. Given the tremendous number of
existing buildings, we envisage broad development prospects for our
BIPV business, and the BIPV segment will become a new growth
driver for the photovoltaic industry as a whole.

As for our semiconductor business, which we officially commenced in
2019, it has experienced encouraging growth against the backdrop of
a booming market in China, which is the fastest growing and largest
market in terms of semiconductor application. The growth of this
business is expected to continue to strengthen due to the Chinese
government’s heavy investment in semiconductors, which in turn will
generate greater profits for us.

Since we streamlined the scope of our business operations in late
2022, the Group has been able to achieve a number of considerable
benefits in terms of financial position, assets and liabilities, and
working capital level. For example, in addition to reducing debt and
improving our financial structure, we will be able to inject more
capital to continuously expand the production capacity of photovoltaic
modules to cope with the high demand from downstream
photovoltaic module customers, thus maintaining our competitiveness
in the local and international markets and sustaining growth over the
long term.

EREFANE  RAERENEFER  LREE
REREBNFEREBHELTEFITERN
BN BRI RB N A BE A2 R K K RE
HEBYEZRABECRTSEEEIEWM - 3
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MY PRLEE M 2 —ﬁNﬂEﬁ:&ﬂi%ﬁ‘E%%
SR AE MR - ARBIREEEER TR RAL - [ -
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Looking ahead, we are committed to seizing opportunities arising
from the photovoltaic industry’s “golden age” of development and
actively expanding our businesses, focusing on the creation of BIPV
and BAPV products related to photovoltaic modules, as well as the
emerging semiconductor product manufacturing business to expand
the Group’s growth space. At the same time, we will continue to
reinforce the Group’s foothold in the photovoltaic industry by
ensuring that it plays a contributing role in China’s “3060" goals and
capitalizing on the grid parity era, as well as by creating our own
advantages for elevating business development to the next level.

Chairman
TAN Wenhua

29 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBIWESH

Market Overview

In 2022, global economic growth continued to be affected by the
Russia-Ukraine war, the ongoing pandemic, and central banks raising
interest rates to curb inflation. The World Bank’s World Economic
Outlook, updated in January this year, reduced global economic
growth from 6.0% in 2021 to 3.4% in 2022, and expected it to fall
further to 2.9% in 2023. In the report, the World Bank
recommended that countries improve energy security and address
climate change by adopting policies that can accelerate the transition
to green energy. The International Energy Agency’s (IEA) Photovoltaic
Power Systems Programme (PVPS) expected new installed photovoltaic
capacity to increase by 35.3% year-on-year to 230 GW in 2022.
China, the U.S., Europe and India remained the main solar markets in
2022. In the context of the global trend, countries are aiming to
gradually strengthen the reform and deployment of renewable energy
sources, including solar energy, in order to secure energy supply and
enhance national energy security.

MmEBE

R RREENREBIIIMSETE
BIERFEARRITINBMEEBERAFZE - HRRIT
SE— AEHH REER Z) 15 2 BB R
TE T —FH6.0% AR T - _FM3.4% I
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SRR B REHFLL AFREAER35.3% 2230
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Market Overview (Continued)

China vigorously promoted the development of solar energy in 2022,
and has made it the core of energy planning and energy restructuring
during the 14th Five-Year period. In January 2022, the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology, together with four other
departments, including the National Energy Administration and the
Ministry of Housing and Urban Rural Development, issued the Smart
Photovoltaic Industry Innovation and Development Action Plan (2021-
2025) ((ERERNEXEIFNERITEFE) (2021-20254)). During the
"14th Five-Year Plan” period, it will promote renewable energy to
achieve new breakthroughs, reach and enter a new level, and
maintain the global leading position of renewable energy. In June
2022, nine departments, including the National Development and
Reform Commission and the National Energy Administration (NEA),
jointly issued the “14th Five-Year Plan for Renewable Energy
Development”, clearly indicated that the annual power generation
from renewable energy will reach about 3.3 trillion kilowatt-hours by
2025, and the solar power generation will double, which
demonstrated the government’s determination and support for the
development prospects of the solar energy industry. As for PV energy,
it will vigorously promote the construction of large-scale infrastructure
mainly in deserts, including the Gobi Desert, and wilderness areas,
actively promote distributed installation, launch urban rooftop PV
installation initiatives and “PV+" comprehensive utilization projects,
and coordinate the integrated development of water, wind and solar
bases.

mEHE @
FRE—ZS-—FRNEERGEREER  WHEE
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Market Overview (Continued)

According to data released by the NEA on the development of
renewable energy in 2022, China’s annual PV and wind electricity
generation exceeded 1 trillion kWh for the first time, reaching 1.19
trillion kWh, up 21% vyear-on-year compared with 2021. The NEA
data also revealed that, as at the end of 2022, China’s cumulative
installed capacity of solar power generation reached approximately
390 GW, a year-on-year increase of 28.1%. The total new PV
installed capacity for the year was 87.41 GW, an increase of 60.3%
year-on-year, of which 36.3 GW came from new centralized PV
capacity, a year-on-year increase of 41.8%, and 51.1 GW from
distributed PV capacity, a year-on-year increase of 74.5%. As at the
end of the year, the cumulative installed capacity of renewable energy
was 1.213 billion kW. Among them, the electricity generated from
solar energy increased by 87.41 million kW for the year with a
year-on-year increase of 60.3%, reaching a total of 393 million kW
with a year-on-year increase of 28.1%, which shows that its
development is accelerating.

According to data from the China Photovoltaic Industry Association,
China’s PV industry has continued to grow, along with its
technologies, with output reaching new highs in various segments. In
2022, the national output of polysilicon, wafers and modules reached
827,000 tons, 357 GW and 288.7 GW respectively, an increase of
more than 55% year-on-year. In terms of PV raw material exports,
annual PV module exports exceeded 153 GW, up 55.8% from the
previous year, indicating strong demand in the PV market. Looking
ahead to 2023, TrendForce expected the PV market to expand further
as the PV demand suppressed in 2022 would be driven by a sharp
decrease in material costs, the result of overcapacity in the industrial
chain. It is expected that, China, with policy support, the growth rate
of installed capacity could reach more than 40%. The NEA set an
annual target of approximately 490 GW of installed capacity of solar
power generation at the 2023 National Energy Work Conference.

2023 is the year to comprehensively implement the spirit of the 20th
National Congress of the Communist Party of China. The report
explicitly advocates for green consumption, promotes the development
of green and low-carbon production and lifestyle, and promotes the
large-scale and high-quality leapfrog development of renewable
energy, which is a key development focus of the NEA. The NEA will
actively adapt to the new requirements of the transformation of
energy consumption “dual control” to carbon emissions total and
intensity “dual control”, promote the improvement of the green
electricity certificate system for renewable energy, enhance the level
of green electricity consumption, and further improve related policies
such as the “Notice on Promoting Renewable Energy Electricity
Consumption”
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Market Overview (Continued)

Growth in the U.S. solar energy industry continues to slow due to
trade barriers and ongoing supply chain restrictions. According to a
report by the U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA), the United
States added 20.2 GW of solar energy capacity in 2022, a decrease
of 16% compared to the previous year, while the U.S. solar market
deployed approximately 8.8 GW of installed solar power capacity in
2022, decline by 23% from last year. EIA predicts that the installed
capacity of solar power facilities deployed in 2023 will account for
more than half (54%) of all new generation capacity (54.5 GW) of
the next generation power facilities. The solar power market is
expected to rebound in 2023 and accounts for 70% of the nation’s
new grid-connected installed capacity, with solar power adding 29.1
GW of new capacity. From June to October 2022, the U.S. imposed
import restrictions on solar panels and other key renewable energy
equipment from China. Manufacturers feared other goods would also
be withheld and halted new shipments, making it difficult for
companies to purchase silicon parts and other products from China,
and the U.S. solar industry faced supply chain disruptions. In August
2022, President Biden signed the “Inflation Reduction Act”, which is
believed to bring hope to the local solar market as it plans to
increase installed solar power capacity by 62 GW by 2027. The Act
proposes to provide US$369.75 billion for energy security and climate
change projects over the next decade, which will provide solar
manufacturers in the United States with billions of dollars in tax and
other incentive measures. The Solar Energy Industries Association
(SEIA) expects the Act to create an additional 222 GW of solar
energy and bring more than US$600 billion in new investment over
the next decade, transforming the long-term outlook of the U.S. solar
industry.
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Market Overview (Continued)

In the face of an unprecedented energy crisis and increasing energy
security concerns, EU countries have stepped up their development of
solar energy as the main source of renewable energy, accelerating the
growth of the European solar energy industry to new highs in 2022.
According to a report by the industry organization SolarPower Europe,
a record 41.4 GW of solar power capacity was installed in the EU in
2022, an increase of 47% over the 28.1 GW installed in 2021.
Among EU countries, Germany outpaced the rest of the EU in terms
of installed solar power capacity, adding nearly 8 GW, representing an
increase of 31.7% year-on-year; closely followed by Spain with 7.5
GW of new installed capacity, representing an increase of 56.3%
year-on-year; and Poland in third place with 4.9 GW, representing an
increase of 28.9% vyear-on-year; Netherlands added 4.0 GW,
representing an increase of 11.1% year-on-year; France added 2.7
GW, representing a decrease of 3.7% year-on-year; ltaly added 2.6
GW, representing an increase of 188.9% year-on-year; Portugal,
which entered the top ten for the first time, added 2.5 GW, saw its
solar installations increase by 251% compared with 2021; Denmark
added 1.5 GW, representing an increase of 87.5% year-on-year;
Greece added 1.4 GW, representing an increase of 55.6%
year-on-year; Sweden added 1.1 GW, representing an increase of
120% year-on-year. In one year, the total amount of solar power in
the EU increased by 25% to 208.9 GW from 167.5 GW in 2021.

In May 2022, the European Commission proposed the “REPowerEU”
plan, aimed at ending the EU’'s dependence on Russian fossil fuels,
while addressing the climate crisis, which caused the Europe Market
to grow up rapidly in 2022. In order to stimulate local capacity, “The
Green Deal Industrial Plan” was proposed at the beginning of 2023,
it is estimated that the change of energy structure in Europe will
continue and the demand for photovoltaic installation will remain
high. Solar energy has become a cornerstone of the EU’s transition to
clean energy. Therefore, the EU will continue to accelerate the
deployment of solar energy. It is believed that the European solar
energy industry will grow steadily and vigorously in 2030.
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Market Overview (Continued)

According to JMK Research, India’s total annual installed solar power
capacity was approximately 14 GW in 2022, ranks second in Asia in
terms of installed photovoltaic capacity, including 11.3 GW of
utility-scale PV installations, approximately 1.9 GW of rooftop PV
installations and nearly 700 MW of distributed capacity. According to
analysis and consulting firm Mercom India Research, the
manufacturing capacity of solar modules is expected to reach
approximately 95 GW by the end of 2025. As stated by the report,
Indian PV manufacturers are strategically poised to expand capacity
and adopt new technologies in the coming years, supported by
government incentive programs and research and development. Based
on data from India’s Ministry of New and Renewable Energy (MNRE),
the country’s cumulative installed renewable energy capacity totaled
120.9 GW by the end of 2022, of which solar energy accounted for
approximately 52% of the entire renewable energy portfolio. The
Indian government is determined to develop India as a solar module
manufacturing center and establish a complete photovoltaic
manufacturing value chain to address supply chain issues. In
September 2022, the Indian government approved the
implementation of the second phase of the Production Linked
Incentive (PLI) scheme, worth up to US$2.4 billion, meaning that the
country is poised to realize GW-scale production of high-efficiency
solar photovoltaic modules. Despite its huge solar potential, India is
currently making slow progress in increasing its installed solar
capacity. As a result, it will need to make greater efforts to achieve
its goal of generating 50% of its electricity demand from renewable
sources by 2030.

Looking at the trends of major solar energy markets worldwide, a
number of countries have attached greater importance to the
development of solar energy in 2022 and, going forward, are willing
to invest more resources and capital to expand production and
develop new technologies. As a renewable energy source, solar energy
can not only replace fossil fuels to cope with the climate crisis and
help achieve carbon neutrality, but also meet people’s energy security
requirements. The determination of countries to develop solar energy
will surely lead the global solar energy industry to go longer and
further.
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Operation Review
Operations Summary

In order to address climate change and mitigate the impact of rising
fossil fuel prices, clean and renewable energy has become a new
trend of the world. With the continuous technological advances and
cost reductions, photovoltaic power is now the renewable energy with
the greatest development potential and the lowest cost compared
with the inflated fossil fuel prices, so the soaring demands for
photovoltaic products in the future will be inevitable. Before
completion of the disposal of the upstream monocrystalline silicon
ingots and wafers business through the disposal of the Group’s equity
interests in Qujing Yangguang New Energy Co., Ltd.* (#i35F5 Y #76¢
TR BBR A ) ("Qujing Yangguang”), a former non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, on 30 December 2022 (the “Disposal”),
the Group maintained a solid financial performance in the
manufacturing and sales of downstream photovoltaic modules and
upstream monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers. After completion
of the Disposal, the Group has since focused on the manufacturing
and sales of downstream photovoltaic modules in the photovoltaic
industry. Our major customers of photovoltaic modules are large
domestic state-owned enterprises in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), multinational corporations and other photovoltaic end-
user customers. Moreover, the Group is engaged in the installation of
photovoltaic systems and the development, design, construction,
operation and maintenance of photovoltaic generation plants.
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Operation Review (continued)
Operations Summary (continued)

As the first batch of domestic photovoltaic enterprises engaged in the
production of czochralski monocrystalline silicon ingots, with 20 years
of experience in manufacturing monocrystalline silicon ingot, the
Group now has accumulated mature experience in terms of
technology, domestic and overseas market development, industrial
chain cooperation, brand effect, premium services, etc. Subsidiaries of
the Group have obtained 287 National patents, more than 30
provincial and municipal science and technology first prizes, second
prizes, achievement awards. The awards are: National high-tech
enterprise, National green factory, National intelligent photovoltaic
pilot demonstration enterprise, National photovoltaic manufacturing
industry specified conditions admission regulated enterprise, Provincial
intelligent manufacturing demonstration factory, Provincial green
supply chain management enterprise, Provincial four-star cloud
enterprise, Provincial Enterprise Technology Center, Provincial
Engineering Technology Research Center, Photovoltaic Testing Center
with China National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment’s
laboratory accredited, National Model Enterprise of Harmonious Labor
Relations — Excellent Enterprise, TOP 100 Global Competitive
Renewable Energy Enterprises (No.72), Top 100 New Energy
Companies Global Competitiveness (N0.92), Global Top 500 New
Energy Companies (No.189), Top 500 PRC Energy Group Companies
(No0.297), Top 20 PRC Comprehensive Companies in 2022 (No.19),
Top 20 PRC PV Module Companies in 2022 (No.12), CPC2022 Global
Research Top 100 Brand PV (No.51), 2022 Annual Influential Brand of
Innovative PV Modules. The Group is the vice chairman unit of PRC
Photovoltaic Industry Association, vice chairman unit of Semiconductor
Materials Branch of and standing council unit of China Electronic
Materials Industry Association, Household Photovoltaic Professional
Committee unit, Standardization Technical Committee unit and
Photoelectric Building Professional Committee unit of China
Photovoltaic Industry Association and expert member of Photovoltaic
Professional Committee of China Renewable Energy Society. Solar
photovoltaic modules are rated as national grade’s green design
products. The Group is also the OEM for the State Power Investment
Group (one of the five major power generation groups all year
round), the major supplier of double-sided double glass modules in
the 2018 Front Runner Plan and the major module supplier for the
power configuration project of the UHV transmission base in Hainan,
Qinghai Province, a national key project in 2019.
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Operation Review (continued)
Operations Summary (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the total annual production capacity of our
production bases was 8.2 GW of modules due to the production
scale, the high-efficiency and high production capacity layout of the
Group; whereas, as at 30 December 2022 (being the date of
completion of the Disposal), the total annual production capacity of
our production bases was 7.4 GW of monocrystalline silicon ingot
and 7.4 GW of monocrystalline silicon wafers. Overall, the Group has
demonstrated stronger comprehensive competitiveness and further
increased the market share of high quality but low-cost products.

Continuing operations
Module businesses

The Group has been engaged in module production since 2009, and
has accumulated rich experience and advanced production technology
and process in monocrystalline module production. The P-type PERC
module of the monocrystalline products that the Group focuses on
has not only become the mainstream in the market, but it also
further expanded and strengthened the development and sales of
monocrystalline silicon high- efficiency module products such as
P-type double-sided double glass modules, P-type single glass
modules, half-cell photovoltaic modules, multi busbar cell module, all-
black modules and other high-end products.

The current main base of the Group for monocrystalline module
production is located in Yancheng, Jiangsu. In addition to the various
preferential investment policies from the local government, the
Company can take advantage of significantly lowering the investment
in capital expenditure by renting plant buildings. Moreover, the area
around the Yangtze River Delta is an agglomeration area for the
supply of raw and auxiliary materials which provides advantage in
terms of procurement. In order to meet the needs of module
customers, the Group continues to expand module production
capacity in Yancheng, lJiangsu, to further strengthen the economic
scale advantage of module products. As of the end of December
2022, the module production capacity of the production base in
Yancheng, Jiangsu was 6.4 GW, while the total module production
capacity of the Group was 8.2 GW. Through the completion of the
layout of high-efficiency production capacity, it has begun to show
stronger comprehensive competitiveness and further enhance the
market share of the products.
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Operation Review (continued)
Continuing operations (continued)
Module businesses (continued)

External sales of modules were mainly made to large state-owned
enterprises and international multinational enterprises, such as State
Power Investment Corporation (FEIBIZE Hi& &S B A F]) (“SPIC”),
SHARP Corporation (“SHARP”), Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited and Xinyi
Solar Group (fE& W H{E& e & E), Sungrow Power Supply Co.,
Ltd (B3 X ERM D AR A &), China General Nuclear Power
Corporation and Astronergy etc. The Group has been cooperating
with these enterprises in continually expanding module sales for
foreign customers.

The Group focuses on the manufacturing of monocrystalline silicon
photovoltaic products. Currently, proportion of sales of the Group’s
monocrystalline silicon photovoltaic modules has reached over 99%.
Further, the Group has also introduced in SHARP's global leading 40-
year quality assurance system for photovoltaic products. The quality of
the products is stable and reliable, which could bring long-term and
stable income to end-user owners.

Construction and operation of photovoltaic system business

The Group has been actively expanding the end-user power plants
construction and application business apart from devoting its efforts in
stabilising the development of its manufacturing business, which not
only drives the sales of module products in a bottom- up manner, but
also it will spread the profit of construction and operation of
photovoltaic system businesses so as to improve the overall
profitability of the Group. The Group’s photovoltaic system business
includes traditional distributed power station EPC business, Building
Applied Photovoltaics (BAPV) business and Building Integrated
Photovoltaics (BIPV) business. With the policy background of the PRC
government’s vigorous advocacy of “hit peak emissions”, “carbon
neutrality”, the construction of “green buildings”, “zero energy
buildings” and rooftop distributed photovoltaic trial program after
"QOpinions on Promoting Green Development of Urban and Rural
Construction” issued by the State Council of PRC and the “Notice on
the Pilot Scheme of Country-wide (City, District) Distributed Rooftop
Project” published by the National Energy Administration, given the
current huge building volume and a massive amount of potential
distributed photovoltaic generation capacity for development in the
PRC, it is anticipated that BIPV business would have broad
development prospects and become a new development hotspot in
the photovoltaic industry.
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Operation Review (continued)
Continuing operations (continued)
Construction and operation of photovoltaic system business (continued)

Relying on the rich technological experience accumulated in the
photovoltaic industry and at the same time, strengthening industry-
university-research cooperation, the Group formally signed an
industry-school cooperation agreement in November 2022 with the
School of Architecture and Architectural Design Institute of Southeast
University, and will cooperate with Southeast University to establish a
BIPV research and development line to conduct in-depth research and
development in the field of zero-carbon buildings and BIPV
monocrystalline silicon, and actively lead the formulation of national
and industry standards in the area of zero-carbon green buildings. At
the same time, the industry-university-research base cooperated by the
two parties will also become the postgraduate teaching place of the
School of Architecture of Southeast University. In addition, the Group
is carrying out a series of research and development projects in
cooperation with Shenyang Jianzhu University for assembled
conservatory, the National Housing and Residential Environment
Engineering Technology Research Center for BIPV structural
components and other institutions, of which four series of BIPV
products have passed China Compulsory Certificate (“CCC")
certification, China Quality Certificate Centre (“CQC") certification,
and GB8624-2012 building materials and products combustion
performance test certification. The BIPV structural parts independently
developed by the Group have obtained six patent authorizations. The
Group expects that with the continuous development of BIPV
business, the photovoltaic system construction and application
business would have further growth.

Semi-conductor business

China has become the fastest growing country in the global
semiconductor industry. It is also the world’s largest semiconductor
application market. The Group is engaged mainly in production and
sales of 4-6 inches semiconductor grade monocrystalline silicon ingot
with heavy doping (including arsenic, antimony and phosphorus
products which are at the leading level of the industry) and 4-6
inches semiconductor grade monocrystalline silicon ingot with lightly
doping. The semiconductor business has been affected by less orders
placed by customers due to the impact of control and lockdown
measures imposed on their production facilities as a result of the
resurgence of the coronavirus pneumonia (“COVID") and polysilicon
supply bottlenecks in 2022. The Group expects that after
dismantlement of pandemic control measures, increase in supply of
polysilicon in the industry and in the context of the continuous
growth of the Chinese semiconductor market in the future, the
semiconductor business will continue to maintain growth in the next
few years, and will contribute profits to the Group.
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Operation Review (continued)
Discontinued operation
Silicon ingot and wafer business

The Group was one of the first three earliest enterprises in the PRC
to invest in the production of monocrystalline silicon ingots and
wafers. During the Year, monocrystalline silicon ingot products were
mostly used for the internal production of monocrystalline silicon
wafers within the Group, and less engaged in external sales; whereas,
monocrystalline silicon wafer products of the Group were mostly sold
to third-party large professional solar cell manufacturers.

Apart from the traditional monocrystalline P-type products, the Group
has monocrystalline N-type products with higher conversion
efficiencies. Photovoltaic cells are mainly produced by PERC
(Passivated Emitter and Rear Cell) and PERC+technology with P-type
silicon wafer base. TOPCon (Tunnel Oxide Passivated Contact) cells
and heterojunction HJT cells with monocrystalline N-type silicon wafer
base are expected to become the mainstream of next-generation
photovoltaic cells. The Group has 20 years of experience in pulling
monocrystalline N-type silicon ingot and many years of experience in
joint research and development with large multinational corporate
customers. The Group has accomplished technical breakthrough and
product marketisation of monocrystalline N-type silicon ingot at an
earlier time. N-type silicon ingots and wafers have also been supplied
to domestic and foreign customers at an earlier time, and N-type
ingots are in a leading position in the industry in respect of various
indicators having obvious advantages.

The Group’s production base of monocrystalline silicon ingot and
monocrystalline silicon wafer located in Qujing, Yunnan, the PRC with
annual production capacity of 0.9 GW project has carried out mass
production since 2021. As the investment in Qujing, Yunnan not only
enjoys various preferential investment policies from the local
government, but more importantly, the decrease in local electricity
cost (being the major manufacturing cost component of ingot-pulling)
of more than 50% compared to that at previous major production
base in Jinzhou, Liaoning, which contributed to the improvement of
the Group's overall gross profit margin as a result of the reduction of
production cost. Therefore, the Group has expanded the production
capacity of monocrystalline silicon ingot and monocrystalline silicon
wafers in Qujing, Yunnan during the Year under the rapid growth of
customer demand. As at 30 December 2022 (being the date of
completion of the Disposal), the annual production capacity of
monocrystalline silicon ingots in Qujing, Yunnan, has increased to 6
GW from 4.3 GW at the end of 2021, and the annual production
capacity of monocrystalline silicon wafers has also increased to 4 GW
from 2.5 GW at the end of 2021.
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Operation Review (continued)
Discontinued operation (continued)
Silicon ingot and wafer business (continued)

Prior to the completion of the Disposal, the Group carried out its
silicon ingot and wafer business operations through Qujing
Yangguang (a former non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
and its subsidiaries. Completion of the Disposal took place on
30 December 2022, upon which the Company no longer holds any
equity interest and Qujing Yangguang ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company, and the silicon ingot and wafer business of the Group
has been discontinued. After the Disposal, the Group has since
focused primarily on its module businesses, and also its construction
and operation of photovoltaic system business and semi-conductor
business to make them more competitive and specialised, and to
unveil the hidden value of these businesses. For further details of the
Disposal, please refer to the paragraph headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review — Significant investment
and disposal of subsidiaries” below in this report.

Operation Strategy

With vyears of rapid advancement of photovoltaic production
technology, the production cost per watt of power generation has
dropped sharply. Strictly speaking, the current photovoltaic application
has reached the target of grid parity, and strong growth in the
downstream photovoltaic installation leading to explosive sales growth
is foreseeable in the future. In the premises, production related
equipment also needs to be upgraded or added in order to be in line
with technological development. Therefore, since 2018, the Group has
been investing in upgrading and transforming existing production
capacity and invest in low-cost, high-efficiency new production
capacity. Mass output by comprehensive upgrade of production
capacity and new high-efficiency production capacity have also been
realised.

By adopting a core product strategy of continuous development of
module products, the Group effectively utilises its existing resources.
Since our photovoltaic module customers are mostly domestic state-
owned enterprises or large multinational corporations, the market
position and strength possessed by these module customers are the
strongest in the overall photovoltaic industry chain. Therefore, the
Group has established a direct supply relationship with large module
customers through significant module production capacity, which
maintains a more stable terminal product estuary.
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Operation Review (continued)
Operating Performance

The Group keeps growing the revenue. It is not only due to the
external environment of supply and demand and the release of low-
cost and high-efficiency production capacity, but also necessary to
maintain leading technology in the ever-advancing photovoltaic
industry to build up a cost advantage in order to continuously keep
obtaining purchasing orders from customers. The Group has gained
success in research and development in recent years, and has
overcome various production bottlenecks. The Group has successfully
incorporated the most advanced production technologies into mass
production, such that some production costs of our various product
lines have decreased.

Continuing operations

The external shipment volume of one of the Group’s major product,
photovoltaic modules increased from 2,842.3MW in 2021 to
4,205.3MW in 2022, representing a growth rate of 48.0%. During
the Year, the external shipment volume of photovoltaic module
products increased due to the continued growth in downstream
photovoltaic demand. However, the higher raw material costs offset
the increase in the external shipment volume of modules, resulting in
a lower gross profit contributing from the Group’s photovoltaic
modules segment compared to 2021.
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Operation Review (continued)
Operating Performance (continued)
Continuing operations (continued)

Apart from the mainstream P-type PERC monocrystalline modules, the
Group devoted to the development and sales of monocrystalline high-
efficiency module products, such as P-type double-sided double glass
modules, 182 multi busbar Black Solar (“BS”) module, and related
high-end products. Besides, the module production line of the Group
can also produce multi-busbar single or double glass of 182mm and
210mm large-size modules which the conversion could reach more
than 660 watts. In addition, the related equipment automated
intelligence and packaging technology are in the leading position in
the industry. In addition, for the 54-cell all-black module products, the
modules are packaged with all-black materials. Taking into account
the consistency and aesthetics of the module appearance, the module
itself is guaranteed to be completely black, and there is zero module-
to-module colour difference to naked eye, All-black modules enhance
product diversification, improve product competitiveness, and further
increase sales performance. According to the analysis of the recent
bidding in China’s photovoltaic market, 182mm and above
photovoltaic modules accounted for more than four-fifths of the
bidding product specifications. Since the Group’s photovoltaic module
production lines can all produce large-size scarce products such as
182mm and 210mm products which are mainstream products in the
market, they could further enhance the Group’s ability to increase the
shipment volume and provide opportunity for an increase in gross
profit margin. Moreover, the Group is also carrying out a number of
research projects for TOPCon modules, BIPV products and flexible
modules, aiming to upgrade the mass production technology of the
abovementioned products, so as to expand the market sales of
corresponding products.

BT IS ERAPRIPERCE M F 24N AEEE
BORESBREGERNRAZEMEE PR EH
AL 182Z TMBSHATSSHER - HX - &
SENEHESTATEES FMELF182mmA
210mm AR~ - EAMHIHERATE60R M
BHEAREADCE S ES RSN ITES
%o BHN BARSAF 2 BAMER  HERBEE
MHEHE AFAFREL2E  RAGZHEARE
BEKE  REAHIIBH —HEEZBE - 22
MIEFRFATERNZ L B8 TERNBS
HE— ST HEEE - REPBEXKRTISOHA
ZEEEMDNT - 182mm K HE LA EIBIE 2 HRB L
IHRIZEMBIBA/SBIA L - ARAEEEE RftEE
B A RAGEERE ST UEE182mmA
210mmMEARTER  WEARTEAFIARTH
HHABRIMELENEIRER  WARE—FRES
AEEHERNLERES  BEEMNEIZES K -
AN AREBBETE TOPCon#B 4 « BIPVE @A 4
HHEFRRTZEBEMEER - EEARLMEROH
EEERN MBEXEEERNMBHEE -



ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #3f 27

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operation Review (continued)
Operating Performance (continued)
Continuing operations (continued)

Going forward, given (a) leading technological cost advantages and
large-size product lines with higher bargaining power, the Group will
be able to continue to gain the market share; (b) the major
production base with more favorable production environment with
policy support, the Group will be able to reduce the production cost;
(c) the Group continues to expand low-cost, high-efficiency new
production capacity through more refined and smoother in production
process and operations, and the existing production capacity has also
been upgraded and transformed, and achieved stable operation,
which can further demonstrate the advantages of economies of scale,
such as lower procurement, logistics and production costs; (d) the
long-standing diversified and accumulated technological advantages of
various product lines and mix; and (e) the strong client base in PRC
and overseas, with increasing demand from new and old customers,
it is expected that the Group’s external shipment volume and revenue
will continue to grow, and the production costs will decrease because
it is expected that the impact of polysilicon supply bottlenecks along
the photovoltaic value chain can be gradually resolved through
capacity expansion in the industry. Total gross profit and gross profit
margin performance will be further improved in the long run.

Discontinued operation

The total external shipment volume of major products,
monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers, increased from 4,501.4MW
in 2021 to 4,863.TMW in 2022, representing a growth rate of 8%.
During the Year, the market demand for monocrystalline silicon ingots
and wafers continued to increase together with the increase in
Group’s high-efficiency production capacity, so the total external
shipment volume increased.

In the production of monocrystalline silicon ingots, from 20 years of
accumulated technology advantages, we have mastered a number of
leading technologies for monocrystalline silicon ingots and silicon
wafer production, such as with the upgrade of the thermal system
required for the production of monocrystalline silicon ingots, the
material feeding volume of monocrystalline furnace has increased by
approximately 33% compared with last year which greatly reduced
the production cost, the increase of growth rate of monocrystalline
silicon ingot by 10% compared with last year through the research
and development to design new type of the water-cooling and heat-
conducting device, the long-life quartz crucible developed in
cooperation with suppliers could be used for up to 500 hours, the
RCZ production process which could draw 9 to 10 ingots in one pot,
the weight of each silicon ingot increased by 18% compared with last
year, which greatly enhanced the production capacity, etc. Various
advanced production technologies significantly reduced production
costs and ensured product quality and stability is in a leading position
in the industry.
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Financial Review
Revenue

In order to replace traditional energy on a large scale, as a clean
energy, it is essential to reduce the production cost of photovoltaic
power generation through continuous technological advancement,
hence continually lowering the sales unit price of photovoltaic power.
When photovoltaic power generation finally does not need to rely on
government subsidies, the demand for photovoltaic power generation
will grow significantly. The revenue of the Group increased by 48.0%
from RMB4,640.8 million in 2021 to RMB6,869.4 million in 2022,
with a growth in total external shipment volume of photovoltaic
module of 48.0% as compared to last year. The growth was mainly
attributed to the increase in sales of the Group’'s major products,
photovoltaic modules.

Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2022, cost of sales increased from
RMB4,235.8 million in 2021 to RMB6,598.1 million, representing an
increase of 55.8%, mainly due to the increase in external shipment
volume. Cost of sales accounted for 96.1% of total revenue,
representing an increase of 4.8% points from 2021. The increase in
such ratio was mainly due to the increase in the cost of raw and
auxiliary materials were increased during the year and write-down of
inventories in 2022.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group recorded a gross profit of RMB271.3 million and a gross
profit margin of 3.9% in 2022, as compared to a gross profit of
RMB405.0 million and a gross profit margin of 8.7% in 2021, which
declined by 33.0% and 4.8% points respectively. The decline was
mainly due to the increase in the costs of raw materials used in the
production of photovoltaic modules.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly comprised terminal handling
charges, packaging expenses and other incidental expenses. The

selling and distribution expenses decreased by 44.1% from RMB142.9
million in 2021 to RMB79.9 million in 2022. The decrease in selling
and distribution expenses was due to reversal of warranty provision in
2022.
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Financial Review (continued)
Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly comprised of staff costs, research and
development expenses, legal and professional fees, office expenses
and other incidental administrative expenses. The administrative
expenses for the year amounted to RMB264.6 million, as compared to
RMB138.4 million in 2021. The increase was mainly due to increase in
research and development invested.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets

Loss allowances for trade receivables are measured at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses (“ECLs”). ECLs on trade
receivables are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions. An impairment losses on trade
receivables and contract assets of RMB21.2 million (2021: reversal of
impairment losses of RMB19.8 million) was recognised during the year
because of the increase in receivables balances over one year or
above compared with last year.

Impairment losses of property, plant and equipment

An impairment losses of property, plant and equipment amounting to
RMB43.0 million was recognized in 2022 (2021: Nil) due to the
discontinued production of certain types of photovoltaic modules
according to the Group’s business strategy.

Finance costs

Finance costs were mainly derived from bank and other borrowings.
The Group's finance costs significantly decreased from RMB102.3
million in 2021 to RMB78.8 million in 2022. The Group is aiming to
lower the finance costs gradually in the future and to obtain more
sources of financing.

Income tax

Income tax expense was RMB16.3 million in 2022, while income tax
expense amounted to RMB47.0 million in 2021. The income tax
expense was mainly derived from the provision of income tax for the
profitable subsidiaries of the Group. The decrease in income tax
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in the assessable profit from
certain profitable subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China.
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Financial Review (continued)
Profit for the year from discontinued operation

Since the completion of the Disposal of the Group’s equity interest in
Qujing Yangguang in December 2022, the Group has changed its
operating strategy by discontinuing its silicon ingot and wafer
business and devoted more resources on its continuing operations.
The profit from the discontinued operation increased from RMB237.1
million in 2021 to RMB1,246.8 million in 2022.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

The Group shows a significant improvement of profit attributable to
owners of the parent of RMB957.1 million was shown in 2022, as
compared to a profit attributable to owners of the parent of
RMB193.2 million in 2021 mainly due to the gain on disposal of its
equity interest in Qujing Yangguang completed in December 2022.

Inventory turnover days

The Group has been focusing its efforts in raising the inventory
turnover and lowering the inventory turnover days in order to
mitigate the risk of rapid decline inventory prices caused by
continuous technological advancement of photovoltaic products, and
at the same time, reducing the backlog of funds and further
strengthen the Group’s operation working capital. The inventory
turnover days of the Group during the year remain stable at 29 days
(2021: 26 days).

Trade receivable turnover days

The sales of photovoltaic modules accounted for over 90% of the
Group’s overall sales in 2021 and 2022. According to the standard
terms of the industry’'s module sales contracts, the recovery of
module receivables depends on the construction progress of the
photovoltaic power plant. For instance, some trade receivables can
only be recovered after the customer’s photovoltaic power plant is
connected to the grid. Therefore, the trade receivables turnover days
of module business are generally longer. Trade receivables turnover
days for the year has decreased to 92 days (2021: 98 days).

Trade payable turnover days

The trade payables turnover day was 163 days in 2022, which was
significantly higher comparing to 123 days in 2021 The Group would
like to utilise its operating funds in a more strategic manner for
business growth. Under stable and frequent co-operations, the
suppliers have increased our credit lines and payment terms.
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Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity and financial resources

The principal sources of working capital of the Group during the year
were cash flow from operating activities. As at 31 December 2022,
the current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) of the
Group was 1.1 (31 December 2021: 0.84). The Group had net
borrowings of RMB-1,913.3 million as at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: RMB941.8 million), including cash and cash
equivalents of RMB937.9 million (31 December 2021: RMB431.9
million), pledged deposits of RMB2,314.2 million (31 December 2021:
RMB751.3 million), bank and other loans due within one year of
RMB1,247.0 million (31 December 2021: RMB1,915.3 million) and
non-current bank and other loans of RMB91.8 million (31 December
2021: RMB209.7 million). The net debt to equity ratio (net debt
divided by total equity) was —158.7% (31 December 2021: 140.1%).

Net cash inflow from operating activities

As mentioned above, as the Group’s inventory turnover days remain
stable and trade payable turnover days have been increased because
of longer trade payable payment terms granted by suppliers during
the year, the net cash flows from operating activities significantly
increased by 132.7% from RMB1,030.4 million in 2021 to
RMB2,397.4 million in 2022.

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA")

During the year, earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA") amounted to RMB1,740.6 million (25.3% of
the revenue), represented a significant increase of 117.7% as
compared to RMB799.7 million (17.2% of the revenue (restated))
during the year ended 31 December 2021. The main reason for the
increase in EBITDA was attributed to the increase in revenue, reversal
of provision for warranty during the year and gain on disposal of the
Company’s equity interest in Qujing Yangguang completed in
December 2022.
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Financial Review (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases, cash, bank deposits and bank loans that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency,
Renminbi, of the operations to which they relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily the US Dollar and Euro. The
Directors do not expect any significant impact from the change in
exchange rates since the Group uses trade receivables in foreign
currencies received from foreign customers to settle foreign loans and
trade payables in foreign currencies which naturally mitigates the
exchange rate risk. In addition, the Group will consider the difference
in interest rates and fluctuations in the exchange rates of foreign
currency denominated and local currency-denominated loan balance,
and seize opportunities to mitigate the risk through low-risk forward
exchange agreements, in order to strike a balance between the
exposure to the variations in interest costs and fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates.

Significant investment and disposal of subsidiaries

On 25 February 2022, Solargiga Energy (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Solargiga Hong Kong”) entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Qujing Yangguang (a former indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company which ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company upon completion of the Disposal on 30 December
2022), pursuant to which Solargiga Hong Kong agreed to sell and
Qujing Yangguang agreed to acquire the entire equity interest in
Jinzhou Youhua Silicon Materials Co. Ltd (“Youhua Silicon”) at
consideration of approximately RMB227.4 million. Completion took
place on 17 March 2022, upon which, the Group’s equity interest in
Youhua Silicon reduced from 100% to 53.7%. For further details of
the disposal, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 25 February 2022 and 1 March 2022.

On 28 October 2022, the Company’s indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, Jinzhou Yangguang (as vendor), and three entities
controlled by Mr. TAN Wenhua (chairman and an executive Director
of the Company) and/or Mr. TAN Xin (chief executive officer and
executive Director of the Company) and two entities controlled by
China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (“China Lesso Group”), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2128) (as purchasers, collectively, the “Purchasers”)
entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Jinzhou
Yangguang conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchasers
conditionally agreed to acquire, the 45.0% equity interest in Qujing
Yangguang at a total consideration of RMB1,350.0 million.
Completion of the disposal took place on 30 December 2022, upon
which the Company no longer holds any equity interest and Qujing
Yangguang ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company, and the silicon
ingot and wafer business of the Group has been discontinued. For
further details of the Disposal, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 28 October 2022 and 3 January 2023, and the
circular of the Company dated 21 November 2022, respectively.
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Financial Review (continued)
Significant investment and disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
significant investment for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2021: Nil).

Convertible Bonds

On 14 April 2022, Qujing Yangguang (a former indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company which ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company upon completion of the Disposal on 30 December
2022), an investor, Mr. TAN Wenhua and Mr. TAN Xin entered into a
subscription agreement, pursuant to which Qujing Yangguang issued
the convertible bonds at a principal amount of RMB250.0 million to
the investor. For further details on the subscription agreement and the
convertible bonds, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 14 April 2022.

The net proceeds from the issue of the convertible bonds (after
deducting the relevant expenses) are approximately RMB249 million.
The details of the use of net proceeds are as follows:

Planned use of
proceeds for the year
ended 31 December
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Actual use of net
proceeds as of
30 December

Unutilised proceeds
as of 30 December

2022 2022 (Note) 2022 (Note)
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(RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB’000)
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Setting up a monocrystalline furnace facility 249,000 (249,000) —

and other equipment for the ingot
pulling process in the production of
silicon ingots and silicon wafers and
general working capital of Qujing
Yangguang
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Note: On 30 December 2022, completion of the Disposal of the Group’s 45.0%
equity interest in Qujing Yangguang at a total consideration of
RMB1,350.0 million took place, upon which Qujing Yangguang ceased
to be a subsidiary of the Company. For further details, please refer to
the paragraph headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Financial Review — Significant investment and disposal of subsidiaries”
above in this report.
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Financial Review (continued)
Human resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 3,029 employees (31
December 2021: 3,937 employees).

Outlook and strategies

Clean energy supply of photovoltaic power generation is popular and
has become the most important renewable energy source in recent
years, so it is expected that the global newly installed capacity of
photovoltaic power generation will continue to grow rapidly in 2023.
Coupled with a series of government promulgated policies to support
the development of the photovoltaic industry with an aim to lead the
energy industry transition from traditional energy sources to
renewable energy sources in an orderly manner, it is expected that
PRC and the global mid and long-term demand for photovoltaic
products will continue to experience robust growth. Following the grid
parity, photovoltaic products will be able to move further towards
full-scale marketised competition in the photovoltaic industry and
away from policy subsidies, and will progress towards self sustainable
development, advance technological progress, reduce cost of power
generation to promote the achievement in comprehensive grid parity
and will bring explosive growth for photovoltaic demand.

In order to grasp these historic opportunities and respond to the rapid
increase in demand, the Group has been expanding production
capacity of monocrystalline silicon modules to take advantage of the
external production environment in different areas, enabling the
Group to fully utilise its current technological advantages in
production.

As a renewable and clean energy source, in respect of photovoltaic
power generation, the road to grid parity may be a painful change,
but the expected explosive growth in the market after reaching grid
parity will provide an opportunity for the industry. As ever, positing
itself as a leading supplier of monocrystalline silicon photovoltaic
modules in the industry, the Group is fully prepared by relying on its
existing advantages and will do its utmost, to embrace the long-term
promising prospect for the photovoltaic industry, help achieve the
goal of “carbon neutrality” in 2060 in China, and contribute to the
sustainable development of the global environment and a future of
negative carbon emission.
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EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Financial Review — Significant investment and disposal of
subsidiaries” above in this report, completion of the Disposal of the
45.0% equity interest in Qujing Yangguang at a total consideration
of RMB1,350.0 million took place on 30 December 2022, with
approximately RMB229,950,000 of the consideration received from
two entities controlled by China Lesso Group as at 13 January 2023.
For further details of the Disposal, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 28 October 2022 and 3 January 2023, and
the circular of the Company dated 21 November 2022, respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the Group’s
consolidated financial results for the year ended 31 December 2022,
and has discussed and reviewed the risk management, internal control
and reporting matters.

DIVIDEND
No final dividend was paid in 2022 (2021: Nil). The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for 2022 (2021: Nil).

On 28 October 2022, in view of the gain from the Disposal and with
the intention of allowing shareholders of the Company to monetise a
portion of their investment in the Company, the Directors proposed
the declaration of a special dividend of HK7 cents per ordinary share,
which was subsequently approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting on 7 December 2022
and paid to the shareholders of the Company on 30 January 2023.
For further details of the special dividend, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 28 October 2022, 7
December 2022 and 3 January 2023, and the circular of the
Company dated 21 November 2022, respectively.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 16
June 2023 to 21 June 2023, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 15 June
2023.
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Overview

The board of Directors (the “Board”) strives to attain and maintain
high standards of corporate governance and adopt sound corporate
governance practices to meet the legal and commercial standards.
This report outlines the principles and the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”), as contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) which have been adopted by the Group.

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with the Code to oversee the financial
reporting procedures and internal controls of the Group so as to
ensure compliance with the Listing Rules. The Company has also
established a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
(collectively, the “Board Committees”) with defined terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees have been
posted on the websites of Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Group has implemented a compliance manual which covers areas
such as ongoing compliance obligations of the Company and the
Directors, business operations of the Group, financial management
systems, human resources management systems, internal control
systems, quality assurance and property management systems. In the
opinion of the Board, all the code provisions set out in the Code
were met by the Company throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2022.

Compliance with the Model Code for
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities
transactions entered into by Directors. The Company has made
specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2022.
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The Board of Directors

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of overall business
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitoring the performance of the management team. The Directors
have the responsibility to act objectively in the interests of the
Company. The Directors also assume the following responsibilities for
corporate governance as set out in code provision A.2.1 of the Code:

(@) to develop and review an issuer’'s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the issuer’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(e)  to review the issuer’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprises seven Directors,
including three executive Directors: Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman),
Mr. TAN Xin (Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. WANG Junze, one
non-executive Director: Mr. HSU You Yuan, and three independent
non-executive Directors: Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert, Ms. CHUNG
Wai Hang and Ms. TAN Ying. The names and biographical details of
the Directors are set out in the section entitled “Directors, Company
Secretary and Senior Management Profile” in the annual report. The
Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over
half of the board members being non-executive Directors to ensure
that all decisions of the Board are made in the best interest of the
Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
Committees. Further details of these committees are set out below
"Board Committees” section.
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Board Meetings

The Company holds Board meetings regularly, at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also be
convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of Board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a
regular Board meeting. Reasonable notices will be given to the
Directors for ad-hoc Board meetings. Board papers together with all
appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all
Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments,
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. Each Director also has separate and independent
access to the senior management whenever necessary. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications. The Company will provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All
the Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 16 Board meetings and 3
Shareholders meetings were held and the attendance of individual
Directors at these meetings is set out below:

EEEER
AARMESEREEERNELRTINL - AL
SFBRT-K EEEEBNEAMEHEEE 5
SEREERARAEEGLELRIKRSD 20T
ERREGTHESe R RN RS URBRESS
AL MEHEEEERASMENENAE
BRENERTES - SR A XA BERMEEY -
SRR ENAN SRR RS E R R
ELIRNBETHEES  LEEEREALR
FHE - BEHRREESEARBER FELRE -
REEE . 5% 5 A B8 0B T S e
B-EEAEERSRABTRAS N NERS -
AARERE RN A E R R AEeE LR
BEMEK o TGS B EES TN B AETER
B OUAEEAEEY  RABBRERB T B
BR BEMAQKE - FEEEHASHET
METMAESGR LR -

BEZE--_F+-_A=+—BLEERN EF&
WEITIGNESEERNINREARE  MER =
ERFAEHEERNBERETNT

Attendance/Number of Meetings HEREERE
Board Shareholders EEYg
Name of Directors meetings meetings EEHR =f BRERKXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. TAN Wenhua BNESLA (EE)

(Chairman) 16/16 3/3 16/16 3/3
Mr. TAN Xin 16/16 3/3 EaraE 16/16 3/3
Mr. WANG Junze 16/16 3/3 THELE 16/16 3/3
Non-executive Director EHITES
Mr. HSU You Yuan 16/16 3/3 S #h R 52 A 16/16 3/3
Independent non- BIYKHITES

executive Directors
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, FoxREE L

Albert 16/16 3/3 16/16 3/3
Ms. FENG Wenli (resigned BBt (8

with effect from 11 July —E-__F+A

2022) 7/16 1/3 +— BB E) 7/16 1/3
Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang BRI+ (8

(appointed with effect —E-_F+A

from 11 July 2022) 9/16 2/3 +—HREZE) 9/16 2/3
Mr. LIAN Tao (resigned with BRELEE(E

effect from 18 October —E-—%+A

2022) 12/16 2/3 +\BBEE) 12/16 2/3
Ms. TAN Ying (appointed EES =

with effect from 18 g A

October 2022) 4/16 1/3 +\BREZFE) 4/16 1/3

The Chairman also held a meeting with independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors for the year ended
31 December 2022.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

All independent non-executive Directors possess a wealth of
professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have
played a significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent
judgment and their views carry significant weight in the Board's
decision. In particular, they bring impartial views to the Board on
issues of the Company’s strategy, performance and control. The Board
also considers that independent non-executive Directors provide
independent advice on the Company’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of shareholders are taken into
consideration, and the interests of the Company and its shareholders
are taken into account in all business decisions. The Company has
received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to the criteria
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive Director who has
served the Board for more than nine years, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

Where an individual is proposed to be elected as an Independent
Non-executive Director at the general meeting, the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of
the relevant general meeting will include:

o the process used for identifying the individual and why the Board
believes the individual should be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

o if the proposed independent non-executive Director will be
holding their seventh (or more) listed company directorship,
why the Board believes the individual would still be able to
devote sufficient time to the Board;

o the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can
bring to the Board; and

o how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert has served as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company for more than ten years. As
an independent non-executive Director with extensive experience and
knowledge and in-depth understanding of the Company’s operations
and business, he has expressed objective views and given independent
guidance to the Company over the past years, and he continue to
demonstrate a firm commitment to their role.

The Nomination Committee and the Board consider that the long
service of Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert would not affect his exercise
of independent judgement and is satisfied that Dr. WONG Wing
Kuen, Albert has the required character, integrity and experience to
continue fulfilling the role of an independent non-executive Director.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua has been appointed as an executive Director for a
specific term of three years commencing from 24 June 2021.
Mr. TAN Xin and Mr. WANG Junze have been appointed as an
executive Director for a specific term of three years commencing
from 30 June 2020 and 23 June 2022 respectively. Such terms are
subject to re-appointment by the Company at an annual general
meeting upon retirement.

Mr. HSU You Yuan has been appointed as non-executive Director for
a specific term of three years commencing from 23 June 2022. Such
terms are subject to re-appointment by the Company at an annual
general meeting upon retirements.

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director for a specific term of three years commencing
from 24 June 2021, Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang and Ms. TAN Ying have
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director for a
specific term of three years commencing from 11 July 2022 and
18 October 2022 respectively. Such terms are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. TAN Wenhua, Mr. TAN Xin and Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, and will offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting.

In accordance with Article 86 of the Company’s articles of
association, Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang and Ms. TAN Ying, who were
appointed as independent non-executive Directors to fill a casual
vacancy of the Board on 11 July 2022 and 18 October 2022,
respectively, shall hold office only until the AGM, and will, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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Training and Professional Development

In compliance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Directors have been given
relevant guideline materials to ensure that they are apprised of the
latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in
relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge
and skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director.

All Directors had provided a record of training they received during
the year to the Company. According to the training records provided
by the Directors, the trainings attended by them during the reporting
period is summarised as follows:

Trainings on
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BIREXER
RBECEERTANENECIAE MEEFHFL
BFFEEERR  NBERMEHRE 2 MBS IREE -
EXCEEABESIEN  BRESAMTEARNRR]
EBHBAZRHEE EENEEEREY Wi
EREH EMARERZRA - BEMBEZNH
FHXBE

EREFCAARARKFARSEERZ 2HIIRL
o RBEFRMHIEIZE  REXBEHBES
pilipra= il g Ul

corporate
governance and TEER
regulatory EEBREZ
Directors development == 3
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman) v/ BN ELE (FE) v/
Mr. TAN Xin v EELE v
Mr. WANG Junze v FTHELE v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. HSU You Yuan v FF #h R 5T A v/
Independent Non-executive Directors BUYFHITES
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert v FoKEBE L v
Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang v BEHTL L v
Ms. TAN Ying v Rt v/
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer FERITHRAEAR
Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the IRIRMBEEATAMRNEC 21§ EERITHER

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should be
separated and should not be performed by the same individual.

The role of the Chairman was performed by Mr. TAN Wenhua.
Mr. TAN Wenhua is an executive Director who is responsible for the
management of the Board and he also involves in the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. The role of CEO is performed
by Mr. TAN Xin.

Mr. TAN Wenhua is the father of Mr. TAN Xin. Save as disclosed,
there was no financial, business, family or other material relationship
among the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (continued)

The overall management of the Company was performed by the CEO,
executive Directors and senior management of the Company. The
executive Directors (Mr. TAN Wenhua, Mr. TAN Xin and Mr. WANG
Junze) who have extensive experience in the solar energy industry and
their respective areas of profession, spearhead the Group’s overall
development and business strategies.

Board Committees
Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of and
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include overseeing the financial reporting processes and
internal control procedures of the Group, reviewing the financial
information of the Group and considering issues relating to the
external auditor. Currently, the Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. WONG Wing Kuen,
Albert (Chairman), Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang and Ms. TAN Ying.

TERTHEAR @

TRER AATRATEERSREEBEEAA
FREE o MITEEE LA  EEEART
PR RABEEL RS AL AT LY
EMEH AR EERERRE D ERERIEY EE
A .

ARBEER EMHRANEI2IE3.23E R+ T
RREKR I BEREZES  WAEEPAEREHE -
ENEEENTIEREOREBSASENY KRS
BFrhkABERRRF BHASEMEER UK
EEEMINEZEMNER BE%EZ88BEERA=
ZEBIIEMITERMER B EAKER L (X)) &
BN LT RERL L -

In 2022, the Audit Committee met 2 times and the attendance of R_-ZE- "% BRZECLHRIT2REE  MER
individual Directors at these meetings is set out below: ExHEERASZOBAENET
Attendance/
Number of HER
Name of Directors meetings EENS BERE
Independent non-executive Directors BIAKHITES
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (Chairman) 2/2 FoxiEEL (FE) 2/2
Ms. FENG Wenli (resigned with effect BYXBzt (BT
from 11 July 2022) 172 +tA+—BEET) 1/2
Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang gERIZT (A2 -
(appointed with effect from 11 July, 2022) 1/2 +tA+—RBEZE) 1/2
Mr. LIAN Tao (resigned with effect FREEE(AZE ==
from 18 October 2022) 2/2 A+ NRREE) 22
Ms. TAN Ying (appointed with effect BRLT(BZZEZ_F
from 18 October 2022) N/A +A+ N \BREZT) T3 A
The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's annual consolidated HBixZEB@CEMAEBR _T_—F+_A=+—

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
interim financial report for the six months ended 30 June 2022,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, and has also discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters with the management. The Audit Committee also
monitored the Company’s progress in implementing the CG Code as
required under the Listing Rules.

BLFEZFEGAMBRRARBE_T-__FX
A=TBRLERNEAZTHEBRS  BRAKER
MEEEERIRER - TEREEEHARE W
MEZEMVBERBREE - BEREZESNEEAR
RIE EMRANERAPTEEE AT ZETE -



Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 pursuant to
Rules 3.25 to 3.27 of and Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company's structure for
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration. Currently, the Remuneration Committee
consists of four members; three of whom are independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. TAN Ying (Chairman), Dr. WONG
Wing Kuen, Albert and Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang, and one is an
executive Director, namely, Mr. TAN Wenhua.

In 2022, the Remuneration Committee met 3 times and the
attendance of individual Directors at the meeting is set out below:
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Attendance/
Number of HE=R

Name of Directors meetings EENR BERE
Independent non-executive Directors BIYKHITES
Mr. LIAN Tao (Ex-chairman) FELE(FERE) (B2

(resigned with effect from 18 October 2022) 3/3 + A+ /\HEET) 3/3
Ms. TAN Ying (Chairman) (appointed with BRAT(FE) (BT

effect from 18 October 2022) N/A +A+ N \BREZT) 38 A
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 3/3 FokRERE L 3/3
Ms. FENG Wenli (resigned with effect BXBLLT(BZZ__F

from 11 July 2022) 2/3 + A+ —HReET) 2/3
Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang (appointed with effect EEWA T (BT F

from 11 July 2022) 1/3 +tA+—RREEZE) 1/3
Executive Director BITES
Mr. TAN Wenhua 3/3 B ELL 3/3

The Remuneration Committee has made recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration policy of the Company. In addition,
it has also reviewed and approved management’s remuneration
proposal and directors’ service contracts by reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board, and ensured that no
Director or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

FMEZE SR ARAHFMERNESSRMHEE -
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Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 pursuant to
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for recruiting Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for nomination procedures and process and
criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to select and
recommend candidates for directorship and senior management.
Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of four members; three
of whom are independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang (Chairman), Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert and
Mr. TAN Ying, and one is a non-executive Director, namely, Mr. HSU
You Yuan.

BEEZERH)
TE%ZEE@
BiE EmRA
F_EEAE H +tELLmﬁm;ﬁi%%
ZEE -RAZESNTIERERERARRAES
&ﬂi&giﬁkgmﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ& SRR FIRERES
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In 2022, the Nomination Committee met 3 times and the attendance R-ZT - _—F - ELTESLHERTINEE - MER
of individual Directors at the meeting is set out below: ExHEEBASZONBAENET
Name of Directors Attendance BEENSR HER
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Ms. FENG Wenli (Ex-chairman) BXBZLT (Fi£E) (B2 ==
(resigned with effect from 11 July 2022) 2/3 + A+ HRBET) 2/3
Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang (Chairman) EEnZ T (FE)( BT+
(appointed with effect from 11 July 2022) 1/3 A+—BREZT) 1/3
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 3/3 FoxRERE L 3/3
Mr. LIAN Tao (resigned with effect BREAE(BZT__F
from 18 October 2022) 3/3 +ATNAREE) 3/3
Ms. TAN Ying (appointed with effect BRLT(BZZEZ_F
from 18 October 2022) N/A +A+ N \BREZE) T3 A
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. HSU You Yuan 3/3 FEHROR 5 3/3

The Nomination Committee has discussed matters relating to the
appointment of a director or senior management members during the
year. The Nomination Committee also considered and resolved that all
the existing Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the
Company.

REZBEEFACTRABZIREFTASRE
BEEKENEE REZEGTEEENREMA
REERAHAREHEBEE -



Board Committees (continued)
Board Diversity

The Board has a board diversity policy which is available on the
Company’s website. In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives
among members of the Board, it is the policy of the Company to
consider a number of factors when deciding on appointments to the
Board and the continuation of those appointments. Such factors
include gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and the
legitimate interests of the Company’s principal shareholders. The
Board considered the Company has achieved the objective of board
diversity and gender diversity during the year.

As at 31 December 2022, the workforce (including senior
management) comprised of 36.6% female and 63.4% male. The
Company is determined to and will continue to achieve and maintain
gender diversity and equality in terms of the Board and the general
workforce.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in note 9 to the Financial Statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed “Directors,
Company Secretary and Senior Management” in this annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2022 by band is set out in note 10 to
the Financial Statements.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

During the year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors nor their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business that competed or might compete
with the business of the Group.

Mr. TAN Wenhua has confirmed to the Company of his compliance
with the non-competition undertakings provided to the Company
under a non-competition undertaking dated 27 February 2008
("Non-competition undertaking”). The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that
all the undertakings under the Non-competition undertaking had been
complied with and duly enforced from 1 January 2022 and up to
31 December 2022.
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Chief Financial Officer and the Finance
Department of the Company, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group. In the
preparation of financial statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies
have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to present a
clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the
annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate
disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.

Auditors’” Remuneration

The performance and remuneration of the external auditors of the
Company, Ernst & Young, have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the fees paid and
payable to Ernst & Young and other external auditors in respect of
audit services amounted to approximately RMB3,148,000 (2021:
RMB2,937,000 (restated)). In addition, approximately RMB1,220,000
(2021: RMB553,000) was charged for other non-audit services.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and the internal
control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Company conducted regular review to monitor the Company’s
internal management and operation during the year. Procedures have
been designed to review the risk management functions and to
ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, ensure
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Company’s
risk management and internal control system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

During the year, the Board supervised the management’s design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems, and reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group; such
review covered all major control aspects of the Group, including
financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Group's internal audit team plays an important role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The internal audit team
mainly monitors and reviews the matters relating to the internal
control and compliance of the Company, and provides regular
risk-oriented internal audits for its subsidiaries. The internal audits
cover sales, financial reporting and information security and so on.
The internal audit team reports to the Board once a year. The review
covered each of the twelve months of 2022.
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control
(continued)

Risk management and internal control (continued)

In order to fulfil their fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and
diligence, the Directors will constantly seek advice and assistance from
the Company’s internal legal team and if necessary, seek advice from
external legal advisors in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Company also
adopted internal control procedures relating to, among others, signing
authority and procedures since February 2007. The Company has an
Audit and Legal Department consisting 4 members with extensive
experience in the legal field. The main duties of the Audit and Legal
department include:

o providing legal advice on major business decisions

o reviewing and drafting legal documents

o handling legal disputes

o advising on legal issues related to daily operations

o conducting internal training for compliance matters

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board considered that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are adequate
and effective and the Company has complied with the CG Code in
respect of risk management and internal control.

Whistleblowing policy

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy. Whistleblowing
channels are published in all workplace. The policy is to facilitate
employees, partners and customers to report complaints and internal
malpractices to the audit and legal department of the Company, who
will review, investigate and follow up these complaints. Once cases
are verified, investigation results will be announced within the
Company as warnings.

Directors’ responsibility on the financial statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, which
were prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company,
Ernst & Young, on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are set out in the section entitled “Independent Auditor's Report” in
the annual report.

Going concern

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Investors Relations

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy with
the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders and potential investors
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company.
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control
(continued)

Investors Relations (continued)

The Company places strong emphasis on its communications with
investors, and considers that maintaining on-going and open
communications with investors can promote investors’ understanding
of and confidence in the Company. The Company disclosed all
necessary balanced and understandable information to the
Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules and met with
media, securities analysts, fund managers and investors on a regular
basis to respond to their enquiries so as to provide them with a
clearer picture of the Company’'s achievements in business,
management, strategic goals and other aspects.

The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and Shareholders. The
Company will meet with the Shareholders and respond to their
enquiries in the general meetings. The executive Directors attended
the annual general meeting and two extraordinary general meetings
of the Company held on 23 June 2022, 17 August 2022 and
7 December 2022 respectively.

The Company has reviewed the shareholders communication policy
conducted for the year ended 31 December 2022 and considered that
the shareholders communication policy has been well implemented
and effective.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat whose
biographical details are set out in the section headed "Directors,
Company Secretary and Senior Management Profile” in this annual
report.

Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat has confirmed that he had attained no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training for the year ended
31 December 2022, as required by Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company (“EGM")

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies
Act (2011 Revision) or the articles of association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures set
out in the preceding paragraph.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)
Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post or by
facsimile, together with his/her contact details, such as postal address,
email or fax, addressing to the Board at the head office of the
Company at the following address or facsimile number:

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited

Room 1402, Harbour Centre

25 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Attention to: Board of Directors/Company Secretary
Fax: 852 3416 2111

Changes to Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were changes in the
Company’s constitutional documents, and the new set of amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association of the
Company was published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. For the details of the amendments to the then
memorandum and articles of association of the Company, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 27 April 2022 and the
AGM circular of the Company dated 28 April 2022.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information
should be announced immediately when it is the subject of a
decision.

The procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information are as follows:

o the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

o the Group has implemented its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of information to the
public through channels such as financial reporting, public
announcements and the Company's website;

o the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential
or inside information; and

o the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group's affairs, so
that only the executive Directors, the Company Secretary and
the staff responsible for investor relations of the Company are
authorised to communicate with parties outside the Group.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua (B3 %), aged 66, an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board. He was one of the founders of the Jinzhou
Plants in 2001. He was conferred various honours including the Model
for the Labour of the Nation, the medal of “May 1st” Labour of
Liaoning Province, the Builders Merit award of Liaoning Province, the
Outstanding Entrepreneur of the Building Materials Industry of the
Nation, the Venture Entrepreneur of the Liaoning Province and First
Prize Entrepreneur of Jinzhou. Prior to the founding of Jinzhou Plants,
he was the Chairman of #HR/MNHEAEKE (SE)EREETQA
(Jinzhou Xinhua Quartz Glass (Group) Co., Ltd.) and the Director of
8 —FA AW (Jinzhou 155 Factory), a state-owned factory engaging
in quartz crucibles manufacturing. He has been granted a special
subsidy by the State Council in 2004 for his contribution in
engineering technology. He is the father of Mr. Tan Xin, the
executive Director of the Company and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

Mr. TAN Xin (%), aged 39, is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He holds a bachelor's degree of
Marketing from the Macau University of Science and Technology, and
a master’s degree of Business Administration from University of East
Anglia, the U.K. Mr. Tan is also the representative at the 11th and
12th member congress of the National Association of Industry and
Commerce (& B T H%), Representative at the 17th National
Congress of the Communist Youth League (& @), Standing
Committee Member of the 11th and 12th Liaoning Province
Association of Industry and Commerce (EE4 TiEm#£B4 ), and the
Vice President of the Liaoning General Chamber of Commerce (&%
£ #rg), Standing member of the 10th and 11th Liaoning Province
Youth Federation (EZEE S FHAGTEFLZEGKE), Member of the
12th and Standing Member of the 13th Jinzhou Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (88115
TIEBBEES, FTZERHEBZEZE), and the 1st and 2nd
President of the Jinzhou Youth Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Tan was
awarded the Liaoning “Excellent Entrepreneur” (fBF (%K), the 4th
Constructors’ Medal (P JEERE £E), the “May 1st Labour
Medal” (fi—%&)#8%), the Jinzhou “Model Workers” (4 B)iE#0),
“Meritorious Entrepreneur” (B1E){E2R), “Technology Expert with
Outstanding Contributions in Jinzhou” (M MAEZREEMEEER)
“Outstanding Private Entrepreneurs” (£ R & M%) and “Top 10
New Industrial Enterprises” (T2 +AK##L{%¥%K) and “Top Ten
Young Entrepreneurs” (T{ESFFRZEZKR) and other honorary titles.
Mr. TAN took up the position of Chief Executive Officer of the Group
since October 2016. Before taking the role of the Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. Tan also worked in other subsidiaries within the Group
and accumulated plenty of experiences from his prior positions. He is
the son of Mr. TAN Wenhua who is an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company.
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Directors (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. WANG Junze (E#93£), aged 51, is an executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Company on 1 January 2007 and was the
deputy general manager of China region, who was responsible for the
accounting and finance matter of the Group. He obtained a Master of
Business Administration from the State University of New Jersey
(Rutgers). He is a certified public accountant in Maryland, the United
States. Prior to joining the Group, he was a Special Assistant to
President & Deputy Spokesman of The Office of General Manager of
WWX, the Spokesman and Chief Financial Officer of Panram
International Corp., a company listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market
in Taiwan.

Non-executive Director

Mr. HSU You Yuan (5F#H), aged 68, is a non-executive Director of
the Company. He joined the Group on 6 February 2007 and was
appointed an executive Director on the same date. He graduated with
a master degree in Business Administration from the Chinese Culture
University in 1980. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HSU was the
Managing Director of Wafer Works Corp. (“WWX") from 1998 to
2003 and later became the Vice-Chairman of WWX in 2003. WWX is
a manufacturer of silicon wafer for the semiconductor industry and is
listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market in Taiwan in 2002. He was
the managing director of Silicon Technology Investment (Cayman)
Corp. and was appointed the Chief Executive Officer of Solar
Technology Investment (Cayman) Corp. In March 2006, he was
appointed a director and he was subsequently appointed as the
Chairman of the board of Jinzhou Youhua in September 2006.
Mr. HSU’s previous work credentials also include acting as Deputy
General Manager of Mosel Vitelic Inc., a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange and as a director and Executive Vice-President
of Mosel Vitelic (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of Mosel Vitelic Inc.
Mr. HSU had also made contributions to non-commercial sectors in
the past. He served as a researcher, a deputy director, and the
director of Business Department of the Executive Yuan Development
Fund of Taiwan (Note: Executive Yuan Development Fund is now
known as National Development Fund, Executive Yuan). He was also
a lecturer of Statistics and Managerial Mathematics for the Business
Administration department at the Chinese Culture University. Mr. HSU
has been an independent non-executive director of China Shanshui
Cement Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since September 2018. In January 2021,
he has been a president of Little Aid from Everyone Association (/J\&
HEme).
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Directors (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (E7k%), aged 71, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 12 January 2008.
Dr. Wong is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, Chartered Institute
for Securities and Investments, UK, Association of International
Accountants, Society of Registered Financial Planners, Hong Kong, The
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Ireland, UK, as well as a
member of Hong Kong Securities Institute, The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators, Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants and an
associate member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scotland,
UK. He holds a Doctor of Philosophy in Business Administration
degree from the Bulacan State University, Republic of the Philippines.
Dr. WONG had been a director and Chief Executive Officer of
Minghua Group International Holdings Limited, a listed public
company in the United States, until 30 September 2004.

Since 1 January 2018, Dr. WONG was appointed as the Principal
Consultant of KND Associates CPA Limited. Dr. WONG has been an
independent non-executive director of APAC Resources Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, since July 2004; an independent non-executive director of
China Merchants Land Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since June 2012; an independent
non-executive director of China VAST Industrial Urban Development
Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, in August 2014 to December 2022; an
independent non-executive director of China Wan Tong Yuan
(Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, since September 2017; an independent
non-executive director of Capital Finance Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the GEM board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, for the
period from January 2018 to January 2022; an independent
non-executive director of China Medical & HealthCare Group Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, since December 2018; an independent non-executive
director of Dexin China Holdings Company Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since February
2019; an independent non-executive director of Dexin Services Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, since April 2023.

Dr. WONG is an independent non-executive Director of the Company
and has served on the Board for more than 10 years. As an
Independent Non-executive Director with extensive experience and
knowledge and in-depth understanding of the Company’s operations
and business, Dr. WONG has expressed objective views and given
independent guidance to the Company over the past years. He
continues to demonstrate a firm commitment to his role.
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Directors (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.3.4 of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination
Committee and the Board consider that Dr. WONG, being a Certified
Public Accountant, is able to complement the professional background
of the composition of the Board in terms of expertise in accounting
and financial reporting. Notwithstanding Dr. WONG holds various
company directorships in listed companies in Hong Kong, he devoted
sufficient time in fulfilling his role in the Company. During the past
year, he attended and actively participated in the discussions in all the
Board meetings and committee meetings which he was eligible to
attend.

The Nomination Committee and the Board consider that the long
service of Dr. WONG would not affect his exercise of independent
judgment and are satisfied that Dr. WONG has the required
character, integrity and experience to continue fulfilling the role of an
Independent Non-executive Director and consider Dr. WONG to be
independent.

Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang (##¥7), aged 53, an independent
non-executive Director of the Group. She joined the group and was
appointed as an Independent non-executive Director on 11 July 2022.
She holds a bachelor's degree of Social Science from Lingnan
University and a master’'s degree of Science in International Real
Estate with distinction from Royal Agricultural University, United
Kingdom. Ms. CHUNG has about 30 years of working experiences in
private enterprises and listed companies in Hong Kong, and has led
one of the Hong Kong companies with manufacturing plants in
mainland China to carry out business development and general
management. She has professional knowledge in real estate
development and corporate governance, and practical experiences in
domestic and overseas investment, asset and portfolio management
and valuation in the past 10 years. She is a life member of The Hong
Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association.
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Directors (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Ms. TAN Ying (%), aged 57, an independent non-executive
Director of the Group. She joined the group and was appointed as an
Independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2022. has more
than 30 years of experience in the legal and academic industry in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). She worked as a full-time
lawyer at Jinzhou City Huaying Law Firm* (%) 3 5 2 B0 F 75 F)
from September 1990 to February 1996, and subsequently as a
part-time lawyer at Liaoning Qiuming Law Firm* (GEZFKSE2AME5
FT) since then. Since March 1996, she has been teaching at and is
currently a professor in the Faculty of Law of The Bohai University (3
B ARESRERR) in the PRC. She is also a part-time legal advisor to
certain governmental bodies (including the Jinzhou Municipal People’s
Government (88N ARBUFT)) and arbitrator in the PRC. Ms. TAN
obtained a bachelor's degree in law from the China University of
Political Science and Law (FEIBUEARZ) in 1994, and further
obtained a master’s degree in economics from The Nankai University
(FIFIKE) in the PRC in 1999. Ms. TAN holds the Teachers’
Qualification Certificate of the PRC* (R A RZEFIBIZEN & 15 7%), the
Legal Professional Qualification Certificate of the PRC* (ff%E AR £LFI
B AR EKEE) and the Legal Practicing Qualification Certificate
of the PRC* (h#EAREFEZAMLAZEEILE). From 11 February
2018 to 30 October 2019, Ms. TAN was an independent
non-executive director of Bank of Jinzhou Co., Ltd.* (S8MRTTIRHHE
[R7A7]), a company listed on the main board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

The Directors’ interest or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"”) are set out in the section
headed “Interest and Short Positions of the Directors and the Chief
Executives of the Company in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations” in this
annual report. Each Director has been appointed for a term of three
years. The Directors’ emoluments, the basis of determining the same
(including any bonus payments, whether fixed or discretionary in
nature, irrespective of whether the Director has or does not have a
service contract) and the Directors’ fees are set out in note 9 to the
Financial Statements and the section headed and “Report of the
Directors — Emolument Policy” of this annual report. Save as
disclosed above, each Director confirmed that there are no other
matters that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders
of the Company and there is no other information which is required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Company Secretary

Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat (#7&3£), aged 53, is the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Yeung graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree of business
administration and obtained a master’s degree in professional
accounting with distinction from Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He worked at a major international accounting firm for over 10 years
and then worked for various Hong Kong listed companies as
vice-president, chief financial officer, financial controller and/or
company secretary. He possesses extensive experience in auditing,
accounting, business management, corporate restructuring and
corporate finance.

Senior Management

Mr. ZHANG Hai (5&%), aged 40, the General Manager of the
Module Business Department of the Group. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in information technology and business management at
Northeastern University, master's degree in energy management from
Tulane University. He is a PhD candidate of Business Administration at
the Belhaven University and is an electrical engineer. In 2010,
Mr. ZHANG was employed by Huachang Photovoltaic Technology Co.,
Ltd (ZFEENKRBIEARAR) as the head of Quality Assurance
Department. He served as the head of Group Quality Control
Department in 2012 and the director of Group Quality Management
Department in February 2014. In August 2014, he became the
general manager of Module Business Department. Since January
2018, he served as the Vice General Manager and General Manager
of R&D Quality Assurance Centre of the Group. He was appointed as
the General Manager of Module Business Department since February
2021. He is currently vice chairman of China Photovoltaic Industry
Association and the Deputy to the Jinzhou Municipal People’s
Congress. He was awarded the May 1st Labor Medal of Jinzhou City,
one of the inventors of 16 patents, one of the third prize of Liaoning
Province Science and Technology Progress Award and one of the first
prize of Jinzhou Science and Technology Progress Award.

Ms. LIU Bo (ZIi%), aged 50, the General Manager of Jianhu
Production Base of the Module Business Department of the Group.
She joined the Group in 2005. She graduated from the Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics in 1996. Ms. Liu became the
team leader of Wafer Slicing from 2006. Since 2008, she served as
minister of production and equipment. In January 2013, she was the
Vice General Manager of Module Business Department and has served
as the General Manager of Jianhu Production Base of Module
Business Department since May 2019.
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Senior Management (continued)

Mr. WANG Lixin (£3Z%7), aged 55, the General Manager of Jinzhou
Production Base of Module Business Department of the Group. He
graduated from the Party School of Liaoning Province in 2000. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. WANG was the Chief Engineer of Jinzhou
Thermal Power Corporation (E8/NZVE 4272 7)) from April 1990 to May
2008. He joined the Group as the head of Cell Business Department
and Equipment Department in 2008 and later became the plant head
of Cell Business Department since 2012 and the general manager of
Cell Business Department since 2014. He also served as the General
Manager of Module Business Department since January 2018. Since
December 2020, he serves as the General Manager of Jinzhou
Production Base of the Group’s Module Business Department.

Mr. MA Yuan (fE), aged 37, the General Manager of the Group's
Marketing Operation Centre. He joined the Group in 2008 and
served in Shanghai Marketing Centre. He graduated from Dalian
Jiaotong University in 2008. Mr. Ma was the Vice Supervisor of
Shanghai Marketing Centre in 2013. Later, he became the
department head of the Domestic Marketing Department in 2015 and
Director in 2017. In 2020, he was appointed as the General Manager
of the Group’s Marketing Operation Centre. Mr. Ma has won various
provincial and municipal honorary awards many times, such as
“Jinzhou Model Worker”, "Jinzhou Top Ten Industrial Sales
Champions” and other glorious titles. The marketing team led by him
won the “Jinzhou May Fourth Youth Medal” (collective) in 2019.
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Senior Management (continued)

Ms. FENG Wenli (X ), aged 67, the General Manager of the
Group’s Liaoning Boxinke Semiconductor Materials Co., Ltd. She
graduated from Northeastern University in 1982 with a major in
semiconductor materials. From the same year, she worked in &[5 &
mEEM TE (Luoyang Monocrystalline Silicon Factory). She was mainly
engaged in semiconductor-grade monocrystalline silicon ingot-pulling
technology and technical quality management. In 1990, she served as
Chief Engineer of Luoyang Monocrystalline Silicon Factory. In 1993,
she served as the Secretary of Party Committee of Luoyang
Monocrystalline Silicon Factory and from 1995 onwards, she
concurrently served as General Manager of Sino-US joint venture
company EHTREFHEBR AT (MCL Electronic Materials Co., Ltd.)
and has received training on monocrystalline silicon ingot and wafer
technologies and management training from MEMC of the United
States. In October 2000, she worked as Deputy General Manager of
BB Z A7) (GRINM Silicon Guotai Co., Ltd.) under &t REE
S B MEPT (Beijing General Research Institute For Nonferrous
Metals). She was responsible for the technical quality and production
of heavily blended monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers, and
participated in the national science and technology research and
development project work on 8-inch heavily arsenic blended
monocrystalline silicon. She served as the Deputy General Manager of

EBRMEAEEFMEQF (Shanghai Shenhe Thermomagnetic
Electronic Materials Co., Ltd.) in March 2003, where she was

responsible for monocrystalline ingot and wafer production. She has
also received training on wafer production, technology and
management from HZANHEZFE A 7] (Toshiba Ceramics Co., Ltd.) of
Japan. She was the General Manager of R & BME AV E AR
A7) (Inner Mongolia Minaji Photovoltaic Materials Co., Ltd.) in 2006,
where she was responsible for the production of solar monocrystalline
silicon and the production of heavily blended monocrystalline silicon.
She served as an independent non-executive Director of the Group
from June 2019 to July 2022. She was appointed as the General
Manager of the Group’s Liaoning Boxinke Semiconductor Materials
Co., Ltd. on 11 July 2022.

Mr. CAO Hongbin (BAL#), aged 58, the General Manager of the
Group's Jiangsu Xinyangguang Zhiding Technology Co., Ltd. He joined
the Group in January 2021. He graduated from Jiangsu Agricultural
Reclamation Workers' College (T#k& Z2EH T KE) in Enterprise
Management in 1989 and obtained the title of Senior Economist.
Mr. CAO became the General Manager of Jinzhou Xinyangguang
Photovoltaic Application Co., Ltd in January 2021. Since March 2021,
he has served as the General Manager of Jiangsu Xinyangguang
Zhiding Technology Co., Ltd.

Mr. SATO Masanobu (f&ZBEIERE), aged 53, is the Quality Director of
Module Business Department of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked in Sharp Corporation from 1988 and had worked
in the semiconductor field for 18 years. After which, for 10 years
from 2006, he served as the Quality Manager in the Department of
Photovoltaic Systems in Sharp Corporation. Since 2016, he serves as
the Quality Director of Cell Business Department and Technology and
Quality Director of Module Business Department of the Group.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company of the Group.
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and trading
of photovoltaic modules, the construction and operation of
photovoltaic power plants. The analysis of the principal activities and
geographical locations of the operations of the subsidiaries during the
financial year are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements. Further discussion and analysis of these activities,
including a description of an indication of likely future development
in and, risks and uncertainties of the Group’s business, can be found
in the section entitled “Management Discussion and Analysis” this
annual report. This discussion forms part of this directors’ report. The
description and disclosures of the Group’s Environmental, Social and
Governance aspects during the financial year can also be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance (the “"ESG") Report which to be
published separately.

Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations

As far as the directors are aware, the group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group's top five customers are mainly silicon solar wafer, cell or
modules manufacturers or traders. In aggregate, the largest and five
largest customers did not exceed 17% (2021: 12% (restated)) and
50% (2021: 36% (restated)) of the Group’s total sales in 2022
respectively.

In aggregated, the Group's purchases from its largest and five largest
suppliers did not exceed 15% (2021: 24% (restated)) and 47%
(2021: 55% (restated)) of the Group’s total purchases in 2022
respectively. Save for Mr. Tung Ching Sai indirectly interested in one
of the five largest suppliers, at no time during the year have the
Directors, their close associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major suppliers
and/or customers.
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Relationship with Employees, Suppliers,
Customers and Other Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationships with its employees, suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders to meet its immediate and long-term goals. During the
year under review, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its suppliers, customers and/or stakeholders.

Financial Statements and Dividends

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 79 to 236. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year ended 31
December 2022 was RMB957,108,000 (2021: RMB193,222,000) had
been transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out
in the section entitled “consolidated statement of changes in equity”
in the annual report.

As at 31 December 2022, distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB922,009,000 (2021:
RMB1,137,599,000).

On 28 October 2022, the Directors proposed the declaration of a
special dividend of HK7 cents per ordinary share, which was
subsequently approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting on 7 December 2022 and paid to the
shareholders of the Company on 30 January 2023.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year was Nil
(2021: RMB229,000).

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2022 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and
equipment are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
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Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of the
annual report.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua, Chairman
Mr. TAN Xin
Mr. WANG Junze

Non-executive Director
Mr. HSU You Yuan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert

Ms. FENG Wenli (resigned with effect from 11 July 2022)

Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang (appointed with effect from 11 July 2022)
Mr. LIAN Tao (resigned with effect from 18 October 2022)

Ms. TAN Ying (appointed with effect from 18 October 2022)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company's articles of
association, Mr. TAN Wenhua, Mr. TAN Xin and Dr. WONG Wing
Kuen, Albert, will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 86 of the Company's articles of
association, Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang and Ms. TAN Ying, who were
appointed as independent non-executive Directors to fill a casual
vacancy of the Board on 11 July 2022 and 18 October 2022,
respectively, shall hold office only until the AGM, and will, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service agreement with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, transactions with the
following parties are considered to be related party transactions:

Name of party &7 &%
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Jinzhou Youlin Semi-Conductor Material Co., Ltd.
ERINE ML BB AR A A

Jiangsu Oriental Huida New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Huida")
TE R BEFERBEARQR ([FE])

Liaoning Yangguang Energy Power Co., Ltd.
FHEBNKERENBRAF

Jianhu High-tech Investment Development Co., Ltd

BRRRHRERRARQA

Details of the related party transactions are disclosed in note 41 to
the financial statements.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the Company’s continuing connected transactions.

Connected Transaction

Saved for the disposal of equity interest in Qujing Yangguang the
details of which are set out in the section entitled “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review — Significant investment
and disposal of subsidiaries” in the annual report, for the year ended
31 December 2022, the related party transactions disclosed in note
41 to the financial statements did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Share Option Scheme

The Company did not have a share option scheme as at 31
December 2022.

Employee Share Ownership Plan

Details of employee share ownership plan of Qujing Yangguang, a
company which ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022, are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

Controlled by spouse of TAN Xin, an executive
director of the Company
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Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) by reason of their
holdings of the shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about the
taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in
or exercising of any rights in relation to the shares, they are advised
to consult their professional advisers.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed securities during the vyear
ended 31 December 2022.

Interests and Short Positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executives of the Company in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2022, so far as the Directors are aware, the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their
associates had the following interests in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

Name of Directors Nature interest

BIERR
ARBAETHMBEARBBRR (TR B ARG M
AESHEMHARR - MRRTETEE &5 -
BRE  XBHATEBRD A BTN 2 %
B RRENSHERNEIXER-

BE - HEFWEEALQT LTRSS

RBE-E-—#+-A=+—ALFE £AQF

SETAMNBARMERE  LExBLRARAZ
ISETE
EERAAABETRABREAT
5Uiﬁ%@£g%ﬂiﬁ‘$ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ&@§
ENERRAR

RZB-_—F+-A=+—R BEEHE" é%
RARBBZRBITBRABRBEZBEALTRAR

EMRBEE (EELBHFLAEMKRY ([F %*&Bﬁ
B0 EXVER) R - BERGD REFT - #

BLREHENREFSFEHE f\x1ﬁﬂ%352ﬂx%ﬁmﬁ
MEBERMEARBELETINESTHEARR MEX
FregtEzson T -

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding (%)

Number of ordinary
shares held (Note 1)

FEERREE BAERBE I

EEHE e (FE&EET) (%)
Mr. TAN Wenhua Beneficial interest (Note 2) 556,924,443 (L) 16.76%
EES A B (H5E2)

Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2) 155,320,308 (L) 4.67%

EEEERER (MFE2)
Mr. TAN XIN Beneficial interest 41,762,000 (L) 1.26%
BELAE EmiEn

Mr. WANG Junze
TR AE

Beneficial interest

EmiEn

Mr. HSU You Yuan
ET AR T A

Beneficial interest

EE AN TN
EmiEn

100,500 (L)

15,591,016 (L)

Less than 0.01%
270.01%

0.47%




Interest and Short Positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executives of the Company in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations (continued)

Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

2. As at 31 December 2022, Mr. TAN Wenhua is interested in an aggregate
of 712,244,751 shares of the Company, of which (i) 556,924,443
shares of the Company are directly held by Mr. TAN Wenhua; and (ii)
155,320,308 shares of the Company are held by You Hua Investment
Corporation, which is wholly-owned by Mr. TAN Wenhua.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions’ in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2022, so far as the Directors are aware, save as
disclosed above, the substantial shareholders and other persons or
corporations (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO or had otherwise notified to the
Company were as follows:
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Approximate

Number of ordinary Percentage of

Name Capacity shares held (Note 1) shareholding (%)
FREERYAE BAERES T
28 HE 55 (BfFaE1) (%)
Hiramatsu International Corp. Beneficial owner 304,261,692 (L) 9.15%
EREBA
Hanako Hiramatsu (Note 2) Interest of a controlled 304,261,692 (L) 9.15%
corporation
Hanako Hiramatsu (Fff3£2) TP EE R
Madam SZE Tan Hung Beneficial interest 237,458,000 (L) 7.14%
WAL+ Banim
Mr. TUNG Ching Sai (Note 3) Interest of spouse 237,458,000 (L) 7.14%
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions’ in Shares and
Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.
2. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having

made all reasonable enquiry, Hiramatsu International Corp. is wholly-
owned by Hanako Hiramatsu as at the date of this report. By virtue of
the SFO, Hanako Hiramatsu is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Hiramatsu International Corp.

3. Mr. TUNG Ching Sai is the spouse of Madam SZE Tan Hung and is
therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares which Madam SZE
Tan Hung is interested in for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors are
not aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or
short position in shares and underlying shares of the Company which
fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.

Non-competition Undertaking

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors nor
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any
interest in a business that competed or might compete with the
business of the Group.

Mr. TAN Wenhua has confirmed that he has complied with the terms
of non-competition undertaking (“Non-competition Undertaking”)
given in favour of the Company. The independent non-executive
Directors have also reviewed the status of the compliance of the
undertakings stipulated in the Non-competition Undertaking and have
confirmed that, as far as the independent non-executive Directors can
ascertain, there is no breach of any of such undertakings.

Pursuant to the Non-competition Undertaking, Mr. TAN Wenhua shall
continue to be bound by the terms of the non-competition
undertaking in the event that he ceases to be a Director but remains
a substantial shareholder of the Company.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is
actual or potential conflict in interest.

1. FEILEZATIRZEBFNIETR -

2. BEENEH A EEREMFN 2B RIE
12 AR AH] » Hiramatsu International Corp. H
Hanako HiramatsuZ E# A - RIEFHF R B E K
5] - Hanako Hiramatsut® 18 A& M Hiramatsu
International Corp. 8 KRN HEH £ -
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B - R AR R L TR A
s -
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T F A
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Non-competition Undertaking (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company had not
received any information in writing from Mr. TAN Wenhua in respect
of any new business opportunity which competed or might compete
with the existing and future business of the Group which were
offered to or came to be the knowledge of the Mr. TAN Wenhua or
his associates (other than any member of the Group), and the
Company has received an annual written confirmation from Mr. TAN
Wenhua in respect of him and his associates in compliance with the
non competition undertaking. The independent non-executive
Directors have also reviewed and were satisfied that Mr. TAN Wenhua
had complied with the Non-competition undertaking.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

On 2 June 2020, Solargiga Hong Kong, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a loan agreement with Mr. TAN Wenhua,
our executive director, for a loan to Solargiga Hong Kong which is
unsecured with a 5% annual interest rate. For details, please refer to
Note 41 of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022 in this report.

On 1 March 2022, Solargiga Hong Kong, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a loan agreement with Mr. TAN Xin,
our executive director, for a loan to Solargiga Hong Kong which is
unsecured with a 5% annual interest rate. The loan was fully repaid
on 8 December 2022. For details, please refer to Note 41 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the vyear
ended 31 December 2022 in this report.

On 28 October 2022, the Company’s indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, Jinzhou Yangguang (as vendor), and three entities
controlled by Mr. TAN Wenhua (chairman and an executive Director
of the Company) and/or Mr. TAN Xin (chief executive officer and
executive Director of the Company) and two entities controlled by
China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (“China Lesso Group”), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2128) (as purchasers, collectively the “Purchasers”)
entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Jinzhou
Yangguang conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchasers
conditionally agreed to acquire, 45.0% equity interest in Qujing
Yangguang at a total consideration of RMB1,350.0 million.
Completion of the disposal took place on 30 December 2022, upon
which the Company no longer holds any equity interest and Qujing
Yangguang ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. For further
details of the Disposal, please refer to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review —
Significant investment and disposal of subsidiaries” above in this
report.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a director is or had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and as at the date of this
report, the Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set out by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association, or the law of Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares of the Company on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

R RT RV IR 3L
RBE_F-—F+-A=+—-AILFERNEH
HEH ARFEREFRBAEEABRARE
DEENEEFAREENEF RBRABAL
1RE -

REARRZAHBERAA  RAREFARAR
Rl EERGHE URRZZESTHEE 2R
HITERERRZAFEL BEZITRIERES
TRMBRAERBRARZZMEFL BR W
B BX BERRAXMmEKRZES -

FE R
FHEERRBEARE  AERED  HEAE
B4R B 2 # BB -

FNEZBE2BARBMNEERSE EFEMERR
KAt BTG SA B - REEFOHMH -

iR K18 FI 5T &
AEEEN BRI AR SRR 32 -

BrBEKRE
AARZABERMAAFESHS (BIARR AN
FXIZEY R ERE R ) JE DI B A BB e B O 2 16
REARBRRFRLAIMRERRBEARAR BN
% o



Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Special enquiries have been made by the
Company to confirm that all Directors have been complied with the
Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the section entitled “Corporate Governance report” in the
annual report.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
references adopted in compliance with the Code set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the Audit Committee are the
three independent non-executive Directors, and Dr. Wong Wing Kuen,
Albert, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is to serve as a focal point for communication
between other Directors, the external auditor and the internal auditor
(where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as regards
their duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and accounting
matters as the Board determines from time to time.

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in providing an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management system of the Group,
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and
responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board from time to time
and the Company considers these systems effective and adequate. The
audit committee has reviewed the Group’s interim and annual
consolidated financial statements for the year 2022, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.

Management Contracts

The Company did not enter into any contract with any individual, firm
or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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Dividend Policy

In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance
between maintaining sufficient capital to grow the Group’s business
and rewarding the shareholders of the Company. The Board shall take
into account the following factors, among other factors:

(@) the Group’s overall results of operation, financial position,
liquidity position, capital requirements, cash flow and future
prospects;

(b)  the amount of distributable reserves of the Company;

(¢)  the expected capital requirements and future expansion plans of
the Group;

(d)  the general business and regulatory conditions, the business cycle
of the Group and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group;

(e)  the statutory and regulatory restrictions;

(f) the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the
Company to the Shareholders or by the subsidiaries of the
Company to the Company;

(g)  the Shareholders’ interests; and
(h)  other factors that the Board deems relevant.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float of not less than 25% of the issued share
capital of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed
with the Stock Exchange, based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.
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Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Auditors

Ernst & Young, registered public interest entity auditor, was
appointed by the Directors to conduct audit on the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022. A
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Ernst & Young as the auditors of the
Company.

By Order of the Board
TAN Wenhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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BB EDRS

Ernst & Young
27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
EY Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
&k

To the shareholders of Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Solargiga
Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 79 to 236 which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.
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Key audit matters (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets
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The amount of trade receivables and contract assets accounted for a
significant portion of the Group’s assets. As at 31 December 2022,
the aggregated carrying amount and the impairment provision were
RMB1,394,841,000 and RMB65,184,000 respectively of trade
receivables and contract assets.

The Group applied the simplified approach to determine the provision
and recognised lifetime expected losses for trade receivables and
contract assets. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the ageing of balances for groupings of various customers
with similar loss patterns, repayment histories, and existing
customer-specific and market conditions. In addition, management
considered forward-looking information, including the forecast of
industry situation and overall economic conditions. Estimating the
expected credit loss requires significant management judgements and
estimates.

The accounting policies and disclosure of the impairment are included
in note 2.4 “Summary of significant accounting policies”, note 3
“Significant accounting judgements and estimates”, note 22 “Trade,
bills receivables and contract assets” to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We assessed management’s processes and controls relating to the
estimation of the expected credit loss by obtaining an understanding
of the design, implementation and operation of key internal controls
over the credit control, the receivables collection process and the
process of recording expected credit loss for trade receivables and
contract assets. We discussed with management on the estimation
involved in determining the expected credit loss allowance regarding
trade receivables and contract assets.

We tested the arithmetic accuracy of the provision matrix of simplified
approach prepared by management to calculate the expected credit
losses. We also assessed management’s estimates on loss allowance
by examining the information used by management, including testing
the accuracy of the ageing report and repayment histories by
vouching a sample of items with the relevant underlying
documentation; and evaluating whether the estimated loss rates were
adjusted based on forward-looking information. In addition, we
evaluated the forward-looking information which the Group used to
calibrate the matrix, such as the forecast of industry situation and
overall economic conditions by comparing them to external industry
outlook reports.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures included in
the consolidated financial statements regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets.

BEREETEE®

BB NAREERRERT SR
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Provision for warranties
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FERETEE®

BREETER

RIBEE

The Group provides warranties for its photovoltaic modules after sales
have taken place. As at 31 December 2022, the provision for
warranties was RMB162,455,000.

The Group set up warranties provision through its best estimate of
the product failure rates and the future costs to be incurred in order
to repair or replace items under warranties when identified. The
estimates were made based on the Group’s historical cost data,
industry data and an assessment of the history of warranty claims of
the Group’s competitors.

In the year of 2022, the Group revised its accounting estimates on
the provision for warranties from 1% to 0.625% in order to present
a fairer and more appropriate view of the financial position and
operating results of the Group based on the internal technical
assessment report from the department of photovoltaic modules, as
well as further referenced to the accounting estimation adopted by
other leading companies in the industry.

The accounting policies and disclosure of the provision for warranties
are included in note 2.4 “Summary of significant accounting policies”,
note 3 “Significant accounting judgements and estimates”, note 30
“Provision” to the consolidated financial statements.

REBAEHEE AL RAHRERE R-T-=
FH+—A=1+—H  REABEHEAAREK162,455,000

JC ©
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Key audit matters (continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We obtained an understanding of management’s processes and
controls relating to the estimates of the provision for warranties and
assessed the inherent risks of material misstatements by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors such as subjectivity.

We evaluated the reasonableness of significant assumptions adopted
by management in determining their estimate on nature and
frequency of future claims and the related costs to be incurred to
repair or replace items under warranty, and we also considered the
current performance and historical experience of the Group.

We checked the completeness and relevance of management’s data
relating to the actual claims incurred to date and verified that such
data was appropriately used by management in the estimation of the
warranty provisions. We also assessed the accounting estimation
adopted by other leading companies in the industry over the warranty
provisions and reviewed the internal technical assessment report from
the department of photovoltaic modules.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures included in
the consolidated financial statements regarding the provision for
warranties.

BEREETEE®

BB NAREERRERT SR
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Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Denis Ming Kui Cheng.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZE-_T - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R 5IE)

2022 2021
—E_-C T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARET T
Notes (Restated)
B 5 (E5)
Continuing Operations BEREXK
Revenue Wz 5 6,869,362 4,640,843
Cost of sales SHE KR (6,598,098) (4,235,846)
Gross profit EF 271,264 404,997
Other income and gains E A YA Kz 6 113,104 86,508
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBAX (79,928) (142,888)
Administrative expenses TR X (264,582) (138,352)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment BBREHNEE
losses on financial and contract assets CRE) /& E (21,214) 19,760
Impairment losses of property, plant and ME - BE REERE
equipment (43,039) —
Other expenses HiER (15,355) (15,513)
Finance costs BE AR 8 (78,793) (102,332)
(Loss)/profit/before tax from BEKEEB ZBRBA
continuing operations (&8) /7@ 7 (118,543) 112,180
Income tax expense FriSfi & A 11 (16,261) (46,958)
(Loss)/profit/for the year from BHEREERCEE
continuing operations (| /7 E (134,804) 65,222
Discontinued Operation ERIEEEER
Profit for the year from discontinued ERIHEE X 2 FERE
operation 12 1,246,817 237,130
Profit for the year FEFE 1,112,013 302,352
Attributable to: YN N=o -3
Owners of the parent [SYNCIE 957,108 193,222
Non-controlling interests FEFE RIS 154,905 109,130
Basic and diluted earnings per share RERASLARTERBREN
attributable to ordinary equity BREARBERF
holders of the parent (RMB cents) (AR®D)
For profit for the year F 2 A 14 28.80 5.84
For (loss)/profit from continuing FHEREER Y

operations (E518) /FiE 14 (4.48) 1.02
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEEZEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R 5II{E)

2022 2021
—E_-— T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTF T
(Restated)
(E7%))
Profit for the year FEFE 1,112,013 302,352
Other comprehensive income HtsZE KA
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be AR B S E B
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hip2E (E18) /W
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BEBINEBEENER
operations =5 (27,385) 19,350
Total comprehensive income for the year FEE2HMKAEEE 1,084,628 321,702
Attributable to: BT AL :
Owners of the parent ISTNCINIE: 929,723 212,572
Non-controlling interests FE 7 I 1t A 25 154,905 109,130

Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHBALRHE 1,084,628 321,702
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
fmeMEKAR

At 31 December2022 RW-—T-—4#+-HF=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R 5IE)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
ihgEa AR T ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE LEE 15 831,955 1,901,125
Long-term prepayments and other R TE (< 3UIE K2 H R Uk
receivables A 35,722 17,211
Goodwill EES 16 — —
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 118,298 238,563
Investments in associates REEERRNEE 18 1,200 200
Equity investments designated at fair value ~ AR R EBEFE B HEE)
through other comprehensive income SFAEMARE BRI R
wE 19 190 190
Deferred tax assets IRIEFIBE B 20 16,840 9,065
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 1,004,205 2,166,354
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 587,567 459,439
Trade, bills receivables and contract assets ERE SRR - ZHELAY
BE 22 1,558,894 1,953,204
Prepayments, other receivables and other TETFRIE - H M EREIE R
assets HhEE 23 1,333,164 521,292
Current tax recoverable BIVHA ] U (=] 7 7R 1,096 7,744
Pledged deposits BHEAFR 24 2,314,201 751,278
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESFED 25 937,897 431,861
Total current assets REEELE 6,732,819 4,124,818
Current liabilities FEBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings BT R EMt BEE 26 1,246,979 1,915,279
Trade and bills payables ENESERRER 27 3,740,934 2,242,716
Other payables and accruals H b pEARIE R ERT X 28 676,175 543,866
Contract liabilities aHEE 29 329,018 141,083
Current tax payable BVER fE < F1 18 118,441 25,629
Provision B 30 2,252 4,700
Current portion of lease liabilities —FAHENEEEE 17 3,300 20,270
Total current liabilities FEBaEARE 6,117,099 4,893,543
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(BE) FH 615,720 (768,725)
Total assets less current liabilities EERABERREBAER 1,619,925 1,397,629
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBRR K

At 31 December2022 W-—T-—4#+-HF=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R 5II{E)

2022 2021
—E=-= —EZ—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
ihg=2 AR TR ARBTT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings BT R EMtEEE 26 91,772 209,670
Deferred tax liabilities RLEHIBAEE 20 13,477 2,418
Deferred income IRFERA 31 126,347 258,065
Lease liabilities HEAR 17 22,692 73,592
Provision B 30 160,203 181,605
Total non-current liabilities kRBEERE 414,491 725,350
Net assets BEERE 1,205,434 672,279
Equity R
Equity attributable to owners of the FEREATRRNERS
parent
Share capital & 33 285,924 285,924
Reserves Tk 8 35 815,486 90,490
1,101,410 376,414
Non-controlling interests FEEFIMERER 104,024 295,865
Total equity EREE 1,205,434 672,279
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SeEREDR

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+_-_A=Z+—HIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R 5IE)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ANERERREAER
Share Share General Capital Exchange Other  Accumulated Non-controlling Total
capital premium*  Reserve fund* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses* Total interests equity
k& ROEE  -RERE EAGE EiRR AR 2R Bt FEAMRS ERlE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTr  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTr  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  AR¥TR
As at 1 January 2022 R-8%-5-A 285,924 1,752,401 238,451 34,703 825 (74,794) (1,861,096) 376,414 295,865 672,279
Profit for the year ERHE - - - - - - 957,108 957,108 154,905 1,112,013
Other comprehensive income for FEEMRERE:
the year:
Exchange differences related to RENERBHNERE
foreign operations - - - - (27,385) - - (27,385) - (27,385)
Total comprehensive income for FR2ENAEE
the year - - - - (21,385) - 957,108 929723 154,905 1,084,628
Acquisiion of a subsidary under WE-BARESTHREATY
common control” - - - - - 47612 - 47612 (#7,612) -
Capital contribution from Rty ssh-U
non-controlling shareholders® - - - - - (40,826) - (40,826) 17,259 (23,567)
Disposzl of subsidiares (note 38) HEMB R (Hi38) - - (9.438) - - - 9438 - (310934) (310,934)
Special dividends (note 13) BHRE (H13) - (211,513) - - - - - (211,513) - (11,513)
Divdends paid to non-controling FERBRORELH
shareholders - - - - - - - - (5,459) (5,459)
Appropriation to reserves AREERE - - 1,38 - - - (1,348) - - -
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZE+2p=1-8 285,924 1,540,888 230,361 34,703 (26,560) (68,008) (895,898) 1,101,410 104,024 1,205,434
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserve of — * ZERBBEEAMBRARTOAHREARE
RMB815,486,000 (2021: RMB90,490,000) in the consolidated statement 815,486,000T (=& — — 4 : A R #90,490,000
of financial position. TT) °
(1) In March 2022, Qujing Yangguang acquired 100% share of Jinzhou (1) Z—ZT=——F=F thEBLABGXEREBE AR

Youhua Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. (“Youhua Silicon”) from Solargiga
Energy (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“Solargiga Hong Kong”, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), which was defined as
business combination under common control. The Company held
53.70% share of Qujing Yangguang, therefore, after this transaction,
the share of equity interest in Youhua Silicon held by the Company was
decreased from 100% to 53.70%. This transaction was considered to be
an equity transaction.

AR([BEXEE]  RRIZ2ENBRR) WESIMNE
EEMBARRR ([EZEEM ) 100% & < &
ABR—EHTHEEAM  ARBIFEHBRG X
53.70% KIf%AE - FIt - AR Bk - RAREEH
EREMERER100% M E53.70% ° KX HH
RERERS -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBEER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #HE T -—F+_-_A=Z+—HIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAR®ZIE)

(2) The non-controlling shareholders of Liaoning Boxinke (2)  a. FEELRYEEMAERAT (AT EHRE
Semiconductor Materials Co., Ltd. (“Liaoning Semiconductor”, a [(BEYEE] AQFFEE2EWNBRARK
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) contributed capital FEIEIRAR R A E HH & AR #8,250,0007T °
of RMB8,250,000 during this year. Upon the completion of the RRIEETRE - HREERE - DHRE
capital contributions, due to the effect of dilution, the non- T 518 N A R ¥ 7,500,0007T °
controlling interests increased by RMB7,500,000.
The non-controlling shareholders of Qujing Xinyangguang Zhiding b. ARFIEZEMBARIMBHG RS TBERER
Technology Co., Ltd., a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the ERAFMFERBREAFEHEARE
Company, contributed capital of RMB250,000 during this year. 250,0007T °
The non-controlling shareholders of Qujing Yangguang New c. MRS e R AR A 7 (LA T 18 [ #hi5 5
Energy Co., Ltd (“Qujing Yangguang”, a non-wholly owned ¥ ARGEZEWB AR AIIELRARE
subsidiary of the Company), contributed capital of AEEFEHE AR 210,000,0007T © HIERS
RMB210,000,000 during this year. Qujing Yangguang granted MIEERRRE FRGERE - FIERIRERE
the non-controlling shareholders a put option which the non- EERBBEEAR=_ZE_RAF+=A=1+—
controlling shareholders have the right to request Quijing AR R EIFTERBRRISEORE - L&
Yangguang to repurchase the equity interest held by the non- AR 210,000,000 BiZfEE S BARE
controlling shareholders at any time after 31 December 2025.The 242,067,000 THY IR (BT E WAHERESHH S /Y
contributed capital of RMB210,000,000 was a financial liability BfE - IFERBRFTILETRE - MG K 8L
measured at the present value of the redemption amount of BRAERAR([WMIMNEG  ARIZENBR
RMB242,067,000 and amortised accordingly. Upon the Al ) B B Y RRELL B 1 53.7% T &1
completion of the capital contributions by the non-controlling £49.35%  FEEBMEEZENMARK
shareholders, the share of equity interest in Qujing Yangguang 9,509,0007T °
held by Jinzhou Yangguang Energy Co., Ltd. (“Jinzhou
Yangguang”, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
decreased from 53.7% to 49.35%, and the non-controlling
interests was increased by RMB9,509,000.
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FRARERRELES
Share Share General Capital Exchange Other  Accumulated Non-controlling
capital premium - reserve fund reserve resenve reserve losses Total interests
R ROKE Bk EAGE EREE HiRE ZifER g EnsitEs
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETL  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETR
As at 1 January 2021 RZB-%-5-A 210,867 1,726,034 235,969 42,768 (18,525) (64,722) (2,051,836) 140,555 199,441 339,9%
Profit for the year EEHE - - - - - - 1932 19322 109,130 30,39
Other comprehensive income for FEEMRENE:
the year:
Exchange differences related to EENEEHNNERS
foreign operations - - - - 19,350 - - 19,350 - 19,350
Total comprehensive income for EERENALE
the year - - - - 19,350 - 193,222 21251 109,130 321,702
Issue of shares 2k 15,057 26,367 - - - - - 41401 - 41401
Disposal of non-contraling interests FRHIERL E (Hi38)
(note 38) - - - - - - - - (51,600) (51,600)
Capital contrbution from R LS
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 4,250 4,250
Investment in a subsidiary WHEARZRE - - - (8,065) - - - (8,085) 8065 -
Acquisition of non-controling YR ER
interests - - - - - (10,072) - (10,072) (31,661) @,733)
Dividends paid to non-controling FERRROREZM
shareholders - - - - - - - - (37,395) (37,399)
Shares issued upon exercise of the REBTERAERTNRGG
shares awarded under the RERAHRA (M)
employee share ownership plan
(note 34) - - - - - - - - 95,635 95,635
Appropriation to reserves PREHE - - 248 - - - (248 - - -
As at 31 December 2021 RIBZ-§t2B=1-R 285924 1,752,401 238451 34703 825 (74,794) (1,861,096) 376414 295,865 672,279
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FEleRER

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+_-_A=Z+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R 5IE)

2022 2021

—E_-C T

Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Nz AR%T T AREF T

Cash flows from operating activities KETHEESRE

(Loss)/profit before tax BELRT (E518) /FIH
from continuing operations SFEICEETS (118,543) 112,180
from discontinued operation BAR A TS 12 1,387,976 271,583
Adjustments for: FEE
Depreciation and amortisation e L 7(c) 330,936 281,202
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWME  BEREZEN
and equipment Ei 8 767 60,393
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMRBAR W= 38 (1,044,553) (712)
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of T &R, (MR B )

inventories 21(b) 86,546 (17,463)
Impairment losses/(reversal of KRB SERRENEE
impairment) on trade receivables A, CREE )
and contract assets 22 26,274 (18,071)
Impairment loss of property, plant and ME - BE KERERE
equipment 7(c) 43,039 —
Finance costs & KA 8,12 140,266 134,685
(Reversal of provision)/provision for (BERE) RARE
warranties 30 (23,850) 34,818
Interest income from bank deposits BIRTTF R F B YA (27,930) (12,350)
Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary WEEWB AR 2 Wi 37 (1,512) —
Fair value gains on financial CRITETAERARBEZ
instruments g 38(a) (6,502) —
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss VE 855 (29,564) 7,005
Changes in working capital: HEESEY
Increase in inventories FEIEM (439,455) (54,747)
Increase in trade receivables, EWE S RN - TBITFKIE -
prepayments, other receivables and HoAth e W BR R I Ho At B B
other assets =i (165,937) (218,762)
Increase in contract assets BHEERLM (86,350) (28,742)
Increase in trade and other payables e B 5 BR 3R N B A 3R
b2 pill 2,370,956 526,519
Increase in deferred income I JE W A B2 N 6,248 20,414
Cash generated from operations RETEBFIERS 2,448,812 1,097,952
The PRC income tax paid SR EREMER (50,435) (65,672)
Withholding tax paid TR (945) (1,926)

Net cash generated from operating RETHMEBHRESBE
activities 2,397,432 1,030,354
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RAERERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #HE T -—F+_-_A=Z+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R 5II{E)

2022 2021
—E_-C T —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR TR AREETF T
Cash flows from investing activities REZHRERE
Payments for the purchase of property,  FEEWE « BE LEE SN
plant and equipment B R IE (704,170) (610,065)
Payment for the acquisition of right-of- BB EEMEEE X NHFIE
use assets (2,719) (1,174)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B — KK B A7) 37 (661) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BERZBME
plant and equipment IE 3,215 88,087
Interest received SR &IPS 27,930 12,350
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHE AR 38 369,784 (48,799)
Investment in an associate M—REERAIRE — (200)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHFMABRSEE (306,621) (559,801)
Cash flows from financing activities BEZTHESHRE
Proceeds from issue of convertible BT EHF S RIE
bonds 38(a) 249,829 —
Issue of shares EITRAD — 41,424
Placement of pledged bank deposits BEFEEMEITER (3,674,929) (1,842,355)
Release of pledged bank deposits R E ERRITFER 2,057,569 1,777,177
New bank loans and other loans WITERREMERMEFHIE 2,595,647 2,531,312
Repayment of bank loans and other BERITEFRRAEMER
loans (2,664,686) (2,885,942)
Principal portion of lease payments HENTOARE LD (38,386) (26,250)
Capital contribution from non- JEfEG MmN E
controlling interests 8,500 99,885
Payments for acquisition of non- MFEIE S s T E — =R
controlling interests in a subsidiary SEENEIEOE S — (41,733)
Interest paid B E (115,426) (134,685)
Dividends paid to non-controlling A5 FE4%E 1) M AR 3R 45 e A )
shareholders — (22,693)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEEMTARS FE (1,581,882) (503,860)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mAERERER

Year ended 31 December2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=Z+—HLFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R 5IE)

2022 2021
—E_-C T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000

=3 ARBT T ARETT

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRESEEY

cash equivalents #in (L) FHE 508,929 (33,307)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FORESRALEEY

beginning of the year 431,861 456,265
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSHNTETFHE

changes, net (2,893) 8,903

Cash and cash equivalents at the end HREESRRESEEY
of the year 25 937,897 431,861

Analysis of balances of cash and ReRBESEEYNERDIN
cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances HERBITER 25 937,897 431,861
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

Corporate and group information

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”, Hong Kong stock code: 757)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Cayman. The
registered office of the Company is located at Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands.

LAAREEEH

BBt sERIERE AR AR ([AAR] - @R
B A %$M$E@JE%WMK%'BH
A-MRHEREEMRTZERA

FEM B RRAIF Cricket Square Hutchms Dr|ve
P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands °

The Group is a leading supplier of downstream vertically EEAETHEEEASAGERSHELERE

integrated solar energy services. 7 e

During the year, the Group was mainly engaged in the FRN - AEBFTERBUATES

following businesses:

(@)  the manufacture of, trading of and provision of processing (@ AKGeEZRREREE THEHRE B
services for polysilicon and monocrystalline silicon solar BERRE ARG E SR A NIR
ingots/wafers; %

(b)  the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules; and (b) HEREEXREAH: K

()  the construction and operation of photovoltaic power (0 HBEREENKRE -
plants.

Information about subsidiaries B ﬁ BArHER

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARREEMBARMFBOT

follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

it 2304
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest ~ Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
AL/
RIGHRAS e/ i/ EEEN  BELY A-BKE
rAER REEHY S /BRTER ERER KE LAKE TEER EEFR
% % %
Jinzhou Rixin Silicon The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Trading of photovoltaic modules ~ Limited liability company
Materials Co., Ltd. 9 May 2007, capital of BERKEH BEREMAT
B RERIEARAT Mainland China RMB190,000,000
t AMRESER
ZEStERANA AB190,000,0007C
EVNS
Jinzhou Yangguang The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liability company

Energy Co., Ltd. 15 December 2004, capital of photovoltaic modules BREFAT
("Jinzhou Mainland China RMB1,151,565,479 REREERIAN
Yangguang") G i RESER
BB RERAE “2IMETCA ARH1,151,565,47970
EErA) +1A

REAE



Corporate and group information (continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 35k 89

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

31 December2022 W-—TZZF+=-A=+—8
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F B A FERAE SN - LA R B E)

AAIREBER 5
BRANBRARER ()

Proportion of ownership interest

frERER b
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest ~ Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
AL/
RIGHRAH HE/ER/ TEEN  ARLT A-BHE
AER REEHY BY/ERTER BRER K8 LARE IERE EERR
% % %
Shanghai Jingji Electronic ~ The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Manufacturing and trading of  Limited liabllity company
Materials Co., Ltd. 16 March 1998, capital of US$6,950,000 photovoltaic modules BREFAT
LERRETFIH Mainland China HMREGER SEREERRAL
ERAT hE 6,950,000%7C
“nANE
ZATRE
EN
Solar Technology Cayman Islands Authorised capital of 100 100 —  Investment holding Limited liability company
Investment (Cayman) 15 December 2006 HK$400,000,000 of RERR BREFAT
Corp RS HK$0.10 each and
N3 issued share capital of
+ZAtEA HK$167,895,494
JETEA400,000,0007T *
SREB010ETR
BETIER 167,895,494
BT
Jinzhou Yangguang The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liabllity company
Jinmao Photovoltaic 17 July 2009, capital of photovaltaic modules BREFAT
Technology Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB140,000,000 HEREERRER
("linzhou Jinmao") hE HMREGER
MG HBERIRRR ZBENF AR 140,000,007
ERAR tATtA
(2 EN
Solargiga Energy (Hong Hong Kong 13 June 2008 HK$1 100 100 — Trading of photovoltaic modules Limited liability company
Kong) Company &5 1% BERRAR EREFAA

Limited
Gk (5%
ERLA

NE

-%%
~AT=H

/N
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

PAIREBER 3
BEANBRARNER (&)

1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

frERRELA
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest ~ Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
AL/
HIBHRAH E/ER/ FEEN  BEAR A-BKE
ARER gy B4 /BRIER ERER K8 DLARE IEXR EERR
% % %
Silicon Solar Materials Hong Kong HK$1 100 - 100 Investment holding Limited liability company
Company Limited 26 November 2008 1371 RERR BREMAT
ABREMRERAR B
“EEN\F
+-B=tx8
Sino Light Investments British Virgin Islands Authorized capital of 100 100 —  Investment holding Limited liability company
Limited 2 December 2009 US$500,000 of REZK ERERAT
ZBRAKE US$0.001 each and
ZEENETZA issued share capital of
—f US$53,920
HEEER500000%T
BREG0IELER
BARES3920%7
You Xin Investment Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 - 100 Investment holding Limited liability company
Limited 29 July 2009 100,0007% 1T RERR BREMAT
HEREARRA B
ZEENEL]
ZthA
Jinzhou Huachang The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Trading of photovoltaic modules Limited liability company
Photovoltaic 23 October 2006, capital of BErRAk BREMAT
Technology Company Mainland China RMB130,000,000
Limited TE M RESER
BMEERRRH ZITRETR ABH130,000,0007T
ERAR Zt=H

REARE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

31 December2022 W-—TZZF+=-A=+—8
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F B A FERAE SN - LA R B E)

Corporate and group information (continied) 1. AT REEER @)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EEMBARRER (#)

Proportion of ownership interest

fiERER b
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest ~ Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
#mAL/
RUGHRAS E/E/ FEEN  ARLT A-BHE
ARER REgHY BY/ERER ERER K8 DARE IEXE EERR
% % %

Jinzhou Xinyangguang The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Construction of photovoltaic ~ Limited liability company
Photovoltaic 25 September 2007, capital of power plant BREFAT
Application Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB100,000,000 BRRREY

BMFBLERER hE AMRESGER
ERAF Z2RLENR ARH100,000,0007

Zt18
hEAE

Jinzhou Xinlin Solargiga The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Trading of solar cells and solar  Limited liability company
Industrial and Trading 26 June 2014, capital of modules BREFAT
Co. Ltd. Mainland China RVB20,000,000 EEABRERRABRAN

FMERErIEER hE HAMRESER
27 “F-MERRA AR %20,000,0007

ZtRH
hEAE

Jinzhou Jiuxin Solargiga The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Trading of solar cells and solar  Limited liability company
Technology and 26 June 2014, capital of modules BREFAT
Trading Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB20,000,000 BEABREHRAGEAR

FREERHEER hE AMRESGER
27 “F-MERRA AR %20,000,0007

ZtRH
hEAE

Jinzhou Yangguang 26 October 2015, Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liabllity company
Motech Renewable Mainland China capital of photovoltaic modules BREMAT
Energy Co., Ltd e RMB64,040,000 HEREERRAN

SHBRRETERER ZZ-RETA AMRESGER
27 s AR 64,040,007

REIAE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2022

RZTE-Z=ZF+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BrBBEBEI

AARESIE)

1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

PNAIREBER 3
BEANBRARER ()

ikt 23041
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest ~ Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
AL/
HIBHRAH E/ER/ FEEN  BEAR A-BKE
ARER gy B4 /BRIER ERER K8 DLARE IEXR EERR
% % %
Jinzhou Chuanghui New The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liability company
Energy Co. Ltd. 17 December 2010, capital of photovoltaic modules BREMAT
BHEISHERARAT Mainland China RMB200,000,000 REREERKAN
HE AMRESER
ZB-RETCA AB#200,000,0007T
T+tH
EVNS
Jinzhou Yiyang New The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Trading of photovoltaic modules ~Limited liability company
Energy Co., Ltd. 19 January 2017, capital of BErRAk BREMAT
B ERERARAT Mainland China RMB25,000,000
HE AMRESER
“FtE-f AR %25,000,0007
ThA
EVNS
Liaoning Boxinke The PRC Registered capital of 51 - 51 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liabllity company
Semiconductor 26 September 2018, RMB36,000,000 and electronic semiconductor ~ ERETAE
Material Co., Ltd. Mainland China paid-n capital of materials
REELRLERNY T8 RMB24,210,000 REREEETHERNE
ﬁﬁ Nd ZE-\EN HMER
s Y AR %36,0000007 &
EVN S B4R
AR%24,2100007
Jiangsu Yueyang The PRC Registered and paid-in 74 - 64*  Manufacture of photovoltaic ~ Limited liabllity company
Photovoltaic 16 July 2019, capital of modules BREMAT
Technology Co., Mainland China RMB217,990,000 gEr Ak
Ltd.* ("Jiangsu TE HRRESER
Yueyang') ZE-NEEA AR217,990,0007
THEREX MR T7A
R (NI&E D) EVN S
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

31 December2022 R-ZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F B A FERAE SN - LA R B E)
Corporate and group information (continved) 1. AT REBEEFR @)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EEMBARRER (#)
Proportion of ownership interest
fraRRRLA
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the bya
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest ~ Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
AL/
RIBERAH R/ 2/ AEEN  AARE A-EKE
ARER REgHY BY/ERER ERER K8 DARE IEXE EERR
% % %
Jiangsu Xinyangguang The PRC Registered capital of 70 - 70 Construction of photovoltaic ~ Limited liability company
Thiding Technology 24 March 2021, RMB30,000,000 and power plants EREFAT
Co,, Ltd. Mainland China paid-in capital of BRI
THHBEERRR i RIB20,000,000
ERAF —Fo-E HER
ZR=tHA AR%30,000000 TR
hEAE E4E%
AR20,000,000 7T
Qujing Xinyangguang 15 April 2021, Registered capital of 75 - 75 Construction of photovoltaic ~ Limited liability company
Thiding Technology Mainland China RMB10,000,000 and power plants EREFAT
Co,, Ltd. HE paic-in capital of BRrREY
HEREEEERR “5--F RIB2,000,000
BRAT mA+EA iR
ENE: AR%10,000000 TR
AR%2,000,0007T
XSD Union Solar Tech Hong Kong Registered capital of 51 - 51 Construction of photovoltaic ~ Limited liability company
Limited 23 April 2021 USD100,000 and paid-n power plants EREFAT
A capital of Ni BRI
Rk HMERZ£100,000TR
mA-t=H E4EAST
* In July and August 2021, two new non-controlling shareholders * RZZBZ—F+ARNA - MEHOIFEER

IRRATEGISEE - ZEANEREEHH
BHRRPERBRBHER

injected capital into Jiangsu Yueyang which was deemed to long-
term borrowings in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

RAEBOR X ZFEEZE - ZZERTH
TARBWENESBEMLAE S

The English translation of the company names is for reference
only. The official names of these companies are based on the
official language of their respective place of incorporation.

iE
TREE e

ERABEEARIBEFEFARALEK

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for REBRKBHFEEMNARBIMBAR - E
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the ERA - WEFNEMNBEARTNER &8
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the BERBOHITE -

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED & 8ERIZERA R A A

A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2022
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

RZTE-Z=ZF+=-A=+—H

(BEBEEBEIN  UARBIIE)

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for equity
investments and derivative financial instruments which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of
an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(¢)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

2.1

AR

ZEVBHRRDIBRETEGAMAG(FE
SR )RAEZEEMBREEN(F
BUBHREEL ] BEAAETEMBREE
A BEEGFENTHEESH LN KR
B)  BREARGFRREERREPIKE
BRTURE -BRUALABEFENERT
ANTESBT A BETIREBEELKAR
BORE  ZEMBHRERAARE [ARKE])
SRR - BB BRI - MEBECDHEERE
T AL

mAEERE 2 H A
BAVBBREPEARARENB AR (5
(AEBENHEE-—S-——+-A=+—081
FEZHBRER - WBRARALARAREEXK
MEEHNEE(PELETEER) - EXE
EH2EHEEHRERN TR REAERR
REZ TR B BEREH RS (10
AEBEERTFEREAR NATEREHRAH
TEENBETFRER) B L EIRAE - BIESE
il o

—RME - RREGEAARNSBFREES -
WARFEEAFEREALINEELERKS
BUR RS ELEN MR - QI ARSB RS
HELHRAHREHRNENBEEE 1)
HEEERER B

(a) HRBHRMNHEOREESEANGH
ZHE

(b) EHMANLHMELNEN: &
(0 AEENREENRETRSEE-

MEBARZHMBEHRREMAEARR R 2E
AHERRA - RS HAEARR - IMB AR ZE
ARAKERGENEE B EAARARE
UHEFAGERBEZEHERLIERR
1f e
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest; and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received; (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained; and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use
Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

2.1

2.2

R I IRARMIEE
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RZTE-Z=ZF+=-A=+—H

(BEBEEBEIN  UARBIIE)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
"Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments
also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of
HKAS 37 or (HK) IFRIC 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to
HKAS 37 or (HK) IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022.
As there were no business combinations during the year,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of
those items as determined by HKAS 2 /nventories, in
profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since
there was no sale of items produced prior to the
property, plant and equipment being available for use,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 22 S BRBEREE @)

disclosures (continued)

(0)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to contracts for
which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1
January 2022 and no onerous contracts were identified.
Therefore, the amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendment that is applicable to the Group are as
follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was no
modification or exchange of the Group’s financial
liabilities during the year, the amendment did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 2.3 EE#HBMRERZEBHER
financial reporting standards HEA|

AEBEIW AN WK ER T2 BMIEH
REBBFR] RS ERTBBM B HMELER

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BEMIGHRELER REEHEAGE LA
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its FI05RNEBE HAEE N2 EA
Associate or Joint Venture? FHZ4ERIEE 2855 BEME )T A
—E——F)z
1BET A
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and BB G AL E& IR HE B &
Leaseback? F165R ZIERT A
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' BEMIEHREER REBEEA
F175%
Amendments to HKFRS 17 /nsurance Contracts' ® EEMIGHRELER  REBEAAS
BT 2 ERT A
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 ERBVBERELR BEUBKHREER
and HKFRS 9 — Comparative BT 2 ERT A F178 R EE
Information® B R
FIF 1 B K EH
— BH L ES

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)* 4
Non-current Liabilities with

BREEERIE
SR ZAERT AR

BREEERIE

HEESEB B
B (—T=F
1B&]) 24

B 7R 4 FE B

Covenants SRZABE] AR BE(ZZEZZE
(the “2022 Amendments”)? &35T)?2
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting BB G AR BEMHR P E
and HKFRS Practice Policies’ F1RRBEM
Statement 2 B EERE B
WEF2HE 2B
HENEEH]
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting BABEEFHLER] BAIGAT TR
Estimates’ E8IRHERT
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets BB G L £ 8 — 35 G AR
and Liabilities arising from a E125HIERT BEKA BB
Single Transaction' B E
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2.3 BEMBYRENZEEHBH

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
financial reporting standards (continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date
of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a
consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it
on initial application of HKFRS 17
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

financial reporting standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed
by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

financial reporting standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, in particular the determination over
whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liabilities for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that
the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA
issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only
those with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability as current
or non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require
additional disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a right to
defer settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply
simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments and
whether existing loan agreements may require revision. Based
on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments
to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The
Group is currently revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to
ensure consistency with the amendments.

L3Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ$$ﬁ2§%ﬁﬁﬁ

LB ()

=R P A
BREGENEVRIE ESE R B X I
B () BERBEEBESBRRRBHIER
BORE -FHRECERESARERS
%&?“uﬂﬁkiﬁgéﬁ BENDE
TRZERBTERNTCEBERENATREN
E8 ZEEITMEBFREREERED
B —B-—F FESHMASEM_F
BEERANE—FEE EERLHE
ENBBENROT REERBUAERSH
BTN RZOAEREZEENERR
BEOEEAR o M —E_FREIEREK
BERZHEENABESERFRDAEBN
BRETHEINEE AIRRRERARAER
ERTEAAREBEEEZERETARE
MR ERS -BIHE T -_NF—A—
EiZéﬁ%%iV%ﬁE& I & 18 W FE
c AFHRRIEM - RRERA T _THFELL
xmg%bﬁﬂhﬁ%_?__ ENE
RzZAR - NREBBAEAEFEETNZE
NERBEERBHEEET BER - REVF
AHh - ZFERERTE Y AR E MM R
RELZEFNEAZE -

BB ENE R (S BE %ﬁﬂm HE:S
FEREEESEMNEHBRES M2
HEZMNGHE MREFABREEEE
BUBBRRTBEENEMEE —RBEER
TMQ@@%Q%; &EMW%&%MI
EGAERBE LM BRRMEARE - A
BHBEREEREEEN - %7‘%%7%#&%&%
B22REBESINEFI A E 2 e
FAREERRERMIERGIERES - BE
S EREIRNETHE T _=F— A —
Btz ZFBeFE BB AR - W aFiRAl
A - AREEBM B HREENEBIREK2H
BETIRMHIESI B AIERN - Bk T~H 2
AELEITIETEMAE AEBERIERE
ENMES I RREE  URREEITHN—
B -




102 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED & 82/RZERA R A T

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 2.3 CHEMGEMAERZEBTBR

financial reporting standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that
date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied
prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies
Investments in associates and Olﬂt ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint ventures, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Investments in associates and Olﬂt ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint ventures upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in
profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESFHEHERE @)

policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets,
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful lives. The principal
useful lives used for this purpose are as follows:

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

—  Plant and machinery 6 to 30 years

—  Other fixed assets 3 to 5 years
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESFHEHERE @)

policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives as follows:

— Patents 9 years
— Customer relationship 10 years

— Customer contracts 1 year
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to
complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset
will generate future economic benefits, the availability of
resources to complete the project and the ability to measure
reliably the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a
lease component and non-lease component, the Group adopts
the practical expedient not to separate non-lease component
and to account for the lease component and the associated
non-lease component (e.g., property management services for
leases of properties) as a single lease component.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold lands 50 years
Plant and machinery 6 years
Buildings 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Leases (continued) HE (@)

Group as a lessee (continued) SEEREMEA (B&)

(b)  Lease liabilities (continued) b) HEEEGE)
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the EHEHEEFIENRER - ARHEERN
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease ENERZEE Eﬁ(&tzﬁ’g@ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ‘f
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in M ARz ESBERNEGE - N HEE
the lease is not readily determinable. After the Fip A ARG - MEAESBE MR
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is FEZEE  ERLRBETEELZA
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced BRIk o - anRBE A&k - HEH
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying REEE HENKOEE MW H
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a RAREE L ERE N IE S F=
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in M EMEBEMRRNROEE)
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments BERMEEMERBENTGHEE - AlF
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change FrrEHEAENEREEE-
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets () RHHERMEEEZHE

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment and laptop computers that are
considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial
assets which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESFHEHERE @)

policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred assets is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESFHEHERE @)

policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At
each reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt
investments are considered to have low credit risk using all
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group
reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt investments.
Debt investments graded in the top investment categories by
the Credit Rating Agency are considered to be low credit risk
investments. It is the Group’s policy to measure ECLs on such
instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of debt investments
since origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECL. The Group uses the ratings from the Credit Rating Agency
both to determine whether the debt instruments have
significantly increased in credit risk and to estimate ECLs.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESFHEHERE @)

policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the
Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, an amount due to the ultimate holding company,
derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESFHEHERE @)

policies (continued)
Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long term
liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and equity components of the convertible bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated from
its liability component. On initial recognition, the derivative
component of the convertible bonds is measured at fair value
and presented as part of derivative financial instruments. Any
excess of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
derivative component is recognised as the liability component.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
derivative components of the convertible bonds based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative components
when the instruments are initially recognised. The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability component is
recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion relating
to the derivative component is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to account for
the conversion and redemption option of the convertible bonds.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESFHEHERE @)

policies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain industrial products and the provision of construction
services for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the
fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value
is determined by an external valuer using a discounted cash
flow model, further details of which are given in note 34 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’'s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESFHEHERE @)

policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHEEHBEZEw
policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued) IR 9 32 (48)
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The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses and staff welfare costs are
accrued in the period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Contributions to local retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in Mainland China
and Hong Kong are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred, except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as
an expense.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESFHEHERE @)

policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESFHEHERE @)

policies (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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24 FESHHEHME @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Yo A B 80 (1)
HEPFITARNKA (&)

(i) Sale of industrial products ()  WHEIXER®R
Revenue from the sale of industrial products is recognised HETHXEMMNIBATEEZSIESR
at the point in time when control of the asset is REPHNMMER BERAIEE
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the mhiE R o
industrial products.

(i) Processing services (i) T ART%
Revenue from the processing services rendered is FAT 2 £ 0 T AR 7% /O WO A & BE 2 B T O 9
recognised over time, using an input method to measure BmER AR AETETEMER
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, BHEE  ARNEENRBFIL R
because the Group’s performance does not create an EBEBNRABWEE  BASEHEAT
asset with an alternative use and the Group has an HITHETRERZES RS - &8
enforceable right to payment for performance completed NOEMRIR B IR 3 A MR AR E 7 R
to date. The input method recognises revenue based on P RS M I B R AR B LE BIRE R UL A ©
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the processing
services.

(i) Construction services (i) FEERTE

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services.

R B AR % O U A BE 3 B R O HERS T
R - ERBALETE2MERBH
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24 FESHHEHME )

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESFHEHERE @)

policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars.
However, the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are presented in RMB, as the directors of the Company
consider that the major subsidiaries of the Company are all
presented in RMB and meanwhile this presentation is more
useful for its current and potential investors. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date
on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration.
If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of comprehensive income
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each
asset, after taking into account the estimated residual
value. Management reviews annually the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any. Both the period and
methods of depreciation are reviewed annually. The
depreciation expenses for future periods are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.
Further details are given in note 15 to the financial
statements.

(b)  Impairment of non-financial assets

Management assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

3.
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Significant accounting judgments and 3.
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

NEABA A R A ET ()

(0

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on ageing for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit
insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacture
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in note
22 to the financial statements.
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3.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it
needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

Write-down of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs to completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacture and selling products
of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in technique and competitors’ actions in
response to adverse industry cycles. Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of each reporting
period. As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided for
write-down of inventories amounting to RMB90,086,000
(2021: RMB3,540,000). Further details are disclosed in
note 21 to the financial statements.
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Significant accounting judgments and 3. EREFMHFRAEK®
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) T EABAE = AL ET ()

(f)  Deferred tax assets f EBEREEE

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2022 was Nil
(2021: Nil). The amount of unrecognized tax losses at
31 December 2022 was RMB968,750,000 (2021:
RMB1,890,835,000). Further details are disclosed in note
20 to the financial statements.

Provision for warranties

The Group provides warranties for its photovoltaic
modules for up to 25 years after sales have taken place.
Due to limited warranty claims history, management
estimates warranty based on the Group’s historical cost
data, industry data and an assessment of the history of
warranty claims of the Group’s competitors. The warranty
obligation of the Group will be affected not only by the
product failure rates, but also by costs incurred to repair
or replace failed products. If the actual product failure
rates and the costs of replacement or repairing of failed
products differ from the estimates, the Group will need
to prospectively revise the provision for warranties which
would affect profit or loss in future years. Further details
of the Group's provision for warranties are given in note
30 to the financial statements.
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4. Operating segment information 4. RETHER
In a manner consistent with the way in which information is RERDPEERRRIAMNE  ~2E5BR_Z
reported internally to the executive directors of the Company, T CFERREAEE ANTES  FRAYE
being the chief operating decision maker, (the “CODM") for the BREANBERER —BHFRN - BRN
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, & "] ¥ & o 56

the Group has identified four reportable segments in 2022:

() the manufacture of, trading of, and provision of processing (i) Z@EEAR ARG E SR TE RS
services for polysilicon and monocrystalline silicon solar ECBEEMREHMNIRSE LRMBE@EE®
ingots/wafers and related products (“Segment A”*); (I EAl*);

(i) the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules iy HERBEXRAMH ([HFBL)

("Segment B");

(i) the construction and operation of photovoltaic power (i) HEBEREENKREWH([HEC])
plants (“Segment C");

(iv)  the manufacture and trading of semiconductor and the (ivy BRENEBEXEREUNEELRS
trading of monocrystalline silicon solar cells and others EEMREMHED]) -

("Segment D").

* As disclosed in note 12 and 38, Segment A was disposed of and * WP FE12 38 AT EE - DA N E W E
reclassified as a discontinued operation. The difference between DERERINEEETS - 2022F 8202155
Segment A in 2022 and 2021 was some subsidiaries trading of HANEZERZEER  —ERELREME
polysilicon and monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers being ARG E TR ESNNBARNS
classified from Segment A into Segment D. B AFADE D

The reportable segments had been adjusted under resources AREDHBERFARBERSERKRE

reallocation and performance reassessment during the year. The el EL R - A EBER T _—FEH®

reportable segments the Group identified in 2021 year were as EMARES AT :

follows:

(i) the manufacture of, trading of, and provision of processing () ZREURKIGREEREE TR HE
services for polysilicon and monocrystalline silicon solar B BB REEHINIRS ([HEAL;

ingots/wafers (“Segment A");

(i) the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules (i BERBIENRRAHF ([HFBL)
(“Segment B");

(i) the construction and operation of photovoltaic power (i) HREREENRREW([HFCT)
plants (“Segment C");

(iv)  the manufacture and trading of semiconductor and the vy, BLEREEYZR BEEAGsERE
trading of monocrystalline silicon solar cells (“Segment B ([HED)) -

D").
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R I IRARMIEE

31 December2022 R-ZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(BBAEFHEIN UARESE)

. . . . e A ol e W
4. Operating segment information (continues) 4. K& ITER @)
No operating segments have been aggregated to form these $%@ﬁﬁﬁé\1ﬁ%&%“ EDLAAR AR I E R
reportable segments. Revenue, costs and expenses are allocated DE c PEETZEARED B - AR
to those reportable segments with reference to sales generated Y N2 EZESPEENHEERZEDH
by those segments and the costs and expenses incurred by EEMKARASZFE -
those segments.
Segment results, assets and liabilities DEEE BEKAE
For the purpose of assessing segment performance and BAEIHBERBERDHEIEER - A&
allocating resources between segments, the Group’'s CODM WRLEARASERSARED SENS
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each LEE BERBERBAZEEVBRES
reportable segment on the basis as they are presented in the PR ELE) o
Group's financial statements.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference DEHEEERERNSEME=HHERN
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the AMEBREFRITIMEETRS
then prevailing market prices.
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as HE_Z - —_FR-_F-_—F+ZHA=+—
provided to the Group’'s CODM for the years ended HIEFERAEENRLEERARARRNE
31 December 2022 and 2021 is set out below: AAREE R RE D BOEREHINAT :
Segment A Segment B Segment C Segment D
AHA pix:
m w1 m w1 w1 w1 w1
kSt —3>-F% kSt —3>-F% “5-f “5-f 5%
avpooo EEVEOVE  avzooo [EEEVOON oo [EEEUCINN  Aueovo RV oo [N
ARETT ENESIAE ARETT ENAEIE ARETT QAR  ARETT ENEEYE  ARETT NS
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&51) (&51) (&51) (&51) (&51)
Revenue from external customers REAREFHNE - —  66M4350 4479979 189,593 116,795 35419 44069 6869362 4640843
Iterseqment revente S8R - —saeAM 453N T8 005 UW6M6 4i4AE SSIBE 521785
Reportable segment revenue PELTELE - — DT 90581 WS Y0 IS 4SBT A0 9868
Reportable segment profitfloss) ARESTHE/ (BB - - (85,362) 42,866 (5177 6,754 (44,265) 15,602 (134,804) 65222
Reportable segment assets (Qujing Group) TREAPEE (BEEE) - 1,758,485 - - - - - - - 1,758,485
Reportable segment liabilites (Qujing Group) TRENBER(BEER) - 1178441 - - - - - - - 1,178 441
Reportable segment assets (Besides Qujing Group) ARESPEE (RBEENS) - - 5,395,365 3,529,901 206,652 191,116 2,135,007 811,670 1,737,024 4,532,687
Reportable segment liabilities (Besides Qujing Group) TRENPEE (REELS - - 5,226,936 3522,898 141,752 110,164 1,162,902 807,390 6,531,590 4,44045
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31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

4. Operating segment information (continues) 4. K& ITER @)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) DEEE BERBE )
Segment A Segment B Segment C Segment D Total

A5A 288

2022 2021 2022
—B-CE —F--% —B-CE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT INEEwH ARKTT
(Restated)

b #if
20 2022 20
—F--% jut St -3 —F--%
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT NSV \EETT
(Restated) (Restated)

20 2022 20
—F--% jut St -3 —F--%
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
AEETT LAV  \EETT
(Restated) (Restated)

(&5) (&5) (&5) (&5) (&5)
Interest income from bank deposits BAFRBHERA - - 20,086 7216 30 6 6,254 3,681 26,370 10,903
Finance costs BERA - - (36,650) (61,510) (6.224) (6,640) (35.919) (34,182) (78,793) (102,332)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH - - (139,319) (98,287) (1,734) (293) (7.281) (19,268) (148,334) (117,848)
Ivestment in associates HBELINRE - - - - - 200 - - - 200
(Impairment losses)reversal of impairment losses on BERANAE (HE) /HEDR
financial and contract assets - - (37,837) 14578 (701) 459 17,324 4723 (21,214) 19,760
(Write-down)reversal of write-down of inventories & (HE) /R E R - - (86,727) 17,644 - - - - (86,727) 17,644
Capital expenditure* ERRT* - - 126,877 353,365 38401 6977 212 1,195 172,490 361,537
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * ERRALZBREAEYE BELRZBRER
equipment. EERE -
Geographic information & &R

Substantially all of the Group's property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and interests in associates are located or
operated in Mainland China.

The following table sets out information about the Group’s
revenue from external customers by geographical location. The
geographical location of a customer is based on the locations of
the customers.

REEYE - BFE MR - EREEE RN
ERA AR P B S P B

TREFAEWBIHARERBINEFHR
@ BPMEME AT P AEmE R ERE

2022 2021
—E_-— —_EF_—

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

(Restated)

(E3)

Mainland China R K 5,193,815 3,597,468

Export sales B OiEeE

— Japan — B 1,402,079 933,043

— West Asia — Fgeib® 126,885 —

— South Asia — i@ 45,144 84,847

— Europe — BUM 95,657 25,469

— Others — Hi 5,782 16

Sub-total R 1,675,547 1,043,375

Total aEr 6,869,362 4,640,843
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Operating segment information (continued) 4. R& 3 IWE R @)

Information about major customers FTEXPHEHR
For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from a single HEZZ-_F+-A=+—RHLFE X
customer, including a group of entities which are known to be BEEATPHKED  BEEAEZEPEH®
under common control with that customer, which amounted to EEH ) —HEE (A AREEBIRE10%3K
10% or more to the Group’s total revenue, is set out below: A EEHIIMAT :
2022 2021
- —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBT T
(Restated)
(E27)
Customer A ZEA
— From Segment B — KRB DB 174,729 1,094,767
2022 2021
—E__ - —4F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T
Customer B ®FB
— From Segment B — KB H B 1,327,770 925,110
2022 2021
—E=- = —EZ—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTIT
Customer C BPC

— From Segment B — KRB D HB 966,592 —
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

5. Revenue 5. Wi
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WEmDTWT
2022 2021
=== —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBF T
(Restated)
(&%)
The manufacture and trading of FEEBNNEREE  BRH
semiconductor, the trading of KI5 EEE M K E Aty
monocrystalline silicon solar cells and
others 35,419 44,069
The manufacture and trading of photovoltaic ~ YIRAMH MR EREE
modules 5,839,067 4,467,504
Construction and operation of photovoltaic SR T U R R AT
power plants 189,593 116,795
Rendering of services e AR 7 805,283 12,475

6,869,362 4,640,843
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5. Revenue (continued) 5. W#E e
Revenue from contracts with customers HEPEITaRMKA
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information i DEEAEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-ZE--F+ZHA=+—-HLEFE

Polysilicon and Construction  Semiconductor/
monocrystalline and operation monocrystalline

Silicon solar Photovoltaic of Photovoltaic silicon solar

ingots/wafers modules power plants cells and others

¥ER /E&

BRAGHE ARERRE ABHELR
13- 983 FRAEH ge Hity @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT T ARBTR AR®T R ARBT T

Types of goods and service HmARENERY

Sales of industrial products BETYHM — 5,839,067 3,112 35,419 5,877,598
Processing service RIS — 805,283 - - 805,283
Construction services R RS — — 186,481 — 186,481
Total @t — 6,644,350 189,593 35,419 6,869,362
Geographic market BEMETS

Mainland China B A — 4,968,850 189,593 35,372 5,193,815
Japan [ZE:N - 1,402,032 — 47 1,402,079
West Asia AoiE — 126,885 — — 126,885
South Asia HTE - 45,144 — - 45,144
Europe B - 95,657 - - 95,657
Others Hth — 5,782 - - 5,782
Total @Et — 6,644,350 189,593 35,419 6,869,362
Timing of revenue recognition WA B R R B

Goods transferred at a point in time ENERERERER — 5,839,067 3,112 35,419 5,877,598
Services transferred over time PRisRERS I ER — 805,283 186,481 - 991,764
Total @5t - 6,644,350 189,593 35,419 6,869,362
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)
5. Revenue (continued) 5. W&
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) HEPFREITERBOBA (E)
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) PBERAEEE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Restated) BE-Z--S+-A=+—-HLEE
(E31)
Polysilicon and Construction  Semiconductor/

monocrystalline

and operation

monocrystalline

Silicon solar Photovoltaic  of photovoltaic silicon solar
ingots/wafers modules power plants  cells and others Total
YEE/BR
BRAGE HREURFZA INCEA Vi)'
HE/ R FRAH i Hit @t
RMB’000 RMB"000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB"000
AREFT ARBTFT ARETT AREFT ARBTFT
Types of goods and service BRAREHER
Sales of industrial products BET2HM - 4,467,504 541 44,069 4,512,114
Processing service RIRH — 12,475 — — 12,475
Construction services R RS — — 116,254 — 116,254
Total it — 4,479,979 116,795 44,069 4,640,843
Geographic markets BEMTS
Mainland China FEKRE — 3,436,640 116,795 44,033 3,597,468
Japan [ZF:N — 933,009 — 34 933,043
South Asia MEE — 84,847 — — 84,847
Europe BOM — 25,467 — 2 25,469
Others Hit — 16 — — 16
Total st — 4,479,979 116,795 44,069 4,640,843
Timing of revenue recognition IR B 5 5
Goods transferred at a point of time ENEREAREREYS — 4,467,504 541 44,069 4,512,114
Service transferred over time PR R el a8 — 12,475 116,254 — 128,729
Total it — 4,479,979 116,795 44,069 4,640,843
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5. Revenue (continued) 5. W&
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) HEFEFTARAOBA (&)
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) NBRAEEHE)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRETAREANERNBRASE
recognised in the current reporting period that were EREEREHVNEHNEESR - Wik
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the RmEARAENEOEE
reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:
2022 2021
—E=-= - —F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBFT
Revenue recognised that was included in BREBFBERERINEL
contract liabilities at the beginning of the BERWA
reporting period:
Sales of industrial products HETXEEMR 136,023 61,006
Construction services B2 R 7% 5,060 312
Total 3 141,083 61,318
(i) Performance obligations (i EHERE

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of industrial products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon the
acceptance of industrial products by customers and
payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from
delivery, except for new customers and small-sized
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required.

ERASBERENEENEMBRIT :

HETREm

EEPERIXEMRATKENE
T BTETFEZRERANKOFELM
NEP - MFBEERNKRI0EI0ARA
Exlp
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

5. Revenue (continued) 5. W&
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) HEPFREITERBOBA (E)
(i) Performance obligations (continued) (i) EBHEMTE)
Processing service LR
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as R—BREAREREATHENE
services are rendered and payment is generally due within £ MBEEEPEXIZ30E90KAE]
30 to 90 days after customer acceptance. Hy o
Construction service 2 R 7
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as R—BREANREREATHENE
services are rendered. Payment in advance is normally FRGEHABRREREEENER &
required at the beginning of the service, and progress ENF—BEREZBR302E90KAE
payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from the e
date of billing.
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining HE+-A=1+—8 " GoEFH#NE
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially HEFCRTERKETHE D) BEEER
unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows: W
2022 2021
—==-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBETTT

Sale of industrial products HETLXEmM 318,662 136,023
Construction services 5 fig 7% 10,356 5,060

Within one year —FR 329,018 141,083
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6. Other income and gains 6. HMWARKE
2022 2021
—E_-_F —E- 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBFT
(Restated)
(E5)
Other income Hp g A
Government grants (note 31) BT AL (FFE31) 37,470 47,172
Interest income from bank deposits IRITE BT B U A 26,370 10,903
63,840 58,075
Other gains/(losses), net Hipzx  (E1E) - FE
Net foreign exchange gain HNEE & 18 F 58 43,919 8,508
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant  HE¥ZE « HE & REH
and equipment (BB /W F5E (71) 8,891
Gain from sales of other materials fHE AR S 1,957 1,189
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERB AR Z S 713 712
Gain on disposal of investment in an HERENR—REEQFZ
associate & 600 153
Others Etb 2,146 8,980
49,264 28,433

Other income and gains, net Hinw ARz B 113,104 86,508
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31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
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7. Profit before tax 7. BRBiAIFE
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ NEBBRFAFBED MR (HE) :
(crediting):
2022 2021
=== —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARET T
(Restated)
(E27))
(a) Staff costs’ (including directors’ BIRK (BEESEHMH
remuneration (note 9)) (KtEE9))
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMET 203,032 227,685
Contributions to retirement schemes RRETEI R 16,437 19,229
219,469 246,914
2022 2021
—E=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARET T
(Restated)
(E5))
(b) Auditors’ remuneration LB £
Audit services 1% ER 7% 3,148 2,937
Non-audit services FERZ BUR TS 1,220 553

4,368 3,490
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7. Profit before tax (continued) 7. BRBAIFE @
2022 2021
—E_-— T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR% T AREETF T
(Restated)
(E7))
() Other items Hih®EAE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEMNTE (ME17)

(note 17) 25,097 14,620
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEIEEBNITE

equipment* (note 15) (M$5E15) 305,839 266,582
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) FERE /CREDF)

of inventories (note 21) (MsE21) 86,546 (17,463)
(Reversal of provision)/provision for R FA B AR B4 (M 3E30)

Warranty (note 30) (23,850) 34,818
Research and development costs i 9T X A B8 A AR 98,203 8,950
Impairment losses/(reversal of B REaNEERE

impairment losses)/on financial and CRUE ) (P FE22)

contract assets (note 22) 26,274 (18,071)
Impairment losses of property, plant W - BER&EERE

and equipment (note 15) (FtzE15) 43,039 —
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property,  HEWE - BiE MRED

plant and equipment (note 6) &8 (W) T8 (MisEe) 71 (8,891)
Fair value gains on financial TRIAENAABEYS

instruments (6,502) —
Cost of inventories sold” (note 21(b)) BEEFERA (HMFE21(0) 5,724,220 4,125,154
Cost of services rendered* B 1R i iR 7% A AR 873,878 110,692
Interest income from bank deposits IRITERZFBUHA (FisEe)

(note 6) (26,370) (10,903)
Gain on disposal of investment in HERER—KBE QA2

an associate g 2% (600) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiary M B A R 2 Was (B 5E6)

(note 6) (713) (712)

# Cost of inventories sold and cost of services rendered include, in # BE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLEFEHNHE
aggregate, RMB273,956,000 for the year ended 31 December EFERARERBERERABIEEFHET
2022 (2021: RMB263,770,000), relating to staff costs and AT ES £ AR 273,956,000 (=ZF
depreciation which amounts are also included in the respective ——4%F : AR¥263,770,0007T) * Z K IE I

total amounts disclosed separately above. AR EX AR EN S ERIELLE -
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8. Finance costs 8. ®MEMAK
2022 2021
—EF-_— - —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBF T
(Restated)
(&%)
Interest on bank and other loans wholly ARAFAZHEBR
repayable within five years RITREAMEFF B 77,084 99,757
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEHNS 1,709 2,575
Total interest expenses on financial liabilities — FEIR A FENIB2EEES
not at fair value through profit or loss R BEENNEM B8R 78,793 102,332
9. Directors’ remuneration 9. EEMSE
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the BRI R EE R FEDIZ383(1))
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong b)  (OERMOEURAT (HEEEFZER)
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies ROE2HETHENFAEZTWEOT ¢
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:
2022 2021
- —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥®T T ARBTT

Fees we 300 296

Other emoluments: HEiie :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREYF R 3,211 3,554
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET &I R 15 15
3,226 3,569

3,526 3,865
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9. Directors’ remuneration (continued) 9. EEME »

2022
—=——

—_—

Salaries,
allowances Retirement

and benefits scheme

in kind contributions
A
e RE BIKEE
we REYFI= it wt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T AR®T R AR®TR

Executive directors HITES

Tan Wenhua BN E — 797 — 797
Tan Xin (chief executive) BE(ITHARR) - 1,495 15 1,510
Wang Junze Eao)-- - 271 — 271

Non-executive director FHITES

Hsu You Yuan = 45 A — 648 — 648
Independent non- BYKHITES
executive directors

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert T k& 100 — — 100
Feng Wenli(i) VipE:=10) 53 — — 53
Chung Wai Hang(ii) SBEH(if) 47 — — 47
Lian Tao(iii) RS (i) 80 - — 80
Tan Ying(iv) EH(iv) 20 — — 20

Total #REt 300 3,21 15 3,526
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9. Directors’ remuneration (continued) 9. EEME®»
2021
—E-—F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
R
e 2R RIRETE
we REHF = R #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Executive directors HITES

Tan Wenhua BN E — 785 — 785
Tan Xin (chief executive) EE(ITHARR) — 1,472 15 1,487
Wang Junze F 92 — 659 — 659

Non-executive director FHITES

Hsu You Yuan 5 45 A — 638 — 638
Independent non- BUKHITES

executive directors
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert — F k7 98 — — 98
Feng Wenli X RE 98 — — 98
Fu Shuangye (v) MRE 49 — — 49
Lian Tao = 51 — — 51

Total BEt 296 3,554 15 3,865
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Directors’ remuneration (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2021: Nil).

(i) Ms. Feng Wenli resigned as an independent non-executive
director with effect from July 2022

(i) Ms. Chung Wai Hang was appointed as an independent
non-executive director with effect from July 2022.

(iii) ~ Mr. Lian Tao resigned as an independent non-executive
director with effect from October 2022.

(iv)  Ms. Tan Ying was appointed as an independent
non-executive director with effect from October 2022.

(v)  Ms. Fu Shuangye resigned as an independent
non-executive director with effect from June 2021.

9.

EEME

RER  UEREERRHTRA S T
THNERFAEREEANE (T -
) o

i) BXBRTEZZT-__FtHAREEL
FHITES

(iy @BEPLLEB T _FLARKZER
BIUFRITESE -

(i) BSEEE-Z-—F1+AEAEEIFE
HMITESE -

vy BREZTEZZ-=-F1+AEZRRE
SIFHITESE -

V) HEELtE-T-—EXAREBT
EHTEE -
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10. Five highest paid employees 10. T ERSHFMHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three FAhEGERTINEERIE=2(ZF=—
(2021: four) directors including the chief executive whose F:UR)EF (BHEESTHRALE)  HEH
remuneration are disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the TR E BT R (ZFE—F
remuneration in respect of the remaining two (2021: one) —B)WHARREFHHZERTRAENTES
highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief FHMESHMAENT

executive of the Company is as follows:

2022 2021
=== —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBTT

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits EXF e 2B REWF =
in kind 1,644 625
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes sl A TES R E 30 15
1,674 640
The remuneration of the remaining two (2021: one) highest BT -_RH(ZTZ—F: —R)BaFMES
paid employee is within the following band: BB A TS A B
2022 2021
—E-— —EF-—4F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A N
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,0007% 7T 1 1
Above HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T JA E 1 —
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11. Income tax 1. Fi5#H
(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) EAEBZRAMESHMNE:

represents:

2022 2021
=== —EZ—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TT ARET T
(Restated)
(E5)
Current tax — the PRC BIEABiE —
Provision for the year FEHEAE 15,717 35,680
(Over)/under provision in respect of BEFE (BEEE)
prior years BETE (2,740) 12,040
12,977 47,720
Deferred tax (note 20) EIEF T8 (BEE20) 3,284 (762)
Income tax expense from continuing RERKEEBZEHRER
operations 16,261 46,958
Income tax expense from discontinued — B IHEEEK 2SR ER
operation 141,159 34,453
157,420 81,411
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31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

11. Income tax (continued) 1. FiIsH @

(b) A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit (b) ERAARRA T E KI5 M E R &M E
before tax at the statutory rate for the country in which FETEB Rt BRI A E B TIE
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are X BIREERHEFENTRIBERS
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates is HERMT -
as follows:

2022 2021
—E—_— - —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBEF T
(Restated)
(E7%))
(Loss)/Profit before taxation from BB 2 BRI (B518)
continuing operations I (118,543) 112,180
Profit before taxation from ERIEEEEE 2 RBIAIEE
discontinued operation 1,387,976 271,583
Profit before taxation W 52 Al AR 1,269,433 383,763
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEBEFEMNTIA 317,358 95,941
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TT?D%REZ&E’J%%%E“ 2,067 978
Tax effect of non-taxable income MW ARN B E (5,314) (1,339)
Effect of differential tax rates (note())  ~RIF R Z (M 5E()) 4,978 (8,160)
Effect of tax concessions obtained FIEB BB E ()
(note(ii)) (175,675) (36,990)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and EEN R H’J*Eﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ}gﬂéﬁ
temporary differences not TR ERNBBETE
recognised 24,495 35,532
Utilisation of unused tax loss and FABTFE N RERN R
temporary differences not RAHEEERERERE
recognised in previous years (74,647) (4,998)
Additional taxable income arising from 1 & M B 2 B F £ £ W B INE
disposal of subsidiaries MBS 65,309 —
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on 5% B TR ER A 1 AN 55 [ A X
the distributable profits of the FRAINA D EANEEZE
Group’s PRC subsidiaries 12,077 1,926
Overprovision in respect of prior years @7k fE R 58 B & (13,228) (1,479)
Tax charge at the Group effective rate  EAREBEERHREFEHNTIE
GiE3 157,420 81,411
Tax charge from continuing REBCEXBERREGE
operations at the effective rate 5 18 7 2 16,261 46,958
Tax charge from discontinued REKRIE L EBERB R
operation at the effective rate HHBHIAR X 141,159 34,453




ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % 163

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

31 December2022 R-ZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
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11. Income tax (continued) 11. FTBH &)

(b)  (continued) by (&)
Notes: MIeE -

(i)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2021:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits of the
Company'’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong during
the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made as the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong did
not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
profits tax.

The Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands are not
subject to any income tax pursuant to the local rules and
regulations of their respective countries of incorporation.

The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company’s
subsidiary incorporated in Germany was 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 15%). No provision for
German income tax has been made as the subsidiary
incorporated in Germany did not have any taxable profits
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company’s
subsidiary incorporated in Ghana was 35% for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 35%). No provision for
Ghana income tax has been made as the subsidiary
incorporated in Ghana did not have any taxable profits for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil)

(i

FREABNESRIERARBRE B M
FR ST B9 BT R R R 0 AT FE R B R Y
16.5% (=T = —4 :16.5%) &
A B 7 R I AR ST B BT B A RS A AT
] E BN B TS B FER BRI -

RRARRENRS S RS R R
SHMAINMBARREESSH
AR S7 B 2R A 3 4R 1) K A5 0 £ 2R A
MERFASHEL

HE_ZT-__F+-A=+—HLLF
B ARBRERFMAIANE A
AEAMEEREAR15% (T = —
F 1 15%) ° AR EER MR
HBARRNEBE_TE-_—F+_A8
=+ — B I FE I E T EREF
BRI EEL SRS (=
TZ—F @)

HE_T-__F+-A=+—HLLF
B ADRR AR ZOHE A
AEAREERE A% (T = —
F 135%) o AR XM AN EE AR 2
HBARRNEBE_TE-_—_4F+_-8
=+ — Bl FE I E T EREF
B R A TS R (=
TZ—F: &)
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—E-_F+-A=+—8H

(BEBEEBEIN  UARBIIE)

11. Income tax (continued)

(b)  (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(ii)

The income tax rate of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries is
25% except for the subsidiaries mentioned below:

Jinzhou Yangguang has been accredited as “High and
New Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government
authority since 2012 and has been registered with the
local tax authority to be eligible for a reduced income tax
rate of 15%. “High and New Technology Enterprise”
certificate is renewed every three years. Jinzhou
Yangguang has renewed the certificate in 2021 effective
for the three years from 2021 to 2023. Accordingly,
Jinzhou Yangguang was entitled to the 15% income tax
rate for 2022 and 2021.

Jiangsu Yueyang has been accredited as “High and New
Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government
authority in 2021 for a term of three years, and has been
registered with the local tax authority to be eligible for a
reduced income tax rate of 15%. Accordingly, liangsu
Yueyang was entitled to the 15% income tax rate for
2022 and 2021.

Liaoning Semiconductor has been accredited as “High and
New Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government
authority in 2021 for a term of three years, and has been
registered with the local tax authority to be eligible for a
reduced income tax rate of 15%. Accordingly, Liaoning
Semiconductor was entitled to the 15% income tax rate
for 2022 and 2021.

Solargiga Energy (Qinghai) Co., Ltd. (“Qinghai
Yangguang”) has been accredited as “High and New
Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government
authority in 2016 for a term of three years, and has been
registered with the local tax authority to be eligible for a
reduced income tax rate of 15%. Qinghai Yangguang
renewed the “High and New Technology Enterprise”
certificate in 2019 effective for the three years from 2019
to 2021. Accordingly, Qinghai Yangguang was entitled to
the 15% income tax rate for 2021. As disclosed in note
38, Qinghai Yangguang was disposed of in 2021.

11. FTBH @

(b) (%)
faE (4

it

)

pil

(iy  ARFNPEMBLRNAEHBE
7325% o ME AP E R BRSO

WBINEXE T —FREEBREE
BEFISHEELE A WERA
ENHEREEE  FEERRIE
15% B R TEH - [RIEHE
TEIBFEF-FEHF -R_T——
FE HBNBELBEFESHEER
TrEIFE BRHAE-_ZT=_—F%
TR F BEITF - B 8B
BHrRZEZZRZTZ—FA &
15% FT1S Bt =BT -

TIEHEBR T —FEEHEBRNTE
BETIEMEHREEIA - BE=
FUBMEMTBREZR  Fa
BIERIE15%MHEBHER - B
I TIEREER T R —
FAMHRIS% TS TR HT -

BREFERN T - —FEEERN
ERET EHRRLEIL - BH
ZF - YEmMBEBRBHEEE &
BERMIR15% MBI RN PRS-
At BEEFERR_T__R—F
T FARI15% M B EEH -

B R (B8 BRAR(BEXE
BRI FEEMBFERBRE
FlemFBtE i - AH=F "
WEMEMHEEREZL  FEER
WAZ15S% O B EHAEH - =%
—NE BABTEEF SHEEIF
E AR AE=F BT hEFR
BT —FlEo-A - BXTER
—T - —FAIRI15% SRR -
WM TE38FT R - BEBXER T
TFHE-
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11. Income tax (continued)

(b)

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(continued)

Jinzhou Jinmao has been accredited as “High and New
Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government
authority in 2016 for a term of three years, and has been
registered with the local tax authority to be eligible for a
reduced income tax rate of 15%. lJinzhou Jinmao renewed
the “High and New Technology Enterprise” certificate in
2019 effective for the three years from 2019 to 2021.
Accordingly, Jinzhou Jinmao was entitled to the 15%
income tax rate for 2021. For 2022, Jinzhou Jinmao did
not renew the certificate, and the income tax rate of
Jinzhou Jinmao was 25%.

Qujing Yangguang, in accordance with the “Catalogue of
Industries Encouraged to Develop in the Western Region”,
has been registered with the local tax authority to be
eligible for a reduced income tax rate of 15%.
Accordingly, Qujing Yangguang was entitled to the 15%
income tax rate for 2022 and 2021. As disclosed in note
38, Qujing Yangguang was disposed of in 2022.

Jiangsu Zhiding, the main business of which s
construction and operation of photovoltaic system.
According to the Catalogue of Income Tax Incentives for
Public Infrastructure Projects issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the income from investment and operation of
projects such as ports and wharves, airports, railways,
highways, urban public transportation, electric power, and
water conservancy shall be exempt from income tax for
the first three profit-making years and reduced by half for
the fourth to sixth profit-making years. The photovoltaic
system construction project of Jiangsu Zhiding belongs to
the above catalogue, and obtain the first operating
income in 2021. Therefore, for 2022, Jiangsu Zhiding is in
the three-year period of exemption from corporate income
tax.

(ii)

11. FTBH &)

(&)
GRS

(&)

(&
FNBBR T —NFEBEBNE
RBETFEFEHRCZE A - BE=
FUBMEHHERESRL  F&
BRRIZ15% MHEREH B - i8
MERMA =T —NFEH @R
BE BRXPA=ZF BT —hF
BEZZTZ—F1F - FHitt - 8587
R ——FARI15% B HEH
R T —FREEHBENR
25%FT 1S T RS -

H U5 5 S B AR R [ 7 20 i [ B B SR A
X¥EHNEHHEREER T4
BRRMIE15% MR EBRAETR - B
- BB R B —FR_F
Z—FAIR15% S TR EF o kT
FE3SHTIE  HEBAER =T ==
FHE -

TEHBEEBEBARERIREE K
RG RIBE B EPENE(R L E MR
BB TS RUER B &%) - AOTHHE -
HiZ - S A AR
B KFIEEENBRELERE
BERE=FERHMEH  RENE
FNEEREE - Bk o STER
BENARRZFZERBEREU L
BRER T - —EEENE - A
I IHRBER S _FRE=F
ERBIBHRER -
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12. Discontinued operation 12. BRILEEEIK

In June and July 2022, six external independent companies
contributed capital of RMB210,000,000 into Qujing Yangguang.
Meanwhile, Qujing Yangguang granted those six investors a put
option which the six investors have the right to request Qujing
Yangguang to repurchase the equity interest held by the
non-controlling interests at any time after 31 December 2025.
The contributed capital of RMB210,000,000 was a financial
liability measured at the present value of the redemption
amount of RMB242,067,000 and amortised accordingly. Upon
the completion of the capital contributions by the six investors,
the share of equity interest by Jinzhou Yangguang decreased
from 53.7% to 49.35%, and the non-controlling interests was
increased by RMB9,509,000.

In October 2022, Jinzhou Yangguang entered into equity
transfer agreement (“Equity Transfer Agreement”) with three
entities controlled by Mr. Tan Wenhua and/or Mr. Tan Xin and
two entities controlled by China Lesso Group, an independent
third party (collectively the “Purchasers”), pursuant to which
Jinzhou Yangguang agreed to sell and the Purchasers agreed to
acquire the entire equity interest in Qujing Yangguang at an
aggregate consideration (“the Consideration”) of approximately
RMB1,350,000,000 (the “Disposal”). The Disposal was
completed on 30 December 2022 (the “Disposal Date”) and a
gain of RMB1,043,840,000 was recognized by the Group upon
the completion of the Disposal.

According to the Equity Transfer Agreement, 51.1% of the
Consideration or RMB689,850,000 will be settled by cash on
the Disposal Date or no later than one month after the
Disposal Date and, the remaining 48.9% of the Consideration
or RMB660,150,000 will be settled by cash and payable within
six months after the Disposal Date. Then, approximately
RMB459,900,000 and RMB229,950,000 out of the 1st
milestone was received on 29 December 2022 from three
entities controlled by Mr. Tan Wenhua and/or Mr. Tan Xin and
by 13 January 2023 from two entities controlled by China
Lesso Group, respectively. Accordingly, as at 31 December
2022, the remaining RMB889,321,000 of total consideration
was recorded as receivables from the Purchasers, as disclosed in
note 23.

RZZBZZFXAMEA  "RINBBLA
7)) B 5 5 5 1 & AR #210,000,0007T © [
B EBIBS AR AN BIRE BT TG R -
BABREEAHERBELRLEZS
ZhAtT=A=+—H %k EEIEE M
=PI AR RE - HE AR%210,000,000
TTAEER S ARK 242,067,000 A IRE
AETHEERENSRABE B RERES
WETTRE - BN TR ARERS3.7% N %
£49.35% ' JEEFIERE A EEMARE
9,509,000 7T °

T F A BNERETREEER
F(REESERE) BRBEXELER =
BELEEHN=MERE AT EER
IR ABYE = TN EE(REIE
F gl BMNEEXRELEMEARE
I d SR ENERE(RED
45 AN R#1,350,000,000C ([HEEHE]) -
EHERZZEZZF+ZA=+B(THEH]D
Ak Wz AR 51,043,840,000 7T & A & [H
BREKEESEE-

BIEREEZERE  REMNSII%HARE
689,850,000 T & A MER L E H
He—EANRES TN H#448.9% MR E
AR #660,150,0007C#5 AR & - AR €
HE - TREERSENBEARNI - Rk
F—EAREFHDRIL AR 459,900,000
MARK229,950,000t R T -_—F+=
AZthBoRIEXELEM SEEL
BN =REEEBUARR T =F—A+=
B 7 A B B 2B £ [ 422 1 B0 W {E A R B o
I BEZTZF+ZA=+—H8 #BRE
#E A R%889,321,000 L W iCEk A E H R E
UG BRESR - I FE23FTHEEE -
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12. Discontinued operation (continued)

In view of the Group’s business strategy, the Group does not
expect to manufacture any polysilicon and monocrystalline
silicon solar ingots/wafers in the foreseeable future. With Quijing
Yangguang being classified as a discontinued operation, the
manufacture of, trading of, and provision of processing services

31 December 2022

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

BRILERE

R I IRARMIEE

RZFEZ=ZF+=-RA=+—H
(RS BERAEIN UARKETE)

E 5,30

EREEONEBER  SEBBHRATRRRK
TeREEMZRRESAGEERE TEh -
BEEMBE ARG RRERIELEER %
mAMBERKIGRERE A EBNRE B
SMEHRNIRETIBREELENTER

for polysilicon and monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers P xR o
business is no longer included in the note for operating
segment information.
The results of discontinued operation for the year are presented ERIEEEEHRE2FEENT ¢
below:
2022 2021
—E-_— —EF-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
(Restated)
(&%)
Revenue W & 2,128,393 2,878,673
Expenses 53 (1,722,784) (2,574,737)
Finance costs B & AR (61,473) (32,353)
Profit from the discontinued operation BRI S EBFE 344,136 271,583
Gain from disposal of discontinued HEBKRIEEB NS
operation (note 38(a)) (MI5E38(a)) 1,043,840 —
Profit before tax from the discontinued B AR A TS BR T A A
operation 1,387,976 271,583
Income tax: FriS it -
Related to pre-tax profit BB RIS (38,532) (34,453)
Related to disposal of discontinued ERALEDRIEEEER
operation (102,627) —
Profit for the year from the discontinued BRI & B F A R)E
operation 1,246,817 237,130
Attributable to: AT AT R :
Owners of the parent FRAIRRE 1,106,084 159,397
Non-controlling interests FE 16 MR 140,733 77,733
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12. Discontinued operation (continued) 12. BRIEREER @)
The net cash flows incurred from discontinued operation are as HEREEFEERSREFEROT -
follows:
2022 2021
—EF-_— - —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBF T
(Restated)
(251)
Operating activities KEEE 262,592 280,482
Investing activities HEIEE (396,327) (276,635)
Financing activities BEES 141,114 19,339
Net cash (outflow)/inflow FHREe (RE) /A 7,379 23,186
Earnings per share: (RMB cents) BB - (AR%ES)
Basic and diluted, from the discontinued BRI EEBERR
operation B s 33.28 4.82
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share from ERIEREEBEERERNREEEBOGFE
the discontinued operation are based on: AR
2021
(Restated)
(275))
Profit attributable to ordinary equity B IHEEEK 2 FRA RMB1,106,084,000 RMB 159,397,000
holders of the parent from the LimRE=EE ARG AKM1,106,084,000 AR #159,397,000
discontinued operation G R A
Weighted average number of HESRERARTRER 3,323,771,133 3,309,962,914
ordinary shares in issue during the MFERNEETEBR
year used in the basic earnings 2 (FIEE14)
per share calculation (note 14)
Weighted average number of HEGREEATRER 3,323,771,133 3,309,962,914
ordinary shares used in the B E R AR N F
diluted earnings per share (MEE14)

calculation (note 14)
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Dividends

13.

R I IRARMIEE

31 December2022 R-ZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(BBAEFHEIN UARESE)

R E
2022 2021
=== —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBTT

Special dividend — HK7 cents (2021: Nil)
per ordinary share (ZF=—F: 8&)

FRIRE — SEBBREE7

211,513 —

14.

The declaration of a special dividend of HK$0.07 per ordinary
share of the Company (the “Share”) out of the share premium
account of the Company (the “Special Dividend”) to
shareholders of the Company was approved at the board
meeting of the Company on 21 November 2022 and at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
7 December 2022, which authorised the directors to take
action for the purpose of or in connection with the implement
of the payment of the Special Dividend.

Earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent

(a)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic profit per share is based on the
profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
parent of RMB957,108,000 (2021: RMB193,222,000) and
the weighted average of 3,323,771,133 (2021:
3,309,962,914) ordinary shares of the Company in issue
during the year.

14.

ExgeaitEr AaROEEBRTEAR]
BEEIRERRE ([FRIKRE]) L@k (g
7)) BREBIL - AARZE=_=F+— A
T+ —BMEZEZF+ A tHETH
RAEFRBRERG FREESRIITHUE
MR R B A SR B A B R B IR B
SR -

FERBAREERBRRENER
ZF

a) BREKRZEF
BREAFEIRIERBRERAALR
5 P ER A F B A R #5957,108,0007T (—
T —F: ARM193,222,0007T) A K
FRAR BB BT BN T BB
3,323,771,133 (=& = — F
3,309,962,9140%) 5t &

—
~

2022 2021
=== —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T AREET T
(Restated)
(E3)

Profit attributable to ordinary equity BRREBEREREAA
holders of the parent JE (5 & AR A1 957,108 193,222

Attributable to: LA ARG -

Continuing operations SIBICEETS (148,976) 33,825
Discontinued operation EAR TS 1,106,084 159,397
957,108 193,222
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14. Earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent
(continued)

(@) Basic earnings per share (continued)

14. FENBRARIZERBRRNEBR
BF @

Number of shares

Shares Bz 7
Weighted average number of ordinary & 3@A& hNHE F 19 &
shares

RO E
2022 2021
—E-C- —E-—F
3,323,771,133  3,309,962,914

(b) Diluted earnings per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 in respect of a dilution as
the Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

(b) BEHERT
REE-Z-_—_FR-_F=-_—F+=A
—+—HIEFE  AEBRUVEETES
MEBEITEREE AT ESEE_-F
ToERZFE-_—F+Z-A=+—HL
FER2INERERNZFFEEL S
FEE o
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15. Property, plant and equipment

15.

R I IRARMIEE

31 December2022 R-ZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H

(BmBEEBEIN  UARBIIE)

M- BERRE

Plant,
machinery
Construction and Motor Furniture
in progress Buildings  equipment vehicles and fittings Total
B - % RAREE
EEIRE By R#&E RE £E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARMTR AR®BTE ARBTR AR¥TR AR®TR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2022 WZE-—F—Af—H 279,299 727,426 2,142,804 34,381 34,546 3,218,456
Acquisitions of subsidiary W B AR - 2,113 1,722 779 115 4,729
Additions NE 436,951 5,224 41,410 2,890 2,762 489,237
Disposals HE (25,193) (2,113) (34,355) (9,473) — (71,134)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBE AR (39,575) (381,911)  (1,146,591) (5,820) —  (1,573,897)
Transfer L BE (512,640) 73,651 434,922 899 3,168 -
Exchange adjustments B H AR - — - — (10) (10)
At 31 December 2022 RZB-_F+-R
=+—H 138,842 424,390 1,439,912 23,656 40,581 2,067,381
Accumulated depreciation Rt ERABEESS
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2022 RZZE-=Z%—HF—H (80,684) (211,165) (971,034) (25,411) (29,037)  (1,317,331)
Depreciation for the year FEME — (29,387) (266,868) (2,801) (6,783) (305,839)
Written back on disposals & R el — 91 16,539 8,878 - 25,508
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHEAR — 93,054 309,342 2,888 — 405,284
Provision for impairment losses — JRl{E & & — — (43,039) — — (43,039)
Exchange adjustments I 5, & — — — — 9) (9)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-ZF+-f
=+—H (80,684) (147,407) (955,060) (16,446) (35,829)  (1,235,426)
Net book value: BRIEHE
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+=A
=+—H 58,158 276,983 484,852 7,210 4,752 831,955
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31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

15. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 15. ¥ - BMERZE @
Plant,
machinery
Construction and Motor Furniture
in progress Buildings equipment vehicles  and fittings Total
R - Hes RAREF
rEIR BF PET:| "E kB st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBFTT ARETRT ARETT ARETT AR¥ETT ARETR
Cost: B
At 1 January 2021 RZZE-_—%—A—H 261,394 746,974 1,869,182 31,037 28,820 2,937,407
Additions wNE 755,147 5,506 44,380 4,433 5,868 815,334
Disposals HE 3) (75,051) (456,889) (1,974) (352) (534,269)
Transfer B (737,239) 49,997 686,131 885 226 —
Exchange adjustments BN A% — — - — (16) (16)
At 31 December 2021 RZB-_—F+-A
=+—H 279,299 727,426 2,142,804 34,381 34,546 3,218,456
Accumulated depreciation Rt ERBESS
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2021 WZE=Z—-F—HA—H (80,684) (209,041) (1,084,164) (24,899) (25,332) (1,424,120)
Depreciation for the year FEME — (30,265) (230,192) (2,179) (3,946) (266,582)
Written back on disposals HERER — 28,141 343,322 1,667 238 373,368
Exchange adjustments EH AR — — — — 3 3
At 31 December 2021 RZZB-_—F+=AH
=+—8 (80,684) (211,165) (971,034) (25,411) (29,037) (1,317,331)
Net book value BRMEHE
At 31 December 2021 R-ZF=—F+=4
=+—H 198,615 516,261 1,171,770 8,970 5,509 1,901,125
() As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s interest-bearing (i) RZBE-_—_F+_A=+—8 A&EBET

bank borrowings were secured by certain of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment (note 26), which had an
aggregate net book value of RMB383,081,000 (31 December
2021: RMB494,154,000).

Substantially all of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
are located in Mainland China.

The Group has been applying for property ownership certificates

SRERITEENUALEEEFEAEAR
#383,081,000C (ZE - —F+=-A=+—
H: AR#494,154,00070) K& TYE - &
B R Ve R (5 26) ©

REBBRIDWE - BERREBHLRF
B A

AEBEEERFE THADE  BERRB

for certain buildings included in property, plant and equipment NEFNEEMERERZ R_T-_F+=
with an aggregate net book value of RMB13,361,000 as at A=+—H ZSEFOREFELEAA
31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: RMB113,873,000). R¥13,361,000C (ZE=—F+=A=+—

Notwithstanding this, the directors are of the opinion that the
Group owned the beneficial title to these buildings as at
31 December 2022.

H: AR¥113,873,0007T) ° A1 * EER
7—% REBPR-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—A#%
BREEFNERERE -
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15. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(if)

Jinzhou Yangguang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
engages in the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic
modules. Due to the discontinued production of certain types of
photovoltaic modules according to the group business strategy
for the segment of manufacturing and trading of photovoltaic
modules, some production lines had been idled and were
intended to be scrapped by management. Therefore, the
recoverable amount of the assets was assessed using fair value
less the cost of disposal (“FVLCD") of those certain property,
plant and equipment. The management used the market
approach (a valuation method that uses recent transaction prices
of the same or similar assets in the market, after direct
comparison or analogous analysis to estimate the value of the
assets), and as the production lines had been idled and were
intended to be scrapped, the disposal of the assets in a
piecemeal manner for realization was assumed as a premise. Its
fair value is the observable selling price, so the asset belongs to
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. As a result, an impairment
losses of RMB43,039,000 (2021: no impairment losses) was
provided to machinery of lJinzhou Yangguang in profit or loss
during 2022.

16. Goodwill

31 December 2022
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

R I IRARMIEE

RZFEZ=ZF+=-RA=+—H
(RS BERAEIN UARKETE)

15. ME - - BERZRE®

(ii)

16. &

@Mz 2EWB ARG LB REH
BUEREHER - AR RIBEEBEE R -
RAERAHERERE DB RILEES
FHEAHKRKEG  FPEEREHE  F
EERRELEEER At BEMNATIK
EleEISFERARBERRELFEDSE
[ 5 A 3R B B & A AR (TFVLCD ) 2R AR &
e BEBEERAMBE(—ERAMS LA
FEUEERNTSERSER  KBHEEL
B EE A METEEBENGAERE) -
HREEFCHE  TERE  UTHHS
AEEEEZRANIE - HARBEATE
REE AUZEAEBRARBERBNGEE
MEZBH - A —T = —Fzt AEIMNES
AR RE IR R AR 43,039,0007T (=&
Z—FE)

2022 2021
- —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREF T
Cost: A

At 1 January and 31 December R—RAR—Bk+=ZRAR=+—H 208,237 208,237

Accumulated impairment losses: Rt EEERE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BR+ZA=+—H (208,237) (208,237)

Carrying amount:

At 31 December

BRTEE :

R+—A=+—H

The goodwill was fully impaired during the year ended
31 December 2012.

BEOREBE_Z——F+_A=+—H1t
FEBBRE -
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31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)
17. Leases 17. HE
The Group as a lessee REBER/EMEA

AEERELETEANTREBE  KEX
MABFIVHEEAN LHBEAEECES
Xt —ERENESEERR0FHEESL
i BARBEL D MBNNESR  TEREN
Ko BELRBEHENHBE —RB2E6F -
MABFHOHEHRR-—RA2E10F - —KM
FOARERGEASEINEEMBHEEE

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and
machinery and office buildings used in its operations. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from
the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land leases.
Leases of plant and machinery generally have lease terms
between 2 and 6 years. Office buildings generally have lease

terms of 2 and 10 years. Generally, the Group is restricted BEE -
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
Group.
(@)  Right-of-use assets (@ fEREAE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets AEENEREEENREOSENFE
and the movements during the year are as follows: gEgmT
Leasehold Office Plant and
lands Buildings machinery Total
HE L WARFE KBERRB Y
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT ARBTT AR®BTT
As at 1 January 2021 R-TE-—%F
—H—H 146,811 31,363 14,275 192,449
Additions o 2,435 — 68,327 70,762
Deductions as s —ERQRENR
a result of disposal
of a subsidiary (7,577) — (2,451) (10,028)
Depreciation charge mEER (3,901) (4,473) (6,246) (14,620)
As at R-_ZE-_—F+_A
31 December 2021 =+—HBEZ=Z
and 1 January 2022 ——f—H—H 137,768 26,890 73,905 238,563
Additions 30 — — 130,776 130,776
Deductions as a result  HE&E—RHERQ AR
of disposal of a R
subsidiary (38,759) — (187,185) (225,944)
Depreciation charge HEER (3,889) (3,712) (17,496) (25,097)
As at RZEZZF
31 December 2022 +=ZRA=+—A” 95,120 23,178 — 118,298
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31 December2022 W-—TZZF+=-A=+—8
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F B A FERAE SN - LA R B E)

17. Leases (continued) 17. H& @
The Group as a lessee (continued) REBER/EMEA (F)
(b)  Lease liabilities by HEaE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FRNHEAEBNREBMESHOT

movements during the year are as follows:

2022 2021
s —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RAZKRHEE 93,862 49,350
New leases MHE 130,776 70,762
Accretion of interest recognised during  4E R HERR 2 F B3 A0

the year 9,266 3,574
Payments NEN (47,652) (29,824)
Deductions as a result of disposal S — KM B R R R

of subsidiaries (160,260) —
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZEHE 25,992 93,862
Analysed into: DT

Current portion BN ER 2B 7 3,300 20,270

Non-current portion JERNEREB 7 22,692 73,592
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HEABENIEBE DT EMBREKM T
note 44(b) to the financial statements. 44(b)H # EE o

() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (0 HTEZFTEREAEEFEAMNSENT

leases are as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBET T

Interest on lease liabilities HEEBEHE 9.266 3,574
Depreciation charge of right-of-use TREEENEER

assets 25,097 14,620
Total amount recognised in profit ATABEA R

or loss 34,363 18,194
The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in notes HEMR SR HAERI T390 T #
39(0). & o

A~
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31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)
18. Investments in associates 18. REEZE N TINIRE
2022 2021
—=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARET T
Share of net assets EIhEEFE 1,200 200

The following list contains the particular of the associates, TEREIEEABNFE ARIFLTAA

which are unlisted corporate entities:

2
BHE

Percentage of

ownership
Place of interest
Form of business establishment Registered and attributable to
Name of associate structure and business paid-in capital the Group Principal activities
rEEEN
BEAREB EBRBEA B ES S AMREAERX BRAEEIL FEEH
Jinzhou Chengguang New Incorporated The PRC/ Registered and 49 Construction of photovoltaic
Energy Technology Co., il ava Mainland China paid-in capital of power plants
Ltd. (“Chengguang”) BB KR RMB 10,000,000 BERRE
SRIN R BERRHR A R AMERREHERAR
DA D) #10,000,0007C
Jiangsu Oriental Huida New Incorporated The PRC/ Registered capital of 30 Construction of photovoltaic
Energy Technology Co., il ava Mainland China RMB20,000,000 and power plants
Ltd. (“Huida") BB KR paid-in capital of BERRE
TR BER LR RMB4,700,000
ARAR([HE]) AMERARE
20,000,000 7T
AR #4,700,0007T
Liaoning Yangguang Energy Incorporated The PRC/ Registered capital of 30 Construction of photovoltaic
Power Co., Ltd. il ava Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 and power plants
(“Liaoning Yangguang”) BB AR paid-in capital of BERRE
EEGAERENERAR RMB3,400,000
(TEEBX]) AR
AR #10,000,0007T &
EHBEAARE
3,400,0007T
Xingye Lvjian (Jiangsu) Incorporated The PRC/ Registered and 20 Construction of photovoltaic
Urban Construction il ava Mainland China paid-in capital of power plants
Development Co., Ltd. BB AR RMB20,000,000 BERRE

("Xingye Lvjian")
FEGE(IH) BmER
BERERRDA

A EARARE R
BHERARE
20,000,000
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Investments in associates (continued)

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates all comprise equity
shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, except for Xingye Lvjian, the shareholding in which is
held through a partly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

R I IRARMIEE

31 December2022 R-ZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(BBAEFHEIN UARESE)

18. REE R THNKRE 5)
1t 2 BREE A TS IR ROE NG A BT
&AL -

SEEBEARTHFRARBBA ﬂ%i%“
TRARFHRNBE  BEXERBBITH
17 B 8 R RIS AR BR OD -

19. U BEAEEESEHFT AR
e ERENERRE

2021
—ET-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AREEFTT
Equity investments designated at fair UAARBEFEEHEEHFTA
value through other comprehensive Hima s Rz E
income
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value FELTHERKRE  RATE
Jinzhou Runyang Energy Trading Co., Ltd. RN E GRS E BR A 190 190

In July 2020, the Group invested RMB190,000 in cash for 19%
equity interest of Jinzhou Runyang Energy Trading Co., Ltd., a
photovoltaic product trading company which commenced
business in June 2019.

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

R_E_ZTFLA - ZK;EK@WE%AE%
190,0007c5§,a$%)||,Fﬁlimb//ﬁf’fﬁﬁﬁ
19% KA1 - S8 B E R E AR A

—F%HKEDDD I HEAN —FT— ﬂi/\ﬁﬁ'ﬂ
R
HRAEERAZKREAFHMBME - £t

AR E T AR IR E R AR 2 BEFA
H sz A e o
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31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

20. Deferred tax EEH IR
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the RNEERTEMEHREEMBENZFE LA
year are as follows: I
Deferred tax assets BEFMSETHEE
2022
—g-=
Allowance
Deferred Provision for for doubtful Write-down
income  warranties debt of inventories Total
EZBA RARE RERE BFEWMRA @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB*000 RMB*000 RMB'000
AR¥Tr ARETr ARETR AR¥TTt AR%Tn
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—%—F—H 2,882 6,183 — — 9,065
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ RERAEBREKT
the statement of profit or loss REEFEME/ (GEA)
during the year (note 11) MERRIE (1) (720) (795) 1,974 7,316 7,775
At 31 December 2022 RZE__%+_A
=+-H 2,162 5,388 1,974 7,316 16,840
Deferred tax liabilities BEEMEHAE

Fair value
adjustments
on business
combination Total
EF gt
A FE Hitb st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T ARE T
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—_F—HF—H 2,418 — 2,418
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the ~ MEREERZR %:ZEPEATE
statement of profit or loss during Wk GTA) &
the year (note 11) ERTE (KIEE11) (73) 11,132 11,059
At 31 December 2022 R-_E-_—F+_-A
=+—H 2,345 11,132 13,477
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31 December2022 W-—TZZF+=-A=+—8
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F B A FERAE SN - LA R B E)

20. Deferred tax (continued) 20. ELERIE ()
Deferred tax assets BEEFSHEE
2021

—EF - —F

Deferred Provision for
income warranties Total
PEIEUT A RS et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETTT ARETT ARBTT

At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—F—H—H 6,005 3,657 9,662
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to RERNEEHEFNRER
the statement of profit or loss M (T A) BIEE
during the year (note 11) I (MFEE11) (3,123) 2,526 (597)
At 31 December 2021 i
+=—A=+—8H 2,882 6,183 9,065
Deferred tax liabilities BEFSHEaE
2021
—ET -4
Fair value
adjustments
on business
combination Others Total
E X
BmAFE EAh #Et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBETTT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2021 R-—ZT-—#—HF—H 2,491 1,286 3,777
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the ~ MEREEBIHEERFNE

statement of profit or loss during =B GTA) IR

the year (note 11) FERRIE (FEE11) (73) (1,286) (1,359)
At 31 December 2021 RZZ-_—F+_H

=+—H 2,418 — 2,418




180 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 562 RZERA R A T

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

20. Deferred tax (continued) 20. EERBIE (@)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

THERARERREMEHEE -

2022 2021

—EF-_— - —4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBF T

Tax losses DEIEEPS 968,750 1,890,835
Deductible temporary differences AENEREER 225,235 80,961
1,193,985 1,971,796

At 31 December 2022, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of unused tax losses of RMB715,898,000
(31 December 2021: RMB1,712,300,000) and RMB252,852,000
(31 December 2021: RMB178,535,000) attributable to its
subsidiaries in Mainland China and Hong Kong, respectively,
and certain deductible temporary differences of
RMB225,235,000 (31 December 2021: RMB80,961,000), as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses
or deductible temporary differences can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities.

Included in the unrecognised tax losses, RMB252,852,000
(31 December 2021: RMB178,535,000) may be carried forward
indefinitely and the remaining balance RMB715,898,000 from
subsidiaries in Mainland China will expire at various dates up to
2027.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

RZZE-_—_F+_A=+—H AEETER
DRARFPEREREENNBRAAARKE
715,898,000 (ZE-—F+-_A=+—8:
AR #1,712,300,0007T) & AR #252,852,000
T(ZFEZ—F+ZA=+—H: AR¥
178,535,0007T) M FE(E R BRI IBEE B A T
AT H0 R E By = BE A R 225,235,000 (=&
——#F+=-A=+—H: AR¥S80,961,00007T)

REERIBEE - REA KM@ E AR
[@ f2 B 48K AT B8 & A R 2R IE AR B R DA 1
A BB RS RERE -

RERRIBBES B AR K252,852,0007T
(Z2E=Z—F+=-_A=Z=+—"H:  AR¥
178,535,0007T) A #E PR B 45 %8 - (AP B A i
RIFT B A R AR 715,898,000 N E =
—E-LFHTEBHER -

REFECEMAEH L BEPBEAMERL
N ERECERIINEREEE HEHNRER
WI0% M TEEER - ZBFKB T N\F—H
—HRAEY - BRAR -_TELF+ A=+
BZR&EUA o iR B K B BN R B
MEEEZHEA TR E - RIREARER
BRWE -HRANEE  BRAHER5%HL
10% ° Bt - HREZTZT)\F—A—HIMURXK
ELENEE  EPBEKRKERINFRAAD
R  AEBEBEERMAEBR -
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31 December2022 W-—TZZF+=-A=+—8
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F B A FERAE SN - LA R B E)

21. Inventories 21. FE

(@)  Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (@) HFEFBKRAERMEFERE:
position comprise:

2022 2021
—E=-— —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT

Materials and supplies R R A 413,740 258,677
Finished goods SRR Gh 263,913 204,302
677,653 462,979
Write-down of inventories to net FEMRZE 25 FE
realisable value (90,086) (3,540)
587,567 459,439
(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories sold is as by EENHTESBIWHOT:
follows:
2022 2021
—E=- = —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETx ARET T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENERAE 5,637,674 4,142,617
Write-down/(reversal of write-down of — TE&#iE,~ (MU EF)
inventories

86,546 (17,463)

5,724,220 4,125,154
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31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

22.

Trade, bills receivables and contract
assets

@LI& E SR
BE

BRREEREHN

2

2022 2021
—E—= —E——
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARET T
Trade receivables B E 5 BR 1,147,814 1,205,268
Bills receivable i 229,237 700,504
1,377,051 1,905,772
Impairment B (62,036) (111,617)
1,315,015 1,794,155

The Group normally grant a credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its customers. However, regarding domestic photovoltaic module
sales, some trade receivables are granted a longer credit period
of up to 180 days depending on the construction period of
photovoltaic power plants. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Included in the Group's trade receivables are amounts due from
the Group’s associates of RMB40,618,000 (2021:
RMB1,166,000), which are repayable on credit terms similar to
those offered to the major customers of the Group.

BB TFEFI0E0ENEEH - B
ﬂlWZ@#%%'%“E%$%ME%%
BUARBHMBRMNIREAR BEREEHR
K E180K - BEEF#HE —E&sE=ZAR
& o SEBEISRESIE I B AR EE R EIERK
WERBEEESHIIAEEERKREERE -
BHAESBEEREREEEHRE &N
BRAAMEBNESBRRERSIRAKES T
LBF BT FEEANEFRERER - &
Bk BB 5 R RS RS A R
Mo E A S AER - B S RGBT L -

FERERE ZERIEEBEEE QA EKE
RARY40,618,000L (ZZE=—F : AREE
1,166,0007T) + ZEREARAEEREZRF
RHNBUEEERIER -
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22. Trade, bills receivables and contract assets

(continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

22.

R I IRARMIEE

31 December2022 R-ZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(BBAEFHEIN UARESE)

BUREZEN BURBREHN
BE®

PSR HIRTAS B - 0 R BRI 4 1R 0 B UK
BEERREENEREEEASANMT :

2022 2021
—E=-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARET T
Within 1 year —FR 1,212,698 1,733,506
1 to 2 years — 4 81,205 31,686
2 to 3 years —E=4F 7,589 24,338
Over 3 year BE=F 13,523 4,625
1,315,015 1,794,155

As at 31 December 2022, bhills receivable amounting to R-ZBE-_—F+-_A=+—"H EBREEA

RMB57,410,000 (31 December 2021: RMB204,923,000),
together with pledged deposits amounting to
RMB2,245,602,000 (31 December 2021: RMB567,529,000) had
been pledged as security to banks for issuing bills payable to
suppliers amounting to RMB2,433,217,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB1,315,712,000).

R#57,410,000( = =-—F+=-A=+—
H: AR¥204,923,00070) A K& EEFFEZRA
R #2,245,602,000c (=2 =—F+= 8
=+—8: AR#¥567,529,0007T) tE & $R1T A
WA EEBENEEIHNEE ARK
2,433,217,000 (ZE=-_—F+-_A=+—
H: AK#1,315,712,000) °




184 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED B tEERZERER A

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ma

31 December 2022
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22.

PA RS AR MY

RZTE-Z=ZF+=-A=+—H

(BEBEEBEIN  UARBIIE)

Trade, bills receivables and contract assets
(continued)

As at 31 December 2022, borrowings amounting to
RMB32,678,000 (31 December 2021: RMB56,344,000) and
RMB115,518,000 (31 December 2021: RMB354,622,000) were
secured by certain of the Group’s trade receivables and bills
receivable with a carrying amount of RMB32,678,000
(31 December 2021: RMB56,344,000) and RMB115,518,000 (31
December 2021: RMB354,622,000) respectively.

22.

EWE ZR™
BE @
R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H8 ERARE
32,678,000 (ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—80":
AR M56,344,000) k. AR 115,518,000 (=
T+ -_A=+—HBH: AR
354,622,000) A AR EEF S EWE Z R K
W EEIREED R A AR32,678,00007T
(ZE=_—F+=-A=+—H :56,344,000) &
AR 115,518,000 L fEE M (Z T = —F
+=A=+—8 :354,622,000) {E#KIE -

BUREBEREH

2

2022 2021

—s=-= - —
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARET T

Contract assets arising from: AHEEEXR -

Sale of industrial products HETEMM 214,063 157,046
Construction services £ 32 AR 75 32,964 3,631
247,027 160,677
Impairment B (3,148) (1,628)
243,879 159,049

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from
the sale of industrial products and the provision of related
installation services and construction services as the receipt of
consideration is conditional on successful completion of
installation of the industrial products and construction,
respectively. Included in contract assets for construction services
are retention receivables. Upon completion of installation or
construction and acceptance by the customer, the amounts
recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade
receivables. The increase in contract assets in 2022 and 2021
was the result of the increase in the ongoing sale of industrial
products and the provision of construction services at the end
of each of the years.

EHNEEVISHARME TEE R RIRHE
BMLERBLREEREABRDRANKE AR
WBRAREBIRIFRRAK NN TEERNE
ERET - BREEERBEOPEOVEEN
FERRB S TERIMIERTLERFRBIK
% HMARBANWEENSHEENH»ELRES
JEWGREBE —E-—FN_ZT=-—F45HE
ENENEAREFERIEERNITER
EREERB AR ALIE M -
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31 December2022 R-ZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F B A FERAE SN - LA R B E)

22. Trade, bills receivables and contract assets

(continued)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract
assets as at 31 December is as follows:

n.g%%%%ﬁ~@%%%&éﬁ

E )
BE+-—A=+—8 ANEERE%LES
HTEERBSER T :

Within 1 year —FR

2022 2021
—E=-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTT
247,027 160,677

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade,
bills receivables and contract assets are as follows:

FARKE SRR EBUREBENENEER
EREESHMT

2022 2021

== —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREEF T

At the beginning of the year R EFA]) 113,245 131,316
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment BAEB L, CRERDTR) (FFE7)

losses) (note 7) 26,274 (18,071)

Amount written off as uncollectible A B N & R (68,418) —

Disposal of subsidiaries HEKHE QR (5,917) —

At the end of the year NG N 65,184 113,245

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates for the measurement of the expected credit
losses of the contract assets are based on those of the trade
receivables as the contract assets and the trade receivables are
from the same customer bases. The Group applies the
simplified approach to the provision for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade debtors. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the ageing of
balance for groupings of various customers with similar loss
patterns, repayment histories, and existing customer-specific and
market conditions, and also taking into consideration of
forward-looking information, including the forecast of industry
situation and overall economic conditions. Generally, trade
receivables are written off if past due for more than one year
and are not subject to enforcement activity.

RERE B HRBBEBREETRED T
NEtERaMEEER BEANEERYE
BERINEHSXRNEHRERNERS
RRIKEN  BRENEEME 5 EKFIK
BR-—FFH AEERAEEYHREE
AIF SRR AN BHMEERAERESNEL
T RFRTHMEESEKAMERKATES
AR EECRY —ERHER - ZER
ERAEFBRUBKBEANTRETF DA
R ERELARBRBEEPFEMTS
RS - WEBAEMEES  BRITXVEMNE
BB TR - —RIRE - IREHEE
—F - BHRUCRFBEEN - WA TR
ABEAR
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31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

22. Trade, bills receivables and contract assets 22. ERE S KRN - BREBREN

(continued) BE®
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure TRENAEERKEGRAMENEESR
on the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets using R AR EERNERRRAENER

provision matrix:
As at 31 December 2022 R=-TB=-=—F+=HF=+—H

(i)  Large-scale state-owned enterprises, multinational () KREBEDRE BEDIFEME
enterprises and related parties

Between Between Between
Within 1and 2 and 3 and Over

1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years

- -£F-f ZEZZE ZFZNE BERE

Expected credit loss rates BHEEEBRX 0.16% 1.13% 6.32% 12.92% 93.21%
Gross carrying amount REEE
(RMB'000) (AR®BFT) 534,175 82,274 14,019 26,248 324 657,040
Expected credit losses EHEEER
(RMB'000) (ARETT) 851 933 887 3,393 302 6,366
(i) Except for large-scale state-owned enterprises, (i) BRAZLEBRE - BRI ZE MBI SN

multinational enterprises and related parties

Between Between Between
Within 1and 2 and 3 and Over

1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years

—FR —-FE2-F ZEE=F Z=FEQNF BENF

Expected credit loss rates BHEEHRX 4.14% 19.18% 37.02% 50.94% 95.20%
Gross carrying amount RRAE

(RMB’000) (NEETFT) 622,672 97,979 3,594 - 13,556 737,801
Expected credit losses EHEERR

(RMB'000) (AREF7) 25,787 18,795 1,331 — 12,905 58,818
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31 December2022 W-—TZZF+=-A=+—8
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F B A FERAE SN - LA R B E)

22. Trade, bills receivables and contract assets 22. BREZ RN - BURBREHN

(continued) BE®
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—H+=-A=+—H
(i)  Large-scale state-owned enterprises, multinational () KREBEBRE - BEDSEMEE

enterprises and related parties

Between Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and 3and Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
5N —FEZF ZFE=F =FENF BANF it
Expected credit loss rates EHEEERX 0.14% 0.89% 5.18% 11.08% 31.69%
Gross carrying amount REEE
(RMB'000) (ARETT) 538,570 43,985 42,937 328 870 626,690
Expected credit losses EHEERE
(RMB'000) (ARETT) 746 393 2222 36 276 3,673
(i)  Except for large-scale state-owned enterprises, (i) BRARZEEBNRE - BRI ZE MBI I
multinational enterprises and related parties
Between Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and 3 and Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
—fRN —FEZF ZFE=F ZFENF HBENF @it
Expected credit loss rates BHEEERX 5.17% 28.67% 44.91% 63.00% 97.83%
Gross carrying amount RRGE
(RMB'000) (ARBFT) 646,117 18,238 - 6,754 68,146 739,255
Expected credit losses EHEERE

(RMB'000) (AR®EF7) 33,422 5,228 — 4,255 66,667 109,572




188 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BZtEERIZERER A

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ma

PA RS AR MY

31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

23.

Prepayments, other receivables and other
assets

23. AR - HthBEWRAER Hfth
aE

2022 2021
=== —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBF T

Consideration for disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZRE
(note 12) (B3E12) 889,321 —
Prepayments for raw materials REH TR RIB 213,394 314,445
Deductible value-added tax AR S E R 143,629 100,291
Other receivables H iy fE U FRIE 86,820 106,556
1,333,164 521,292
Impairment allowance PERIERE L] — —
1,333,164 521,292

In October 2022, Jinzhou Yangguang entered into an Equity
Transfer Agreement with the Purchasers, pursuant to which
Jinzhou Yangguang agreed to sell the entire equity interest in
Qujing Yangguang at a consideration of approximately
RMB1,350,000,000. Up to 31 December 2022, the
consideration of RMB439,321,000 was related to the Group’s
related parties (three entities controlled by Mr. Tan Wenhua
and/or Mr. Tan Xin), which was included in other receivables
and due in 2023 according to the Equity Transfer Agreement.

Other receivables mainly represent deposits and staff advances,
and an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by considering the probability of default.

T F+ A BNBREE HEETIRE
R Bt BMNEERENEHEBE X
m 2 RERELDRARKM1,350,000,000
TeHE_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—H8  REA
R #439,321,0007T 82 78 5 & B Bt 75 (38 S
AR/ NEBEEEEHO=RERL) B
AFAEMERRITRREEZRE R
Z=FERE

H W HIBRETERRERBTER IR
BHmEAHBBEBROBRETRHED T
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31 December2022 W-—TZZF+=-A=+—8
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F B A FERAE SN - LA R B E)

24. Pledged deposits 24, EEAER
Certain of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged to secure REBATRITERE R AL B ER IR
bank loans and other banking facilities granted to the Group as ERREAMBITRHEELER  HIOT :
follows:
2022 2021
—E-_— —EF-—4F
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Pledged as security for bills payable EIRERENZEAERR 2,245,602 567,529
Others HAit 68,599 183,749
2,314,201 751,278
The effective annual interest rate for pledged deposits with BE-_Z-_—_F#+-_A=+—BLEEFE" B2
banks was 1.77% for the year ended 31 December 2022 BHRTFRITNEFNERFNER177E(Z
(2021: 0.35%). TZ_ZTF:035E)
25. Cash and cash equivalents 25. ReREFASEEY

2022 2021
- —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T

Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHEH 937,897 431,861
Cash and bank balances totalling RMB676,497,000 RZE-—F+-A=+—AMHEE KR
(31 December 2021: RMB251,542,000) as at 31 December HEerA K ARBG676,497,000 (T = — 4
2022 are denominated in RMB. The RMB is not freely +=A=+—H: AR#251,542,0007T) A A
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland REEF|E - A\RBTAIEHRLBRAEME o
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and SAT » ARIRR BISNE B HIGRDI R AARE - EER
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign NEBERE  NEBEREFBRERIT
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB 1A R S RIEINE AT TINE T ©

for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily IRITRSRE B BRITERF EIZZBF
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are BEUR B - IRITHEB REERBEFEREFAL
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of B R A AR T RIRTT ©

default.
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31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

26. Interest-bearing bank and other 26. RITRHAE BB

borrowings
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
“E--ft+t=BA=t-H ZF--%+tZA=+-H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
(%) (%)
Notes BRH= Maturity RMB’000 BRFIE Maturity RMB'000
Loksa (%) k) ARBTR (%) HE ARETR

Current: E

Bank loans - secured BIER — BER () 3.950-7.500 2023 269,500 3.480-7.500 2022 507,782
CNY AR 269,500 507,782

Bank loans — guaranteed BITER — BER (b) 2.625-9.000 2023 790,128 2.585-9.000 2022 981,879
CNY AR 613,802 817,400
EUR BT 157,766 123,416
HKD B - 200
UsD e 18,560 40,863

Other loans - secured Hi &3 — BHER (© 0.000-7.500 2023 137,518 0.000-7.500 2022 410,966
CNY AR 137,518 410,966

Other loans - guaranteed HiER — BER (b) 5.000-5.475 2023 3,918 5.000-5.475 2022 12,299
HKD BT 730 9,11
UsD E 3,188 3,188

Current portion of long-term REGENRBRS
borrowings:

Other loans - guaranteed HiER — BER (b) 1.600-6.000 2023 45,915 1.600-6.000 2022 2,353
EUR BT 1,252 2,353
HKD B 44,663 —

Total At 1,246,979 1,915,279

Non-current: g :

Other loans - guaranteed HER — BER (b) 5.900-7.000 2024 91,772 1.600-7.000  2023-2024 209,670
CNY ARHE 91,772 167,572
EUR BT - 1,218
HKD BT - 40,880

Total A 91,772 209,670

(@)  The bank borrowings of the Group are secured by: (a) AEBEZRITEEUTYFEER:

(i)  the Group's property, plant and equipment with the i) HEOVE BELEEE RKE
net book value of RMB383,081,000 (31 December F{E A AR #383,081,0007T (=
2021: RMB494,154,000); and ZZ—F+ZA=+—H: AR

#494,154,0007C) &
(i) the Group’s right-of-use assets amounting to i)y SENEARBEERARE

RMB23,213,000

(31

RMB43,461,000).

December

2021:

23,213,000 (ZE=Z—F+ =
A=+—8: AR®43,461,000
JL) ©
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31 December2022 W-—TZZF+=-A=+—8
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F B A FERAE SN - LA R B E)

26. Interest-bearing bank and other 26. BITREMFEEE @
borrowings (continued)
(b)  Certain subsidiaries’ borrowings are guaranteed by the (b) HBTFHWHEBRARMERBAEEHMHE
other subsidiaries of the Group, Mr. Tan Xin or Mr. Tan NE] BEEERENEREER -
Wenhua.
()  Other loans of the Group are secured by: (0 AEBZEMEZTANHXEER :
()  the Group's bills receivable amounting to hh HEEHNEUREERBAEARE
RMB115,518,000 (31 December 2021: 115,518,000 c (=& - —F+ =
RMB354,622,000); and A=+ — 8 : AR

354,622,00007T) i &

(i) the Group's trade receivables amounting to (i EENEKRESERAARE
RMB32,678,000 (31 December 2021: 32,678,000 (ZE - —F+ =
RMB56,344,000), further details are disclosed in R=+—H: AR®56,344,000
note 42 to the financial statements. T0) BRI 42 R -

2022 2021
—E=- = —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARBTT

Analysed into: Pamiv=1
Bank loans repayable: BATEENRITEE
Within one year or on demand —FRRIZER 1,059,628 1,546,005
Other borrowings repayable: ATEENEMEES
Within one year —FNR 187,351 369,274
In the second year F-F 91,772 42,098
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoEFERF  PEERMST — 167,572
279,123 578,944

1,338,751 2,124,949
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RZTE-Z=ZF+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)
27. Trade and bills payables 27. ERHESRAREEE
2022 2021
=== —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARBTT
Trade payables R E SRR 1,307,717 927,004
Bills payable FEA R IR 2,433,217 1,315,712
3,740,934 2,242,716

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

(a)

RBEREAER  BNEIRREER
BHRKEREZBHINAOT

2022 2021
—E=-= T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETT

Within 1 month — & A A 1,027,945 785,573
1 to 3 months —Z==18A 977,506 712,362
4 to 6 months MZENEA 1,558,395 645,239
7 to 12 months tE=+=f@A 153,821 65,245
Over 1 year Bl —F 23,267 34,297
3,740,934 2,242,716

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 90-day credit terms.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bills payable of
RMB2,433,217,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB1,315,712,000) were secured by Group’s bills
receivable of RMB57,410,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB204,923,000) (note 22) and by Group's pledged
deposits of RMB2,245,602,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB567,529,000).

BHRNFBER/RE  BERIOREH
RAEE -

RZEBE-_ZF+-_A=+—8 Ax&£H
AR "2 433,217,000 (=& = —F
+=ZA=+—H8: AR#¥1,315,712,000
T)NENZEUNARERARKE
57,410,000 (=& =Z—F+= A
=+—H: AR#¥204,923,0007T) (K
H22)MEWEBRBURARE
2,245,602,000C (ZE - —F+—_A
=+—H8: AR#567,529,000) 1) 2 &
FRFRIEE A -
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28. Other payables and accruals 28. HitWENRBEREFHX

2022 2021
—E=-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTT

Payables for acquisition of property, plant BEWE  BISREEHEN

and equipment A 203,795 274,737
Payables for other taxes E At T IE 72,072 31,217
Payables for freight charges ERES 23,561 5,229
Payables for staff-related cost B TR HE 33,064 19,271
Dividends payable(*) PR B.(%) 217,123 138
Other payables on behalf of the third- HEMRE=HENFRIE

parties 58,007 113,427
Other payables and accruals E M RIEMEGTE A 68,553 99,847

676,175 543,866

* The balance mainly represented the Special Dividend declared in * ZHBETERAEEYEBR T _—_F+=
December 2022 (note 13), and the dividends amounting to AERERIEE (MI7E13) REEFEER
RMB5,459,000 to the non-controlling shareholders declared by T _FRASRMIFERREREAR
Liaoning Semiconductor in May 2022. #45,459,0007T ©

The above amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no e AEEKE RS EEBETERSE-

fixed terms of repayment.

29. Contract liabilities 29. EHEE
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: ABHBEFBEOT

2022 2021
—=-= —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Sale of industrial products HETEEMR 318,662 136,023
Construction services FE R 10,356 5,060
Total #aEt 329,018 141,083
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to AHNEGERERBEIZEMNEBHERIR K
deliver industrial products and provide construction services. The REHERSE R —F5HNAEIEMN
increase in contract liabilities in 2022 was mainly due to the FTERHRZFHELEEMIGMATE

increase of sale of industrial products this year.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

30. Provisions 30. &

Provision for

warranties

RARE

RMB’000

ARBF T

At 1 January 2021 R-ZEZ—F—H—H 151,487
Provision B 37,104
Utilization e (2,286)

At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=_A=+—H 186,305

At 1 January 2022 RZE—=—F—H—H 186,305

Provision B 76,575
Reversal due to estimation changes PR Ryl (99,437)
Utilisation i FA (988)

At 31 December 2022 RZZEZZ_F+-A=+—H 162,455
Portion classified as current liabilities NBEARBBENI S (2,252)

Non-current portion JEmBE D 160,203
The Group’s photovoltaic modules are typically sold with a AEEE KRB HERF —RIIEERKA
2-year or 5-year warranty for defects in materials and ﬂﬁﬂziﬁsi%ﬂ}é%&/\ﬂ%ﬁﬁ A K10
workmanship, and a 10-year or 25-year minimum power output FRBEZKEENHERE - DRRES T

warranty against declines of initial power generation capacity of BHTHREBETNGZRILEEEL10% K
more than 10% and 20%, respectively from the date of 20% © IRBRABEGR - AEBEHEEHA
receipts. The Group has the obligation to repair or replace solar IGELaEFETHIEER - REBHRBRA

modules, under the terms of the warranty policy. The Group HENEBEEZSRABTHNELEE -

maintains warranty reserves to cover potential liabilities that
could arise under these warranties.
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Provisions (continued)

The Group began to sell photovoltaic modules from the year of
2010. Up to now, the Group has continuously engaged in sales
business of photovoltaic module for over 10 years. According to
the mathematical statistics of quality compensation starting from
selling photovoltaic modules, the Group has not made any
quality compensation due to declines of initial power
generation capacity of more than 10% and 20% from the date
of receipt or defects in materials and workmanship.

In order to present a fairer and more appropriate view of the
financial position and operating results of the Group, the Group
revised its accounting estimates on the provision for warranties
from 1% to 0.625% in accordance with HKAS, based on the
technical assessment report prepared by the Company’s
management, as well as further referenced to the accounting
estimation adopted by other companies in the industry. The
Company obtained the approval on 26 August 2022 from the
Company’s board of directors and adopted this change from
1 January 2022.

If there are no changes in accounting estimates, the provision
for warranties would amount to approximately RMB76,575,000
in the current year; after the change in accounting estimates, a
reversal of the provision for warranties of RMB22,862,000 was
recorded, which increased the total profit of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 by approximately
RMB99,437,000 due to the estimation changes.

Deferred income

Various government grants have been received by the Group for
generating export sales, participating in high-tech industry and
constructing various manufacture and photovoltaic power plants
in Jinzhou, Liaoning Province, Qujing, Yunnan Province, and
Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

Those government grants related to assets are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially as deferred
income and are amortised to profit or loss as other income over
the useful lives of the assets.

30.

31.

R I IRARMIEE

31 December2022 R-ZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(BBAEFHEIN UARESE)

iﬁﬁiﬁ
SER-_Z—ZTFHBREELREAG - BZE
BaAr Elagﬁm$%ﬁ@ﬁ%%¥%ﬁ
10 - IRIBFABR EHELREAGESHE
ERESESRT SEAEBKRE ZHI%
EE TEIBIB10%M20% s ik Fl T Z g
METEERE -

RE@$&E%Mm&%E@m%W%E&
KBRS SERBFESHENTRERARD
ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁim&m&%ﬁ% e ]
REBENGTTER1%E51/50.625% @ Wi
f*%%TﬁﬁﬁﬁMAE%ﬁ%m@%H
ﬁ KRBIRZE-_FNA-+BESE

Ti%Am& YH—_ZT-——F—A—H
RERNEE

MESTFEEE $¢Eﬁ%%%%%7
BARMT6,575,00070 - LRFAHHEEEER - R
&R A AR 22,862,000 @ AHEHE
FEHEEHE—_ZT-_—_F+=-_A=1+—H
LEFERHNE B L ML A R 199,437,000
5T o

i E A

AREAEEHOHE  REERRTER
EREEEL RN - %@%@Eﬂmﬁ%%
R S RS BUS ROt RE I TS
BB S -

%5 BLE B A B R BT R B S IR B B 7%
RARPHERBSECWA - WIZEEAE A
FHNRSABHEREMRA -
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31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

32. RIRERIFTE

32. Retirement benefit schemes

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
administered and operated by the local municipal government.
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries were required to make
contributions to the scheme at 20% of the employees’ salaries
per annum to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to
the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with the schemes beyond the
contributions described above.

AEETEMEAREESEARZEAMTT DK
JiF 38 I i A B TE B TR KRB UGB o K
SETENERQRRRERFHN20%RE
LMK REERKEMNEHRES -

AEBTCRBETERIERERFTEIED
REZBEBEBEDIMEENESRIEY
HREEFE((REDTE]) BB E
REBHTENRE BBIIEAEE - 8
BestalREREILERERBZEREH
WA B 5% A5 BI1E 3R - AT A AERIYA
30,0008 7L 2 £ - M58 TR £ 51 8 1F H ey it
RN R o

B bt RN - REBEBAR N RS E
BERHRABNAZEMEREME -
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33. Share capital 33. kA
Authorised and issued share capital ETE R B BEITRA

2022 2021
—E-= —T-—F
No. of shares No. of shares '000

RO EE Bin g8 T

Authorised: HEE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ~ ERE(E0. 157K
LER 5,000,000,000 HK$500,000  5,000,000,000 HK$500,000
Equivalent to HER RMB450,000 RMB450,000

Ordinary shares, issued and ERTRMREER:
fully paid:

At 1 January ®w—A—H 3,323,771,133 RMB285,924  3,143,771,133 RMB270,867
Effect of Subscription of new B —BEERENRO
shares under general

mandate — — 180,000,000 15,057
At 31 December ®W+=—A=+—H 3,323,771,133 RMB285,924 3,323,771,133 RMB285,924
Note: On 21 January 2021, the Company entered into a subscription Wit : ZF=—F—A=+—H ARREBILE

agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with an independent =HFURBADGTLREWZ ([RE W
third party (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Company #) Bt ARIREREITELEEMET
agreed to allot and issue 180,000,000 new shares at an issue 180,000,000 8% 7 % 2 88 A & 1% 0.2978 7T
price of HK$0.29 per share to the Subscriber (the ([RE]) - REABRBREHZEZ ALK
“Subscription”). The total consideration paid by the Subscriber 8 &% %52,200,0007C " HHE R AR
under the Subscription Agreement amounted to HK$52,200,000, 41,424,0007C - REHHER T =_—F—A
equivalent to RMB41,424,000. The Subscription Agreement was —+NARER -

completed on 28 January 2021.

The information about the Company’s ordinary shares is set out BEANTETEBRNERNOT
below:

No. of shares

issued and
fully paid Amount
ERITRHE
R EE &8
RMB’000
ARBEF T

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021 R-_ZE-_—"F+-_A=+—HK
—E-—9+-_A=+—H 3,323,771,133 285,924
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34. Employee share ownership plan 34. ETRKRTE

Quijing Yangguang, a company which ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022,
operates an employee share ownership plan (“ESOP”) for the
purpose of sharing the profit of Qujing Yangguang with eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. On 23 February 2021, the shareholders of Qujing
Yangguang approved and resolved to issue 31,878,000 shares,
with the total consideration of RMB95,635,000 representing
approximately 23% of the enlarged issued share capital of
Qujing Yangguang, for the purpose of granting and allotting
the awarded shares to the participants. Subsequently, eight
limited partnerships (employee share vehicle, or “SPV") were set
up for the sole and explicit purpose of holding the shares that
will be used to settle with the employees under the ESOP plan
under the authorisation and control of Mr. Tan Wenhua,
chairman of the Company.

Among above 31,878,000 shares approved and resolved, a
totally 10,928,333 shares were allocated to eligible participants.
including employees of the Group and other eligible
participants.

The ESOP plan stipulates that eligible participants have a right
to purchase the additional shares approved and resolved by
Qujing Yangguang at a fixed price of RMB3.0 per share. The
ESOP plan further stipulates that eligible participants shall hold
those shares until the date upon the fulfilment of certain
conditions. Otherwise, the shares shall be resold back to other
eligible participants at the original subscription price.

Therefore, the ESOP plan became effective on 23 February
2021 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force until 31 December 2025 from that date.

AREF-RREE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—H
LEFETBAREERZWE QG BB
BIRRETE([BEIBRETED  BEEANR
EBERCEELBERNAGER2EENDZ

BEXHOFE T —F A =+=0 &
5 5 ¢ B R HE A I 2% R 32 1731,878,000A% A%
% BRE A ARKIS,635,0007T © 15 HIES
HIBKIECBITIRAL23% - AREE KA
BERNG2EE - BBE - KL T A ARBRE
BOEBTIHERTAE skSPv]) - EuE—88
EHEMEEEXELE  RAEER (K
REFESIT - £EF A S ARBE ESOPETE
BB THRRG -

£ #t31,878,0000% & & #t A Ik 5% 89 A% 19
FR o 510,928,333 A0 D ECLA T A IEIEEY
2mE . B  SEETREMFA KGNS

o

it

>

BETIHKRAEARE FRlEHN2REERRE
NERAREIOTHEEBEREE iBE L
CEHLEL FORIBERD - B TH ARSI
E—HRE aB2EREESAELRN B
ERRFLEGEEZA - BRI ROBRRRE
BEBSREMNTAKRENS2EE -

At BIERERN - —F-_A=-+=
BAS - BRIESHEUESERR - BRI HEZA
HiE—BEANE—_ZE-_hFE+-_A=+—QH-
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35. Reserves

(1)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The share premium is distributable.

General reserve fund

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC, these PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer a
minimum of 10% of their distributable profits after
taxation based on their PRC statutory financial statements
to the general reserve fund until the balance of the fund
is at least half of the paid-in capital of the relevant
subsidiaries. The amounts allocated to this reserve are
determined by the respective boards of directors with
reference to the minimum requirement.

For the entities concerned, the general reserve fund can
be converted into capital in proportion to the equity
holders’ existing equity holdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of
the registered capital.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of shares
allotted and issued over the subscription costs and share
options granted to employees of the Group.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
the Group companies into the presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2.4.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly represents the differences between
considerations of acquisitions of equity interests from
non- controlling equity owners and the carrying amount
of the proportionate net assets.

31 December 2022
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

R I IRARMIEE

RZFEZ=ZF+=-RA=+—H
(RS BERAEIN UARKETE)

35. f#fE

(1)

=
=

WA7 i (B
BOEERNERAXFESESABER
B o BB ER T oK

—RFEEE

RIFA R BDER R AR E R B
BZRIMT B AR EBEIZAA -
o B Y 8 R 2R H o BDA TE B IS Rk
PR B BR AR 12 AT 20 IR 71 £ > 10 % ¥ %
E-RiERT BEELHRBAESRED
ERBEMNBRARESRA /1L %
BEEFER2RREERRE  BENK
ERFHENDE -

PEHERME  —REFRS T RES
FEARBOFBRLALBASER
ABMBREHRTEONEMEARHI25% °

CENEEE

BERFRBARENETTAEEERN
By BB R B AR EE D A RE TR E

MEBREN A TE
I 5 6

EX R ERERREREE R
REZJNEBEMELNELZR - A
B2 AT E S BRI -

H{h {7 5
HibFEEERE R E SR A
W BB RS O (R (B SRR L DI P B B RE
MBRE(E < A ZEER ©
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36. Partly-owned subsidiaries with material 36. EEEAFERUEEZNBOF

non-controlling interests EHE AT
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non- RNEEHEBEASFEHEEEOMB ARG
controlling interests are set out below: BT

Percentage of equity interest held by FEEIR e R A AR AELL I

2022 2021
—EF-_— - —4F
non-controlling interests:

Jiangsu Yueyang L&A S 26.14% 26.14%

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREET T

Profit for the year allocated to non- DECAAFEIE R R A FE

controlling interests: A
Jiangsu Yueyang TLERR 5 10,529 28,406
Accumulated balances of non-controlling RS B IS S 25

interests at the reporting date: EREE

Bht
SHt

Jiangsu Yueyang TLER R 5 95,512 84,983
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36. Partly-owned subsidiaries with material 36. BEEAFERUEEZNTDE

non-controlling interests (continued) BEHE AR )
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TRINRT Lk @B A MERTBEER -
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed are REMARZEEEZRIMEENESRE

before any inter-company eliminations:

2022 2021
—E=-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTT

Revenue Wz 4,507,481 2,886,785
Total expenses FEE (4,467,205) (2,772,999)
Profit for the year FEHE 40,276 113,786
Total comprehensive income for the year FETEBALE 40,276 113,786
Current assets RBEE 2,200,724 1,377,621
Non-current assets EREEE 532,474 509,736
Current liabilities mEBE (2,215,650) (1,348,478)
Non-current liabilities EREBAE (198,165) (169,772)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEEMBHESFE 505,123 464,094
Net cash flows used in investing activities wEESMRAESFE (19,772) (291,390)
Net cash flows from financing activities BEEE SRS FE (518,209) (125,855)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash BeERBEEEYORD)

equivalents bepilipe R (32,858) 46,849
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION

37. %56t

On 31 March 2022, the Group acquired a 100% interest in
Jinzhou Changhua Carbon Products Co., Ltd. (“Changhua
Carbon”) from outside the Group. The purchase consideration
for the acquisition was in the form of cash, with
RMB5,192,000 paid at the acquisition date on 31 March 2022.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

T FZA=Z+—B EEKREEIE
WRESR M EEREFIRBER AR ([E2EHRE])
100% A5 - A BB EREURSEN
S RZEBE-—FE=ZA=+—BrkER
YT ARMS,192,0007T °

REBER EERFINAIFNEENREDN

Changhua Carbon as at the date of acquisition were as AABEWAT :
follows:

Fair value
recognized
on acquisition
W B B R R Y
ARE
RMB’000
AR TR
Property, plant and equipment W - BEI&E 4,729
Cash and bank balances RekReEED 4,531
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRT 28,951
Inventories T8 4,019
Prepayments and other receivables TE A SR8 I E b JE W SR IE 413
Trade payables BB SER (13,038)
Other payables and accruals HAth fE T FRIE R FEEH R 2 (22,901)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value RAEANFEENARE 6,704
Gains on acquisition U 8 2 W a (1,512)
Satisfied by cash REFAZNT 5,192
RMB’000
AR% T
Cash consideration RERE (5,192)
Cash and bank balances acquired BEzReRRESEH 4,531

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in
cash flows from investing activities

REEPELANBRSRETEED

RelReSEWFRY (661)
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38. HEME QT

R-TZF HEHMBEX
WAMEE12PTHRER - BB AR T -
FTZA=THHELE - Bt - th5l5
RABRAABINMEBAT - EUEE

38. Disposal of subsidiaries
(@) Disposal of Qujing Yangguang in 2022 (@)

As disclosed in note 12, Qujing Yangguang was disposal
of on 30 December 2022. Therefore, Qujing Yangguang
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and its

financial statement of the Group.

BTIBHAAEENMBEERE -

Disposal Date

HERH
Note RMB’000
B ARETR
Net assets disposed of: BERFEE
Property, plant and equipment M WE REE 1,168,613
Long-term prepayments and other R ARTE T RRIE R H Ath FE UK
receivables KIE 31,880
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 225,944
Deferred tax assets BERIBEEE 7,763
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE 86,554
Pledged deposit BEFFR 54,437
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 & FER R IR IR 671,556
Inventories & 191,916
Prepayments and other receivables T8~ 5k I8 2 E i E U SR IE 59,943
Derivative financial instruments* TEemIA* (1,404)
Interest-bearing bank and other RITREM EEE
borrowings (749,226)
Trade and bills payables FETE 5 RN ZRERR (347,016)
Other payables and accruals HihERME £ A (225,576)
Contract liabilities EHEE (5.204)
Current portion of lease liabilities —FREHHEESE (61,278)
Convertible bonds* AR ES (258,109)
Deferred income EEUA (137,966)
Lease liabilities HEAE (98,982)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 61 M HE (310,934)
302,911
Transaction costs R 5 KA 3,249
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNB ARz W& 12 1,043,840
1,350,000
Satisfied by: TRER -
Cash B 1,350,000
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RZTE-Z=ZF+=-A=+—H

(BEBEEBEIN  UARBIIE)

38. Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

*

Disposal of Qujing Yangguang in 2022 (continued)

On 27 April 2022, Qujing Yangguang issued convertible
bonds with a nominal value of RMB250,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds”) and a maturity of three years from
the date of issuance. There was no movement in the
number of these Convertible Bonds during the year. The
bonds carried interest at a rate of 5.8% per annum,
which was payable semi-annually in arrears on 30 June
and 31 December.

The Convertible Bonds
components:

are comprised of two

The liability component is initially measured at fair value
amounting approximately RMB242,094,000, which is
subsequently measured at amortised cost by applying the
effective interest rate method, after considering the effect
of transaction costs.

38. HEKMEB AT @)

(a)

*

RZZE=—F - HEHIBREY (&)
“E-FNA-F+HRH - G
1T A A R # 250,000,000 7T &) 7] # #
B ([ATRpkES]) - AT 2 B
RAZF ZEUBBESFNEENT
WIS - EHHFFERAE5.8% @ F
BEYEFIN—K RANBE=Z+BM
+-A=1+—8ZH-

AR (B 75 M AR Y ALK

BEBIERAABEEBITIGRAE &
B4 B AREE242,094,0007C © £E E
RPEUANTEE  RAERRERR
B ARNEITRENE -
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

Disposal of Qujing Yangguang in 2022 (continued)

The derivative component is valued at fair value by the
directors with reference to valuation carried out by an
independent valuation firm. The fair value of the
derivative component is derived from removing the fair
value of the liability component from the fair value of
Convertible Bonds as a whole. The derivative financial
instrument representing the conversion and redemption
option was subsequently measured at fair value. The

31 December 2022
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

R I IRARMIEE

RZFEZ=ZF+=-RA=+—H
(RS BERAEIN UARKETE)

38. HEKMEB AT @)

(a)

R-ZT=—F - HEHIBEX (&)
PTET NS MEELEB U (ERT
EBEITNHEBERAARBGEE - TEBSH
AREEERBETRBRESNALE
ERNGREEBINAABESEM -
REEBRRERREENTESHMTA
WARBEETRES - REITH
AmREFEHFSAEBERITETAS
S :

Convertible Bonds issued during the period have been
split into the liability and derivative components as
follows:

2022

—E-=

RMB’000
AR® T

AEBTO AR EREE

Nominal value of the Convertible Bonds issued

during the period 250,000
Liability component at the issuance date BITHZABHS 242,094
Interest expense FMEZ 23,265
Interest payable FEATFE (7,250)
Liability component at Disposal Date HEBZBERD 258,109
Fair value of derivative components at PTERDEETRZAAEE

the issuance date 7,906
Fair value losses on financial instruments ERMIAZAREBEEX (6,502)
Fair value of derivative components at MTERPEHERBZAREE

Disposal Date 1,404
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RZTE-Z=ZF+=-A=+—H

(BEBEEBEIN  UARBIIE)

38. Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

38. HEKMBRE

(a) Disposal of Qujing Yangguang in 2022 (continued) (a) Bﬁff:_i ﬁ’iﬁlﬁﬁ e (8)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash LEWBARNRE KIBEEEMWER
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as AP
follows:

2022

—Z=-=
RMB’000
AR® TR
Cash consideration RERE 456,651
Cash and bank balances disposed of BREME S RIRITER (86,554)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEMBGANRSNBEFEY

respect of the disposal of Qujing Yanggang FHIRA 370,097

(b) Disposal of Liaoning Yangguang (b)y HEE=EREL
In June 2022, lJinzhou Yangguang and Shanghai Rongxin T2 FRA MG RE R

Investment Energy Group Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Rongxin”)
entered into an agreement, pursuant to which Jinzhou
Yangguang agreed to sell, Shanghai Rongxin agreed to
acquire 40% of the equity interest in Liaoning
Yangguang without any consideration. The disposal was
completed on 30 June 2022. Upon completion, Liaoning
Yangguang ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company
and its financial results was no longer consolidated into
the financial statements of the Group.

wELREEBR LR ([ LERH ) #a]
W Bt BMNBXEELE - L8
MERBEWRFEEEI0%HRE  RER
B -ARALER_ZT-_—_FA=1+H
TR o KT  BEG B AR
B AR AMBEETHIALRSE
Bl P e



ANNUAL REPORT 2022 &3 207

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

38. Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Disposal of Liaoning Yangguang (continued) (b)

R I IRARMIEE

31 December2022 R-ZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H
(BBAEFHEIN UARESE)

38. HEKMEB AT @)
HEEERG N (8)

Disposal Date

HER
Note RMB’'000
M E N

Net assets disposed of: HEFEE
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHEE 313
Inventories TE 36,884
Prepayments and other receivables T8~ 508 & E R U R IE 6,798
Trade and bills payables BREZMEMNEEERR (39,307)
Other payables and accruals Hih I EsTE A (5,401)
(713)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMB AR 2 6 713

Satisfied by: Y RER

Cash REe —

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

HE-RWBARNRE MRS FEWFREDN

of the disposal of a subsidiary are as follows: U

2022
B F
RMB’000
AR TR
Cash consideration ReERE —
Cash and bank balances disposed of BREME S RIRITER (313)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEERZGEANREMNBESEEY

respect of the disposal of Liaoning Fm

Yangguang (313)
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) 38. HEMB AT @

(c) Disposal of Qinghai Yangguang in 2021 (0 RZZEZ—FHEBFBGK
—E-—F+-F BrESHETL
ERMEELEFHRE  BAEER
BERE  BRAERMEEEERER
8% H50.5% [ 0.5% ) &5 8 5 ik i -
RED R AARYES3,885,000t RAR
#534,000C - ERALER T - —4F
FTZANBEK - TkE - TEEXT
BAXRRINWBAR @ HUBEET
BOFAAREBE/Y BHRE -

In December 2021, Solargiga Hong Kong, Mr. Luo Qian
and Mr. Bao Quanjun entered into an agreement,
pursuant to which Solargiga Hong Kong agreed to sell,
Mr. Luo Qian and Mr. Bao Quanjun agreed to acquire
50.5% and 0.5% of the equity interest in Qinghai
Yangguang at a consideration of approximately
RMB53,885,000 and RMB534,000, respectively. The
disposal was completed on 8 December 2021. Upon
completion, Qinghai Yangguang ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Company and its financial results was no longer
consolidated into the financial statements of the Group.

Disposal Date

HER
Note RMB’000
= ARBT T

Net assets disposed of: HEFEE -
Property, plant and equipment M WE K& 32,935
Cash and bank balances e RIBTHER 76,552
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 R FE RIR IR 24,648
Inventories & 47,858
Prepayments and other receivables T8 AT RRIE B E A e W R IE 74,125
Trade and bills payables FETE 5 R BN RE AR (106,978)
Other payables and accruals E fh fE T S FE S B B (42,203)
Deferred income EFEWA (1,631)
Non-controlling interests FE b M R (51,600)
53,706
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XRXWBRAR ZWE 6 712
54,418

Satisfied by: THRER

Cash e 54,418
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38. HEME2 R @

38. Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

(0

Disposal of Qinghai Yangguang in 2021
(continued)

(0

R-ZB_—FHEFEG @)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash HE—RMBATINESRRESEY
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as FORE AT
follows:
2021
—EB-—F
RMB’000
AR®BT R
Cash consideration RERE 27,753
Cash and bank balances disposed of BREME S RIRITER (76,552)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in HESEGANESNBEEFEY
respect of the disposal of Qinghai Yangguang o (48,799)

39. Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
RMB130,776,000 (2021: RMB70,762,000) and
RMB130,776,000 (2021: RMB70,762,0000), respectively,
in respect of lease arrangements for plant and
machinery.

30. MEBHERERME

(a)

BERERERT

¢W CAEEREE  RENHEETH
E'Jﬁ?Fﬁ%i“ﬂD1§ﬂ§TEEF&?HE,\

EARK130,776,000( T =—: AR

#£70,762,0007T) & A R #130,776,000

(Z==——: AR¥70,762,0007T) °
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(BB BEPHEN  UARMKTIE)

39. Notes to the consolidated statement of 30. MEBERERMET &

cash flows (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

(b)

MELRBDEENEBEEL

Interest-bearing
borrowings

Lease Liabilities

sTEfE HEEE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—_%—H—H 2,124,949 93,862
Changes from financing cash flows MERERENE (69,039) (38,386)
Capital contribution from KEFERERTE
non-controlling interests (note12) (FF7E12) 32,067 —
New leases WHE — 130,776
Interest expense MEER — 9,266
Interest paid classified as operating TRMMENEREXES
cash flow meE — (9,266)
Decrease arising from disposal HEHE QR
of subsidiaries (749,226) (160,260)
At 31 December 2022 S o
=+—H 1,338,751 25,992

Interest-bearing

borrowings Lease Liabilities

FEER HEAE

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBEF T

At 1 January 2021 RZE-_—F—HF—H 2,479,579 49,350

Changes from financing cash flows MERSRENE L (354,630) (26,250)

New lease FHE — 70,762

Interest expense AIESE-3= — 3,574
Interest paid classified as operating TRMMENEREXES

cash flow mE — (3,574)

At 31 December 2021 R_ZE-——F+=A
=+—H 2,124,949 93,862
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39. Notes to the consolidated statement of 30. MEBERERMET &
cash flows (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (¢ MHERSRLAZE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the RemertPeRENHERS RN AE
statement of cash flows is as follows: m

2022 2021
s —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBTT

Within operating activities R E R EF 9,266 3,574
Within financing activities K& &g+ 38,386 26,250
47,652 29,824
40. Capital commitments 40. EREIE
Capital commitments that relate to the purchase of property, FHEBREME BERRKBER_T__FK
plant and equipment outstanding at 31 December 2022 and T+ A=+t—BHHEKXEEBRETX
2021 not provided for in the financial statements are as B RRANBENERFRERNT
follows:

2022 2021
— i — — —ﬁ—_q;

— = —=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARETT

Contracted but not provided for BRI AEREHR B — 465,020
41. Related party transactions 41. B AR S
The Group had the following transactions with related parties REEAEEEBH TN 0T

during the year:

(@) Key management personnel remuneration (a)

2022 2021
—E-—F —E - —F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARE T AREET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EBERMEYRIZE
in kind 3,211 3,554
Retirement scheme contributions IRURET &I 5K 15 15

3,226 3,569
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41. Related party transactions (continued) 4. BBARS @
(b) Transactions with directors of a subsidiary, (b) EHEMIBERAR BEARMNEER
associates and entities controlled by close family REFFBEGNEE

members of the directors

2022 2021
- —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T

Sales of goods to: mMTIyHEEM :
the associates of the Group EE RS AT 36,550 4,836

Purchases of goods and services from: | 7| &HHBEE R &R

the entities controlled by the ARAFESNESZHITRA
directors of the Company or close =) E S
family members of the directors — 419
Receipt of short-term loan from: B LA T AR B 52 A E K
a director of a subsidiary WEAR —RESE 1,922 373

Repayment of principal of short-term WEIATREOEBRER A S
loan from: iR
a director of a subsidiary MEBARIN —HES 11,364 —

Repayment of interest of short-term WeBI AT 2OR 89 78 BR B 3R )2,

loan from: B
a director of a subsidiary MEBARN—RES 1,177 348
Receipt of disposal of subsidiaries W B AT 2O0R /9 65 B 88
from : NI
the entities controlled by the RAREFHETHRIEH
directors of the Company or close BB (MaE12)
family members of the directors
(note 12)* 459,900 —
* This related party transaction above also constitutes * LB IR S IER ETRAE
connected transactions or continuing connected MAEFMARENBER I RIFERE
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing 5 e

Rules.
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41. Related party transactions (continued) 4. BEBARS (é;é-i

(b) Transactions with directors of a subsidiary, (b) HEMIBEAR  BEARMNEER
associates and entities controlled by close family RNET ﬁﬁﬁ? T E 58 (&)
members of the directors (continued)
Note: B3
In the opinion of the directors, the transactions between the BERR AEBEEABRS AN SIRE
Group and the related parties were conducted in the ordinary —REBFPEHBEPIRETHEKRIE
and usual course of business and on normal commercial terms, T EEBRIVZBE AT SEN -
and the pricing terms were based on the prevailing market
prices.

(c) In October 2022, Jinzhou Yangguang entered into an (0 =ZZTE=Z=Z%F+A- ﬁ%)l\ﬁ@tiﬁiﬂkﬁﬁﬁ

Equity Transfer Agreement with the Purchasers. Among
the Purchasers, three entities were controlled by Mr. Tan
Wenhua and/or Mr. Tan Xin, which were defined as
related parties of the Group. The total consideration was
approximately RMB1,350,000,000 and RMB900,000,000
therein was related to these three entities. Further details
of the transaction are included in note 12 to the financial
statements.

FIREEREGE B
K/ ok:E %%ETE%U_FEJ%—TEE TER
REBZHABF BRENAARE
1,350,000,000L ' EF AR
900,000,000 CE2 5% = A EEHE B - %
RGO FEHR YT B RERMT12 -

BN ESLAE
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41. Related party transactions (continued) 4. BBARS @
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties (d) HEBHT HENmREELR

2022 2021
- —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T

Trade and bills receivables: EWE SRR
the associates of the Group REBEE AT 40,618 1,166
Prepayment and other receivables: TE A FRIA N E A R YRR IE
the entities controlled by the ARAFESNESZHITRA
directors of the Company or close 2=l E 88 (MF5E23)
family members of the directors
(note 23) 439,321 —
Trade payables: FENE SR
the entities controlled by the ARARESNESZHIIBRA
directors of the Company or close ZEHIHE
family members of the directors 115 274
Short-term loan: RAEE R
a director of a subsidiary(*) MEARN —BES() 730 8,214
Note(*): B FE(*)
The Group had an outstanding balance due to a director of a subsidiary RBERR  AEEE—FHRBARN—REEH
amounted to HK$817,000 (equivalent to RMB730,000) as at the end of HAREEAESA817,00008 T (HERARKE
the reporting period. This loan was received from a director of a 730,0007T) - ZERRR—HWBARN—ZESE
subsidiary, and the loan is unsecured, with a 5% annual interest rate. RIES  ZERAEERE  FRERE5% -
Except for the short-term loan from a director of a subsidiary, the other RTR-—FENBATN —SESTRESNEHER
balances were unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on Sh Hth S AEER SR RARERER -
demand. Trade receivables from and trade payables to related parties 2K B B 77 ) JRE L BR R E A5 BR SR IE IR IR & 5 40 TE
were repayable or to be settled on settlement period agreed by both WEEBHRANEE -
parties.
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42. Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

2022

Financial assets

R I IRARMIEE

31 December2022 R-ZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H

(BmBEEBEIN  UARBIIE)

2. ZRBETHNMBTA

mF

—E-=

MBEE

Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

AREEBER
Hitir e WM K EE
Debt Equity
investment investment
BEHRE RERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR%Tx

RBSHEEER SR BITANKEE

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost

DU H

X 2 5 i B
MBEE

RMB’000
ARBT R

RMB’000
ARBT R

Equity investments AiBH AR S WA

designated at fair value AR EEEENR

through other ERE

comprehensive income — 190 — 190
Financial assets included in FFAERE SRR R

trade, bills receivables and SEBEMENEED

contract assets W EE — — 1,315,015 1,315,015
Financial assets included in FFATER FRIE - HAb

prepayments, other JE W R IE B B A

receivables and other ERMIGEE

assets — — 976,141 976,141
Pledged deposits B IFIF R — — 2,314,201 2,314,201
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY — — 937,897 937,897

- 190 5,543,254 5,543,444
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42. Financial instruments by category (continued) 42. RIEBHEF BT A )

2022 (continued) —E__F(E
Financial liabilities HEaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
LA SH BX 2R 5 iR
WK EE et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR AR® TR
Lease liabilities HEAaE 25,992 25,992
Trade and bills payables ERE SERRER 3,740,934 3,740,934
Financial liabilities included in other FTANE M B R E R
payables and accruals WS A E 571,039 571,039
Interest-bearing bank and other AERITRAMEE
borrowings 1,338,751 1,338,751

5,676,716 5,676,716
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42. Financial instruments by category (continued) 42. REHEI MBI HE T A @)
2021 —E-—F
Financial assets MBEE
Financial
Financial assets at fair assets at
value through other amortised
comprehensive income cost Total
LA%EE
AR EERR B 7R F1) B &Y
HEMiRaWRasmisEE B E FelS
Debt Equity
investment investment
EHEE iR &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTIT AREFTT ARBTRT AREBTRT
Equity investments AiBH AR S W& A
designated at fair value NREEEENR
through other LB
comprehensive income — 190 — 190
Financial assets included in FFAERE SRR R
trade, bills receivables and EBEMENEED
contract assets W EE — — 1,794,155 1,794,155
Financial assets included in FFATER FRIE - HAb
prepayments, other JE W R IE B B A
receivables and other ERMIGEE
assets — — 106,556 106,556
Pledged deposits BT R — — 751,278 751,278
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEFEY — — 431,861 431,861
Financial assets included in FFARHATER FRIE R
long term prepayments H e Uk BB 9 B
and other receivables BEE — — 1,532 1,532
— 190 3,085,382 3,085,572
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BRERESWE KT A

42. Financial instruments by category (continued) 42.

2021

Financial liabilities

—E-—F

MBRE

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost Total
VABE B B AR 51 BR
WA’ FEE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®ETT
Trade and bills payables ENESERRER 2,242,716 2,242,716
Financial liabilities included in other FHAE At FE A TR R B AR X
payables and accruals WS A E 493,378 493,378
Interest-bearing bank and other AERITRAMEE
borrowings 2,124,949 2,214.949
4,861,043 4,861,043
Transfers of financial assets EEUBEE

At 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed
Bills”) with a carrying amount of RMB229,237,000 to certain of
its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers (the “Endorsement”), and factored certain trade
receivables(”Accounts Receivable Factor”) with a carrying
amount of RMB33,356,000 to banks in Mainland China to
obtain the cash and cash equivalent(the “Factoring”). In the
opinion of the directors, the Group has retained the substantial
risks and rewards, which include default risks relating to such
Endorsed Bills and Accounts Receivable Factor, and accordingly,
it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of the
Endorsed Bills and Accounts Receivable Factor.

Subsequent to the Endorsement and the Factoring, the Group
did not retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills and
the Accounts Receivable Factor, including the sale, transfer or
pledge of the Endorsed Bills and the Accounts Receivable Factor
to any other third parties. The aggregate carrying amount of
the trade payables settled by the Endorsed Bills and the
Accounts Receivable Factor during the year to which the
suppliers have recourse was RMB115,518,000 and
RMB32,678,000 respectively as at 31 December 2022.

R-B-—F+_-_A=+—0 A&EEZE
EZHRMEAARE229,237,0007T K B A i
RITEINHBOERER([EERE] TE
THpER - AEBENZSHERENK
([BE)])  WHREEARAR33,356,0007T
METESRKFEEFBEAREMNIRITET
RERE(EREBEKER] @ UREES
EReSEW(TRE]D - ERERAR  ~&EH
REBTEARBRMBEH  EFiERZEE
SREEREFRES@ANENRR - Bt
AEBREEBRRAZSEEEBERERERER
IR B REEE -

REEMREE AEEHEEERLER
BEWERE ZEEMAERAEN  BEBE
EZENEREBKETMESE  EEE
HHEEmMEME=F R_E-__F+=A
=+ —A AFEREBSERERERIENR
ErmaEEmtEmaeRENE HEMNIE
HHEEReES B AARKE115,518,0007T
MAR®32,678,0007T °
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43. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of 43. XFERAFEER
financial instruments
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial NTRASESHIANKEEEBENARE
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that B REEOEECEMEIALBEN S
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: THEHN:

2022 2021
=== T —F
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair value amount Fair value
FREEE RAEE REEE ~RfBE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARST R AR¥ET JUNGL-RWPN:G:

Financial liabilities MKaE
Other loans H A& R 91,772 92,138 209,670 205,069
91,772 92,138 209,670 205,069
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash EREEDAMRELARCEED BRES
equivalents, trade receivables, trade and bills payables, financial R EREBRRRERE - ST ATENRIE - HA
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other BREEMEETHNESRERE T AHME
assets, financial liabilities included in other payables and NEMEFERTHNEREE F2EER
accruals, interest-bearing borrowings and other borrowings, HEtmEEN AR EEZALEDES 2
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short EHENEETERHARNIE-
term maturities of these instruments.
The Group’s finance department headed by the finance R GREEENERKLragERES
manager is responsible for determining the policies and MIEAARBEMENRENER - KR
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial EEERAERVBENEFZEgRE - &
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief BE®REA  MBEHMAI> T IAEBESN
financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting 2E WEEHETPERANEZRAZRE 4
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the EREFUEEREMILE SFHEHEZZL
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs BEgmMAHBIEMER  LETHE
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and MEZPTB®RE -

approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year
for interim and annual financial reporting.
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43.

PA RS AR MY

RZTE-Z=ZF+=-A=+—H

(BEBEEBEIN  UARBIIE)

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at 31 December 2022 were assessed to be
insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
have been estimated using a market-based valuation technique
based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies (peers) based on
industry, size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an
appropriate price multiple, such as enterprise value to earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EV/
EBITDA"”) multiple and price to book (“P/B”) multiple, for each
comparable company identified. The multiple is calculated by
dividing the enterprise value of the comparable company by an
earnings measure. The trading multiple is then discounted for
considerations such as illiquidity and size differences between
the comparable companies based on company-specific facts and
circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to the
corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity
investments to measure the fair value. The directors believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation technique,
which are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which are
recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, management has
estimated the potential effect of using reasonably possible
alternatives as inputs to the valuation model.

43.

PNFERAFEBR ®)

TREENMABENAAEBEEREERET
BHEEMXSHANAZBTENSE M
EREHFEHERNSHE -

SEmEBE Y 2t BIRITMEMERN AR E
BEBBEAEEBRLER AR
SHERM T AMZ A AR EFIBEHRH K
KBS RERFEN BEZT_Z_F+=
A=+—H ARAEEEFTERITMEAM
BREENI EBVRBRMERN A A EEE
BWRAERTEAN -

EHESEENAREBEATISHRERER -
LRAREENEEEEIT ALMES KRS
WIELETRERENAAREECRIEREA
BRMSERIAEZHNRENTISEE
BT - MEERESRETE R
B ERMEEETA L FmAR (RT)
WhEBED#HBZ AL AR GTEEENER
BH - Pl EEERERTFE B &
K 8 84 51 B A (TEV/EBITDA ) £ B A1 0 BR &
(TPB)EE - EHERBEILLARINDE
BEERURSESIZERTERN - RiE - ER
AEIFENEEMBR  EEALLARZME
MWRBUETEMREZELERE  X5EH
SWITHR - ELMRERENHARRG=
KAMBREEIEAnEBE -E2RE  BE
HERMmMTASAEMBERIERZ AREE
Mt AEMEARSHHEBAARBEEZSH R
B YEARBEHRARAENHRE-

SRR BE BB R BB AL pEA
Yoo 3E ETIRER A ROD A BIE - BT
B EAAETROBRHRIEAKER

D AENBETE -
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43. P ERAFEER#)

43. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the

UWTREBEE=-ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—HBF=

valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

E-—Ft+-A=t+—REeMIAGKED
EATABRBAENRBEA R EEHZMN

HHT -
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Range value to the input
NREE
R ER BEATNAEBRBAE &E S A B BRI
Unlisted equity investments  Valuation Median P/B RMB183,000 to 1% (2021: 1%)
ELETRERE multiples AR R 18 RMB223,000 increase/decrease in
(ERENEE (2021: multiple would

Discount for lack of
marketability

BRZ TSR T R

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of
premiums and discounts determined by the Group that market
participants would take into account when pricing the
investments.

RMB187,000 to
RMB229,000)

AR#183,000E
AR #223,0007T
(2021 : AR#E
187,000 E AR
#229,0007T)

24% (2021: 26%)

Rz TS BT

85

23

result in increase/
decrease in fair
value by RMB2,000
(2021: RMB2,000)

1% (2021 : 1%) 52k
8w 1B R
AAREEEZM R
L AR®2,0007T
(20214 : AR¥E
2,0007T)

1% (2021: 1%)
increase/decrease in
discount would
result in decrease/
increase in fair
value by RMB2,700
(2021: RMB2,800)

1% (20214 : 1%) #7
BN, E
BHARBERD
EIMAR2,700
JL(20214F : AR
#2,8007T)

EAKEMMETEED

L2RERNRETEREERMNEEMTE

TH o
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43. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of 43. P ERAFEEHK @
financial instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy NEEER
The following table illustrate the fair value measurement TRAPAEEESRITAEN AR EETEE
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: F
(@)  Assets measured at fair value (@) URAEBES=ENEE
As at 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+-_A=+—H

Fair value measurements using

AREEFELER
Quoted prices in Significant
Fair value at active markets Significant other unobservable
31 December for identical assets observable inputs inputs
2022 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEEH EEMHEM BX
BETERE AEEHA TAEREA
E’J/Rﬁ{“{ﬁ (B-BH) (BE=BH) (E=EMR)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBT T ARBTR ARBTR ARBT R
Financial assets ﬁ]ﬁ%%‘?‘
Equity investments NRnEETEAA
designated at fair value CHRNCE S
through other W R &
comprehensive income 190 — — 190
Bills receivable JEWEE& 229,237 — 229,237 —
229,427 — 229,237 190
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—+=-A=+—8H
Fair value measurements using
ARBEEHESER
Quoted prices in Significant
Fair value at active markets  Significant other unobservable
31 December for identical assets  observable inputs inputs
2021 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RZZZ—4F 1EREEH BEEMAM EDN
+=R=+-8 RIS R E EEH A AABRHA
MAREBE (B—ER) (EZER) (B=ER)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT NS ARBTT ARETT
Financial assets HBEE
Equity investments WAanEEERH
designated at fair value CERYNCE S
through other lheatolie-3d:)
comprehensive income 190 — — 190
Bills receivable W E R 700,504 — 700,504 -

700,694 — 700,504 190




ANNUAL REPORT 2022 &3 223

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R I IRARMIEE

31 December2022 W-—TZZF+=-A=+—8
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F B A FERAE SN - LA R B E)

43. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of 43. P ERAFEEHK @
financial instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEERE
There was no movements in fair value measurements within FRAEZEBHRZEANRARBENELEEE -

Level 3 during the year.

(b)  Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed (b)y LARBEINENEERE
As at 31 December 2022 RZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—H

Fair value measurements using

AABEFESEA
Significant Significant
Fair value at Quoted prices in observable unobservable
31 December active markets inputs inputs
2022 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
R=Z== R EZH EX
+=A=+-H hiZHE ABER A TAEREA
NAREE (5-ER) (5=E®R) (E=ER)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARBTT
Financial liabilities HBEaRE
Other loans HEtER 91,772 - 92,138 —
91,772 — 92,138 —
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H
Fair value measurements using
Significant Significant
Fair value at  Quoted prices in observable unobservable
31 December active markets inputs inputs
2021 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
R-E=-—% R E$:y BX
+=RA=1+-8 mi5RE EEHA AABRHA
MARBE (B—ER) (EZER) (B=E#R)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT AREFT AREFT
Financial liabilities HBaRE
Other loans HEthER 209,670 - 205,069 —

209,670 — 205,069 —
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44. Financial risk management objectives and 44. M EBREEE W RBEE
policies
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise rEENFZem T ABRERITREMEE

interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, cash and cash
equivalent and pledged deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant. For transactions
that are not denominated in the functional currency of
the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer
credit terms without the specific approval of the Head of
Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December.

BE  ReRRESENURDERTR - &
ZeMIANTEANRANEANEER
&S AEEESEEMESMEEREE -
Bl o0 585 3R B B R H R
AEEE -

AEEeRTAEANTIZERRREERR
mEELREE - FEREBRMINERR - EEE
EEVREEEELEBOBE  R&DT -

@) EERAR
AEEERFERLREBAENE=
TEARD - MBRAKENEE - I8
BERERGRRETRINEP LABB
EERERFR  HAMEE - A
SEERHBEERBREHRNER  MA
SEZZRARITEKR - HRAKRES
HRKEEMEERFIENRS K
REEEFIBEANRTIME  NEE

TRRBHERER -

i B Ko R B B
TRETRBEAKEEERRZEEE
EREERRZEARR (EE2RE
BEARER FRIFBREBBERAK
ZHMAMSEMER) BEE) kit =
A=t—RAZFREEIE -
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44. Financial risk management objectives and 44. M EBREEEH W RBEE @)
policies (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

EE R & ()
R R R ERE R (B

(a)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

R-FZ—aF+=-A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
HHEE
BB 2HMELRCEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
F1RER E2R B SR fEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥TR AR¥ETRT AR®ETR AR®T:R
Trade receivables* JEUE 5B+ — — — 1,147,814 1,147,814
Bills receivable e
— Not yet past due — WREH 229,237 — — — 229,237
Financial assets included in HBEEDRIEE
prepayments and other R - REAM
current assets MENVEE
— Normal** — EF** 86,819 — — — 86,819
— Doubtful** — REE** — — — — —
Restricted deposits PR 177 5%
— Not yet past due — WREH 2,314,201 — — — 2,314,201
Cash and cash equivalents e kBReEE
EH
— Not yet past due — WREH 937,897 — — — 937,897
3,568,154 — — 1,147,814 4,715,968




226 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED %8R =R AR A F

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

31 December2022 R-ZZT=Z=—F+=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A FERAE 4N - LA REEFIE)

44. Financial risk management objectives and 44. M EBREEEH W RBEE @)
policies (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERR @
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) = B R (&)
As at 31 December 2021 RZFZ—F+=-HA=4+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A8 5
EEEE SHEBREEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
F1RBER F2MEER E3fE  HEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT AR%®TrT ARETT AR®BTT
Trade receivables* &Y E 5 BR 5 - — — 1,205268 1,205,268
Bills receivable e
— Not yet past due — WAREH 700,504 — — — 700,504
Financial assets included in BB EECDRIER
prepayments and other RRIE - REAM
current assets MENEE
— Normal** — [EFE** 106,556 — — — 106,556
— Doubtful** — REE** — — — — —
Restricted deposits PR 1 7% 5K
— Not yet past due — WAREH 751,278 — — — 751,278
Cash and cash equivalents RekBAeEE
JEH
— Not yet past due — WAREH 431,861 — — — 431,861
Long term receivables = B FE IR 1,532 — — — 1,532
1,991,731 — — 1,205,268 3,196,999
* For trade receivables included in trade, bills receivables and * A B R E G A ERE

SRR (BERKE SRR RREN
BHNEE)ME  REZBREZE
R EHEME22RKE -

contract assets, to which the Group applies the simplified
approach, information based on the provision matrix is
disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

ERPABENIUR - At REEEL &
BHMAYEANBERYBEEAVS
ERARZ EERREKELTHE
HEREERGERILESE]- KT8 &
BEEZERERHRERIRE] -

*k The credit quality of the financial assets included in *k
prepayments and other current assets is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

AEEEEGEERE SERRZEME
WEE BN EREMREEEME
A7 EERBBEBZE-—STEEES
BRI IS RS M 522 R 23 #5 55 o

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade, bills receivables
and contract assets, and prepayments and other current
assets are set out in notes 22 and 23.
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44. Financial risk management objectives and 44. BB EMREE B W RBE @)
policies (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The liquidity of the Group is primarily depending on its
ability to maintain adequate cash flows from operations,
to renew its short-term bank loans and to obtain
adequate external financing to support its working capital
and meet its obligations and commitments when they
become due. Management is taking certain actions to
address these conditions in accordance with the Group's
policy of regularly monitoring its current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. These
actions include negotiating with banks to renew the short
term loans and to explore the availability of alternative
sources of financing.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required
to pay.

(b)

//\L@Jﬁf&

REERDESTEREENLCEP#
RBrRALEReRE  FEHEART
EREBISEAINIRE AT FHEE
Ao RRNEIEREITEEERAENLE
77 o IRIRARER E E BB 5 HL E BN 7E A7
MEBESHHFROBE  BREEDHZ
EBEREEETIT8 - UBRALRFT
WRSHEERMSRKEMEEIST R
AHEEEREE  NENREHOREE
®HE K ZETHBIFERT iﬁﬁﬁéﬁ
NESEBRERERAREMEER

TR AEEFBABERRENEHA
HAMBTANFR  BRMBEEET
URFHEANRERE (BREREALD
XK (MATER) REBRESHRHEER
;?ﬁfﬂJ¥EJr§E’J7F‘J§ﬁm)M&$§%
AERST AR
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44. Financial risk management objectives and 44. M EBREEEH W RBEE @)
policies (continued)

(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) ARBESRR (&)

2022
==

—_—

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

AREHRERH

More than More than
Carrying Within 1year but 2 years but

amount at 1 year or less than less than More than
31 December Total  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
Rt=A
=t-AK - BB-F BBME
K BE  BEERNR  EORNEE  BORIE ik hik:d
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Short-term bank loans RERTER 1,246,979 1,300,751 1,300,751 - - -
Long-term bank and other loans REFTRAMER 91,7712 96,939 4,842 92,097 - -
Trade and bills payables ERE A5 RENTE 3,740,934 3,740,934 3,740,934 - - -
Other payables and accruals BN A R 2R 571,039 571,039 571,039 - - -
Lease liabilities HEGE 25,992 26,186 3,300 3,532 11,725 7,629
5,676,716 5,735,849 5,620,866 95,629 11,725 7,629
2021
“Z--F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AARENF S

More than More than

Carrying Within 1 year but 2 years but
amount at 1 year or less than less than More than
31 December Total on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

R+ZA

=88 —FRE BE-F BBME

KfE B REBRE  EORWE  EORRF BRLE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Short-term bank loans BRRTER 1.915,279 1,976,203 1,976,203 - - —
Long-term bank and other loans REROREMER 209,670 240,037 9,877 49,702 180,458 -
Trade and hills payables ENESEARENRE 2,242,716 2,242,716 2,242,716 - - -
Other payables and accruals H B R B R 493,378 493,378 493,378 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAR 93,862 103,239 20,270 18,011 42,001 21,957

4.954,905 5,054,573 4,742 444 67,713 222,459 21,957
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44. Financial risk management objectives and 44. M EBREEEH W RBEE @)
policies (continued)

(¢) Interest rate risk (© M =X

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from AEEMAMERREZRARMES -
long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates FEREBEFEAEEAERSRMNER
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Bz o

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of AN &R [ 5E B AT R BR AR ] E ROF B A K
fixed and variable rate borrowings in order to manage its BROEES  UEEEFERER - A
interest rate risks. During the vyear, however, the f-FR AEEEREERAERFER
management of the Group did not consider that it is FI s BRI B R o

necessary to use interest rate swaps to hedge their
exposure to interest.

(i) Interest rate profile (i F=EER
The following table details the interest rate profile TRFAJREERNREMREER
of the Group’s net borrowings at the end of the HEEFRA R =R -

reporting period.

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT

Variable rate borrowings FEMBE
Short-term bank and other loans HEREMIBITER 180,538 154,597
Fixed rate borrowings EERBE
Short-term bank and other loans EHNHMIBITER 1,066,441 1,760,682
Long-term other loans EHHEMER 91,772 209,670

1,158,213 1,970,352

Total borrowings EEHBE 1,338,751 2,124,949
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RZTE-Z=ZF+=-A=+—H
(BRBAEABEN -

AARESIE)

44. Financial risk management objectives and 44. M EBREEEH W RBEE @)

policies (continued)

() Interest rate risk (continued)

(0 FRERR &

(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BREDN
The Group
EEE
2022 2021
—==-= —E-—F
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in  (decrease) in  (decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in
interest rate profit equity interest rate profit equity
FM=EEH A F 578 s ME LA aIbE R
(T & CR2) #Em D) (Fg)  %Em Omd) 8/ Cad)
% RMB’000 RMB’000 % RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR® TR AREF T ARBEF T
1 (1,805) (1,805) 1 (1,546) (1,546)
(1) 1,805 1,805 (1 1,546 1,546
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the N ESRESTER BB X
corresponding effects for the year and equity that BPE}RBREHEEEREA I
would have arisen assuming that the change in AR EBEANE R FEREH
interest rates had occurred at the end of the T TEFAENF R - K
reporting period and had been applied to the EBY L KRR
exposure to interest rate risk for the financial B _T_—FEWHMEUMER
instruments in existence at that date. The analysis HYEAEHETT ©
has been performed on the same basis as 2021.
(d)  Foreign currency risk (d)  HNEE [ fz

REBAZWIMNERR - EBHRE LI
¥ (AN 5 EB R X BT eEE ¥ LAY
MER)FHEMHEE MRE - |RITER
NEBR e MBITER - EEZRBRNE
BEXERhxT BT BTKAR-E
BEEY TBRHEXRESHEERTIMEX
TR RARAKEERA TP W
SN BB A R R

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases, bank loans and cash and bank
deposits that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e.
a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily the United
States Dollar, Euro, Hong Kong Dollar and Japanese Yen.
Management does not expect any significant impact from
movements in exchange rates since the Group uses the
foreign currencies collected from customers to settle the
amounts due to suppliers.
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44. Financial risk management objectives and 44. M EBREEEH W RBEE @)
policies (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued) (d) SN [ B (48)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i SNERB
The following table details the Group’s exposure at TRFVAEENREHREEE
the end of the reporting period to currency risk H AR SNE R g - SMNE R E
arising from recognised assets or liabilities in the N e BB AINE A
consolidated statement of financial position (after ENERGETBIRAE (KREA
elimination of intercompany receivables and A EGRIE R JE T I8 ) fERR
payables) denominated in a currency other than the MEESBEMESE -
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate.
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)
HERBR(UAREIIE)
2022 2021
—E-CF —E--F
United United
States Hong Kong  Japanese States Hong Kong  Japanese
Dollar Euro Dollar Yen Dollar Euro Dollar Yen

E B it AE e BT RE AE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 [I:R0lo/CINNCIY: T V-0 NV el
ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTR INSLSUVUN:ESIEUN- SN S

Trade, bills receivables and ERE S RA R

contract assets SBERANEE — 318,898 - - — 168,362 — -
Cash at banks and on hand 1T R FBEHE 12 107,913 1,040 92 340 97,879 924 615
Interest-bearing loans HEER (22,042)  (159,018)  (90,058) — (25368)  (126,987)  (50,192) -
Trade and bills payables ENESERREE (23) - - (218) - — — (973)

(22,053) 267,793 (89,108) (126) (25,028) 139,254 (49,268) (358)
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MEEREEBNREE®

44. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(d)  Foreign currency risk (continued) (d)  HINEE [ B ()
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BREDN

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit/(loss) for the year and
accumulated losses in equity in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign

TERBTASERR®E HEE
BB AEE AR LR E R 5
AR  MBAAKEFEF
B/ (BE) REERBEERER

exchange rates to which the Group has significant B BNRF ) o
exposure at the end of the reporting period.
2021
T —F
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign Increase/ Increase/ in foreign Increase/ Increase/
exchange (decrease) (decrease) exchange (decrease) (decrease)
rates in profit in equity rates in profit in equity
A B R #a

i B,/ B,/
(T¥&)/ (R 2) (R 2)
% RMB’000
ARMTRT ARWTR

ExE sm/ M
(F®)/ (B ()
RMB'000 % RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARBFT

United States Dollar ET 10 (2,201) (2,201) 10 (2,503) (2,503)
(10) 2,201) 2,201 (10) 2,503 2,503
Euro BT 10 26,779 26,779 10 13,925 13,925
(10) (26,779) (26,779) (10) (13,925) (13,925)
Hong Kong Dollar ot 10 (8,902) (8,902) 10 (4,927) (4,927)
(10) 8,902 8,902 (10) 4,927 4,927

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments (excluding
intercompany receivables and payables which are
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements)
held by the Group which exposed the Group to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial
statements of the Group companies into the
presentation currency. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis as 2021.

BRESMIIBRE XA EHETESHEH
quEZlKE@Ffr%ﬁQEEAﬁiHHFETn# SPE
EINERBONZEMBETA (TNBREFEMTE
iﬁ?ﬁqﬂi‘fﬁﬁﬁé’] ) YRR K e SRR o
SN BEREAEEVBERRMER/ERE
BITELANZR - — T - —FNHMEIAM
[l ) B AEHETT o
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44, Financial risk management objectives and BEEREEENREE @

policies (continued)

(e)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
gearing ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines gearing
ratio as the ratio of total borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents, to the total of share capital and reserves.

(e)

ExEE
AEEESEENTIZRBRRREAE
EFELENEE  THFRENER
& UXFEEBLERREERA
1t -

REBERHEERER - WRBLHER
EEEMEEEENRR R HE
TTHRE - BHFNABRELRERE K&
Bt g AR MRFIREARE - MR
R E RN BEITHR - REBTZE
AIINPRENBIE R ER 2 KR - BEZ
E-_—F+-_A=+—HBM-_ZT=-_—%
TZA=ZFT—HILFE BREEAAHNE
2 BRIREREEE -

AEENEEABLREREERE
BBt E  AEESEERBLX
EEREEAR BRASIREEFE
Y RERRARFEENLE -
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44. Financial risk management objectives and 44. M EBREEEH W RBEE @)
policies (continued)

(e) Capital management (continued) () BE2BE®W
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were RZEZZFR-_ZFT-_—F+=A
as follows: =t+—HBWNEAEBGBLLENT
2022 2021
- —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ik AR®T R ARBEF T
Current liabilities: REBEE:
Bank and other loans RITREME K 26 1,246,979 1,915,279
Non-current liabilities: IRBEE:
Bank and other loans RITREME R 26 91,772 209,670
Less: Cash and cash equivalents  J& : & RIS HEY 25 (937,897) (431,861)
Net debt FEE 400,854 1,693,088
Share capital N 285,924 285,924
Reserves f# 815,486 90,490
1,101,410 376,414
Gearing ratio EESMEHE 36.39% 449.79%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are AR ) R E AR B R ®)5 (2B 38 <P Ak
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. FIEINEERHE -
45. Events after the reporting period 45. REHEREE
As disclosed in note 12, approximately RMB229,950,000 out of MM 12 R BE_T_=F—A+=
the 51.1% of the Consideration was received from two entities H - B 1% B E 28 5 4 ) 60 M K B BS YCER
controlled by China Lesso Group by 13 January 2023. 51.1%MREX B AR 229,950,0007T °
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46. Statement of financial position of the 46. AR R M BEMRR &K

Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the RBEPELEERARRTBRARNER
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: R

2022 2021
—TEC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR ARBTT

Non-current assets IRBEE

Investments in subsidiaries R ER B E 1,364,678 1,364,262
Current assets RBEE

Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERE 1,851 1,709
Current liabilities RBEE

Other payables and accruals H fth fE T FRIE R FESHE A 114,371 48,440
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (112,520) (46,731)
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRDEE 1,252,158 1,317,531
Net assets EERE 1,252,158 1,317,531
Capital and reserves EXRF#E

Share capital i@ 285,924 285,924
Reserves (note 35) et 85 (P =£35) 966,234 1,031,607
Total equity i 1,252,158 1,317,531
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46. A Q2T BRRE @

46. Statement of financial position of the

Company (continued)

Note: B 5
Share Exchange  Accumulated Total
premium reserve losses reserves
B 17 % 8 ERfR#E By EHAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETF T AREETF T AREETF T AREETF T
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-EB=--5—-A—HW
Fo353 1,726,034 (52,006) (610,340) 1,063,688
Changes in equity for 2021: CEC-FHEREH:
Loss for the year FEBE — — (4,462) (4,462)
Issue of shares BT D 26,367 — — 26,367
Other comprehensive income Ef2mEEA — (53,986) — (53,986)
Total comprehensive income Z2HERA LR 26,367 (53,986) (4,462) (32,081)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-B=-—F
+=ZA=+—BH&s 1,752,401 (105,992) (614,802) 1,031,607
Balance at 1 January 2022 R-ZE-ZZH—-A—HW
Fo353 1,752,401 (105,992) (614,802) 1,031,607
Changes in equity for 2022: CECCFNEREE:
Loss for the year FEEA — — (4,077) (4,077)
Special dividend (note 13) BRI R (MfsE13) (211,513) — — (211,513)
Other comprehensive income Hh 2 E WA — 150,217 — 150,217
Total comprehensive income Z2HERA LR (211,513) 150,217 (4,077) (65,373)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R-B=-—F
TZA=+— Bk 1,540,888 44,225 (618,879) 966,234
47. Approval of the financial statements 47. #tEMB®E

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 29 March 2023.

EEgERN T _ZFA -+t NHZAEY

AR B R
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